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The Hong Kong economy sustained a robust growth momentum throughout
the year, with GDP leaping by 6.3% in real terms, marked the fourth
consecutive year of strong economic expansion. The labour market improved
further in 2007 with unemployment rate falling to 3.4% at the end of the
year. The tightened labour market pushed wages and earnings up and
enhanced the consumptions desire of the local community. Both the retail

and tourism business gained advantages.

The Group continued to perform satisfactorily during 2007. In 2007, the
Group attained a turnover of HK$2,266.2 million that represented a 13.7%
increase over the HK$1,992.4 million in 2006. Gross profit for the year grew
17% to HK$416.6 million from the HK$355.9 million of 2006. Profit for the
year was HK$4.5 million (2006: loss of HK$79.4 million) after charging
administration expenses of HK$337.7 million (2006: HK$287.4 million),
finance costs of HK$139.1 million (2006: HK$98.7 million), share of loss of
associates of HK$44.9 million (2006: HK$19,000); and after crediting a gain
on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$82.3 million (2006: HK$0.1 million),
discount on acquisition of subsidiaries of HK$47.3 million (2006: Nil) and
taxation credit of HK$46.6 million (2006: HK$1.9 million).

Travel and Related Services

The Group’s travel and related services comprises mainly outbound tours,
inbounds tours, air ticketing and hotel/air tickets packages. This segment
continued to grow through various acquisitions in the PRC and the
strengthening sentiment of travel of the local customers. This segment
achieved a turnover of HK$1,993.8 million and represented an increase of
14.5% over the HK$1,740.7 million in 2006. Segment results for the year
was HK$34.5 million that tripled the 2006 segment results of HK$11.1

million.
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Hotel and Leisure Services

The Group operates its hotel and leisure business through Luoyang Golden
Gulf Hotel, the three “Rosedale” branded 4-star rated hotels and the Times
Plaza Shenyang Hotel acquired during the year. Turnover grew by 8% to
HK$272.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: HK$251.7
million). The segment profit was HK$38.6 million (2006: HK$40.9 million)
resulted from the appreciation of Renminbi versus both Hong Kong dollars

and United States dollars.

Associates

The Group’s 50% held associated company, Travoo International Limited
("Travoo"”) transacts its air ticketing and hotel booking business via a business-
to-business-to-customers platform in the PRC. The Group’s share of loss in
this associated company for the year was HK$9.3 million versus HK$2.9
million for 2006. This increased loss sharing was mainly attributable to an

impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible assets of HK$4.9 million.

During the year, the main business of Sino Express Travel Limited has
transformed into investment and operation of a hotel resort and theme
park in Guangdong Province, the PRC. As a result, the intangible assets
associated with its former travel booking business was impaired. As a result,
the Group's share of loss in this associated company for the year was HK$35.9

million against the HK$2 million for the year 2006.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

On 30 May 2007, the Group completed the conditional sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party for the disposal of the Group’s
56.91% interest in Triumph Up Investments Limited for a consideration of
HK$252,789,344.97. Triumph Up Investments Limited indirectly holds
approximately 55.75% of the issued share capital of Kingsway Hotel Limited.
Accordingly, the Group’s entire approximately 31.73% effective interest in
Kingsway Hotel Limited had been disposed of. A net gain of HK$82.3 million
was recorded in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31

December 2007.
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On 4 April 2007, International Travel Systems Inc. (“ITS"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and an independent third party (the “Vendor")
entered into an agreement under which the parties agreed that, subject to
the fulfillment of certain conditions precedent, ITS will purchase 100 shares
of US$1 each in the capital of Asia Times Limited (“Asia Times") held by the
Vendor, representing 100% equity interest in Asia Times for a consideration
of HK$70,000,000. The agreement was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting held on 22 August 2007 and
was completed on 28 August 2007.

On 21 May 2007, the Group through a 67.9% indirectly held subsidiary
entered into a conditional agreement with an independent third party for
the acquisition of the entire share capital in Shenyang Limited and the
shareholder’s loan in the sum of HK$337,462,006 for a consideration of
HK$178,000,000. The major asset of Shenyang Limited is its 87.4% indirect
interest in Times Plaza Shenyang Hotel located in Shenyang, Liaoning

Province, the PRC. The agreement was completed on 15 August 2007.

On 26 May 2007, Fortuneup International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group entered into the investment and shareholders agreement (“ISA")
with an independent third party to subscribe for new shares in Tangula Group
Limited (“TGL") representing 72% of the enlarged issued share capital of
TGL at a consideration of US$52.9 million (approximately HK$412.0 million).
The major asset of TGL is the 49% indirect interest in a sino-foreign
cooperative joint venture which has an exclusive right to operate luxury trains
on the Qinghai-Tibet Railway. The ISA was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting held on 10 October 2007. The

subscription was completed in November 2007.
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On 31 December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire
the entire issued share capital of and the shareholder loan to More Star
Limited for a consideration of HK$20,000,000. The sole asset of More Star
Limited is its investment in the entire issued share capital of Fortress State
International Limited (“Fortress State”). Fortress State has been awarded
the tender and entered into the memorandum of agreement to acquire a
property located at Tai Kok Tsui Road for a total consideration of
HK$163,880,000. The acquisition of the property by Fortress State was
completed on 29 February 2008.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

On 14 May 2007, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent conditionally agreed to
place (i) on a fully underwritten basis, 120,000,000 new shares at a price of
HK$0.8 per new share (“Tranche | Placing”) and (ii) on a best effort basis,
200,000,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.8 per new share (“Tranche Il
Placing”). The net proceeds of approximately HK$248.0 million had been
utilised to fund the Group’s acquisition projects and as the Group’s general
working capital. Tranche | Placing and Tranche Il Placing were completed in

May 2007 and August 2007 respectively.

On 27 June 2007, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent conditionally agreed to
place, on a fully underwritten basis, 130,000,000 new shares at a price of
HK$0.8 per new share. The net proceeds from the placing of approximately
HK$100.9 million were used to further expand its existing business and
enhance the general working capital of the Group and accordingly to
strengthen the financial conditions and shareholders base of the Company.

The placing was completed in August 2007.

On 14 November 2007, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place,
on a fully underwritten basis, 300,000,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.4
per placing share. The net proceeds of approximately HK$116.9 million raised
were intended to be used to expand the Group’s branch network and as

general working capital of the Group.
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During the year, convertible notes in the aggregate principal value of HK$360
million have been converted. Accordingly, 455,696,195 news shares in the

Company have been issued and allotted.
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At balance sheet date, the Group’s total borrowings were as follows:

Loan from related companies
Bank and short term loan
repayable within one year
Bank and other loans
repayable after one year
Promissory note
Consideration note

Convertible notes
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The convertible notes issued in June 2006, due in June 2011, bear interest
at a fixed rate of 2% per annum. All other borrowings bear floating interest

rates.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2007, expressed as a percentage of
total borrowings to equity attributable to shareholders of the parent, was

69.2% (At 31.12.2006: 110.1%).

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2007, certain assets of the Group at net book value of
HK$629.0 million (2006: HK$638.5 million) were pledged to banks and

financial institutions for credit facilities.

As at As at
31.12.2007 31.12.2006
HK$ million HK$ million
R-ZZLF RZTERF
+=HA=+—H i — s = s
BEBER AEET
277.0 106.3

88.8 59.3

366.7 406.5
106.5 -

21.5 =

554.2 810.0
1,414.7 1,382.1

R-ZFERFRNARTER T ——FNA2H
Z A EIRIREEN R G E2ER B B EA
fEEBIZEBNEG B

RZZTLF+-_A=+—HA BABELE (&
EEBEAYE QRN REGERS 2 E 5
) R69.2% (RZTEZF+_A=+—8:
110.1%) °

EERA

R-EELF+_F=+—HB KAEEDEH
IR FEA629,000,0008 7T (ZTTNE:
638,500,000/ 7T) © & T & EEM TIRIT R
BHIBLBISEERER.



Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31

December 2007.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business transactions
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. During
the year, the Group entered into five foreign currency option agreements
with a local bank to hedge its RMB settlement requirements in respect of
the construction costs for the luxury train compartments to run on the
Qinghai-Tibet Railway under the Tangula trademark. Major terms of the

significant foreign currency contracts are as follows:

Notional amount Maturity
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Exchange rates
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Buy RMB36,455,000

B AAR36,455,0007T
Buy RMB36,326,000

B AAR¥36,326,0007T
Buy RMB45,698,000

B AAR#45,698,0007T
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31 January 2008
—ZTENF-H=+—H
31 March 2008
—EENF=A=+—H
8 August 2008
—ZEENFNANB

28 August 2008
—ZEZENFENAZTNR
12 September 2008
—TEN\FAA+TZA

Ex

USD/RMB7.2917
1ETHARET. 29177
USD/RMB7.2148
1ETHARET7.21487T
USD/RMB7.0499
12T AR ¥7.04997T
USD/RMB7.0250
1ETTH AR7.02507T
USD/RMB7.0050
1= H AR7.00507T

The Group did not have entered into any hedging arrangements except as
described above. However, the management will continue to monitor closely
its foreign currency exposure and requirements and to arrange for further

hedging facilities when necessary.
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Employees

At 31 December 2007, the Group has approximately 2,400 employees of
which 21 employees were stationed overseas and 1,484 employees were
stationed in the PRC. Competitive remuneration packages are structured to
commensurate with the responsibilities, qualifications, experience and
performance of individual employees. The Group also provided training
programmes, provident fund scheme and medical insurance for its employees.
Total staff remuneration incurred for the year ended 31 December 2007

were approximately HK$177.2 million.

The Group had a share option scheme (the “Scheme”), which was approved
and adopted by shareholders of the Company on 3 May 2002, to enable
the directors to grant options to employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries (including executive and non-executive
directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries) and any suppliers,
consultants, agents or advisers who will contribute or have contributed to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries as incentives and rewards for their
contribution to the Company or such subsidiaries. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme, when
aggregated with any shares subject to any other schemes, shall not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval
and adoption of the Scheme (the “General Limit”). The Company proposed
to refresh the General Limit so that the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company would be increased to 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of approval of the General Limit as
“refreshed”. The refreshment of the General Limit was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting held on 19

May 2006.

On 22 June 2006, the Company granted 58,880,000 options at an exercise
price of HK$0.728 per share with exercisable period from 22 June 2006 to
21 June 2008. During the year 7,710,000 share options were lapsed,
4,285,000 share options were exercised and 4,285,000 ordinary shares of
the Company were issued. At balance sheet date, 46,685,000 (2006:
58,680,000) share options were outstanding.

=

RZZEZT+HF+A=+—RB FAEEEAY
2,400%RE EH21BEEEIN 5IM 4845
AEBATE-AERRREEIEE cBE &
JE 185 R RIETR 2 @A S s Ak
B AHESRMIEIRE DESHEIREE
RE-BE-_TTLF+_A=1+—HLEFE B
THB4a%E#/&177,200,000% 7T

RNEEFRE —EBRET S ([%8)) &%t
RITZE_FH A= BBAQAIRERA AR
N EFHBARRRRSEEFAREARIES -
TTRABSSABE (BREAR R REAMHE
REZHTRIFITES) ARBE L BRE R
ARIFEEAMBAREL R fER FX
B IR SR A IR B AR - DA 528D N O R 15
SFUARRRHZEME R B ZER - RIBZ
AHEIRTRER 2 BB AT e 2 B - ERAEATE
st BIFmS Rz Ity —BtET & BB & KT 51
BARRNERFRBZET B R 2B B/ITRA
10% ([—ARIRER]) ~ARREZHEEH KRR
B BUERIBZAT 8| R A R R E M R
ISR 2 A BRI R TR AT 1T 2 XD 8K
B 1BINE—MRIFFREHLE [R5 8 A2 BT
1210% » AABRRER —TTRFAA TN
R8T ZBRRBERS LM AEFTH —RRE-

R-BENERNA-+ A ARTRTEES
P%0.728% 7L1% H58,880,00017 BB AR - i% S FE A%
BZIMERE ST E AT _ARE_ZT
ENFHRAZ+T—HIEFA 7,710,000/ K&
BB SR 554,285,000 B ED BITE R
ANX7)4,285,000 FBIREEEIT-NEER
$£546,685,00017 mARTTE 2 BEAE (ZTTX
4 :58,680,00019) °



The China Focus

The China market continues to be the focus of world tourism industry. The
number of outbound travellers during the last 5 years increased by 2.8 times,
representing an average of 22% increase per annum. The number of
outbound travellers for the first three quarters in 2007 was approximately
30 million. Pending the official full year numbers, market predicted that the
number of outbound travellers in 2007 shall reach 37.4 million and shall

attain the level of 50 million by 2015.

For inbound, according to the statistics released by the China National Tourism
Administration, the number of visitors to the mainland in 2007 attained

131.9 million and representing an increase of 5.5% over last year.

The Group has aggressively taken actions to enlarge its PRC business network

to grasp these enormous opportunities in the PRC travel market.

In August 2007, the Group successfully completed the acquisition of a budget
hotel management company in Chengdu, a hometown of the big pandas
and a city with a number of nearby heritage attractions such as the E' Mei
Mountains and the Le’ Shan Buddha. The business is operating under the
brand “Square Inn” and the management team of this new business stream
has taken aggressive actions to expand into the market through further
acquisitions, franchising the “Square Inn” brandname and the procurement
of hotel management contracts. The Group is confident that Square Inn will

get a share in the booming budget hotel market in the near future.

In August 2007, the Group completed the acquisition of the 4-star Times
Plaza Shenyang Hotel, located in Shenyang, Liaoning Province. Management
expected that considerable synergetic effect, in terms of mainly cost savings,
would be achieved through rebranding this newly acquired hotel into the
Rosedale chain of hotels. The Group shall target on further acquisitions to
strengthen its business hotel network and would raise its position and

bargaining power in the market.
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In November 2007, the Group has completed the acquisition of the
controlling stake in Tangula Group Limited which has a 49% beneficial interest
in a sino-foreign cooperative joint venture to operate two luxury trains routes
to run on the Qinghai-Tibet Railway. The train operation is expected to be
commenced in the third quarter of 2008. Given that Tibet is a very attractive
place to the Americans and Europeans and the fare of the journey will be
reasonable priced at their affordable level, the Company is confident that
the Tangula luxury trains will be one of the best choices for the travellers
originated from the two continents. This will further enhance the status of
the Group in the market and provide considerable contribution to the results

of the Group in the future.

The Group shall continue to search for tourism related investment

opportunities in the PRC.

Hong Kong Travel Business

Consequent to the uproaring economy of the PRC and the strong rebound
of the local market, the Group shall continue to put in considerable effort
and resources to develop and launch featured products other than the popular
beauty series, culture appreciation tours and financial series to suit the needs

of the growing demand for distinctive products.

In the coming year, the Group shall put in resources and effort to further
enhance its service quality and to uplift the status of the customers buying
our tour, FIT and cruise products. This shall be achieved via extensive
co-operation with prestige airlines, hotels, cruise liners and the tourism

authority of our tour destinations.

Hotel Operations

In 2008, the Group shall focus its attention on entertain the huge number
of visiting guests during the period of Beijing Olympic Games and the
Equestrian Event hosted by Hong Kong during August 2008. Management
of the Company expected that the results of the hotel operation in the year
2008 shall be largely benefited. Furthermore, the redevelopment of the Tai
Kok Tsui property into a four-star rated hotel is expected to commence in
the last quarter of 2008 and to be completed in early 2011. Management
foresee that the market sharing of the Group’s hotel business shall increase

remarkably via the network of its six Rosedale hotels.
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Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, aged 54, has been the Managing Director of the
Company since October 2003. Mr. Cheung graduated from the University
of London with a Bachelor of Arts degree and has over 29 years of experience
in real estate development, property investment and corporate finance. He
has worked in key executive positions in various leading property development
companies in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Cheung is the chairman of ITC
Properties Group Limited (formerly known as Macau Prime Properties
Holdings Limited) and an executive director of ITC Corporation Limited. He
is also an independent non-executive director of International Entertainment

Corporation and Innovo Leisure Recreation Holdings Limited.

Dr. Yap, Allan, aged 52, has been an Executive Director of the Company
since April 2002. He obtained the honorary degree of Doctor of Laws and
has over 25 years' experience in finance, investment and banking. Dr. Yap is
the managing director of Hanny Holdings Limited; executive director of Big
Media Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the GEM board
of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong; and chairman and chief executive
officer of China Enterprises Limited, a company whose shares are traded on
the OTC Bulletin Board in the United States of America. Dr. Yap is also the
chairman and chief executive officer of Burcon NutraScience Corporation, a
company whose shares are listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada
and Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany; and an executive chairman of
PSC Corporation Ltd and Intraco Limited and a chairman of Tat Seng
Packaging Group Ltd, companies whose shares are listed in Singapore. He is
also the chairman of MRI Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are

listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.
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Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis, aged 57, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since April 2002. He is a well-known actor, master of
ceremonies, and horseracing and soccer commentator. Mr. Chan has over

23 years' experience in the entertainment and film industry in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, aged 52, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since April 2002. He is a qualified accountant and a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the CPA
Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in U.K. Mr. Lui has more
than 27 years of experience in accounting, financial and corporate
management. He has held senior financial positions in an international
accounting firm and various private and public listed companies. Mr. Lui is
currently the deputy managing director of Hanny Holdings Limited, and an
executive director of PSC Corporation Limited, a company listed in Singapore.
He is also a director of MRI Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. Mr. Lui holds a Master of Business

Administration degree from the University of Adelaide in Australia.

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 59, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since December 2002. He was a marketing manager
in an international company engaging in the design of business administration
system. Mr. Kwok has been in the insurance and investments business for
over 24 years, principally in the senior managerial position leading a sizable
sales team. He is also an independent non-executive director of ITC Properties
Group Limited (formerly known as Macau Prime Properties Holdings Limited)

and Hanny Holdings Limited.
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Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 46, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since March 2007. He graduated from
the University of Bath, United Kingdom with a Master of Science degree in
Business Administration. Mr. Poon is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the CPA Australia.
Mr. Poon is currently the independent non-executive director of Hanny

Holdings Limited.

Mr. Sin Chi Fai, aged 48, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since January 2008. Mr. Sin is a director and shareholder of
a Singapore company engaged in the distribution of data storage media
and computer related products in Asian countries. Mr. Sin obtained a diploma
in Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University). He has over 10 years' experience in banking field
and has over 10 years’ sales and marketing experience in information
technology industries. He is also an independent non-executive director of

Hanny Holdings Limited and Wonson International Holdings Limited.
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Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, aged 42, has been the Qualified Accountant of the
Company since September 2004. Ms. Chan is the Group Financial Controller
of the Company and director of major subsidiaries of the Group. She joined
the Company in May 2002. Ms. Chan has 20 years’ experience in auditing,
accounting and finance in both international accounting firms and listed
companies. Ms. Chan oversees the accounting and financial management
of the Group. She is a core member of the Travel Division’s Strategic Planning
and Operations Management team. She also focuses on corporate matters
of the Group. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and also a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chan is an executive director of China
Strategic Holdings Limited, independent non-executive director of Wonson
International Holdings Limited and Trasy Gold Ex Limited, companies whose
shares are listed in Hong Kong. She is also the deputy chairman of China
Enterprises Limited, a company whose shares are traded on the OTC Bulletin
Board in the United States of America and a director of MRI Holdings Limited,

a company whose shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

Ms. Leung Kong Lan, Lanny, aged 47, is the Chief Executive Officer of
Hong Kong Wing On Travel Service Limited and director of a few of the
Company'’s subsidiaries and associates. She joined the Group in November
1984. Ms. Leung focuses on formulating strategies for the overall
management of travel division, exploring business opportunities in new
markets including the potential mainland China market and promoting the
development of the travel industry. She holds a Bachelor degree in Arts. Ms.
Leung is the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Association of China Travel
Organizers Limited, a member of the Advisory Committee on Cruise Industry
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the
Outbound Committee of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong, and a
certified instructor of both the Tourism Industry Skill Upgrading Scheme and
the Outbound Escort Examination Course of the Travel Industry Council.

She has over 20 years of experience in the travel industry.
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Ms. Chan Shuk Fong, Jo Jo, aged 43, is the General Manager of Hong
Kong Wing On Travel Service Limited. She joined the Group in December
1994. She is a core member of the Strategic Planning and Operations
Management team of travel division. Ms. Chan’s expanded role includes
strategic development and operations management in all aspects of Hong
Kong Wing On Travel Service Limited. Ms. Chan currently serves in the
Inbound Committee of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong, and the
Council of the Hong Kong Association of China Travel Organizers Limited.
She is a member of the University of South Australia Tourism & Hospitality
Management Advisory Panel, and the Hong Kong Baptist University College
of International Education Advisory Committee; as well as program advisors
of the Associate of Social Science in Leisure and Tourism Management of
Community College of City University, and the Associate of Social Science
(Tourism) of Hong Kong Institute of Education. Ms. Chan holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration and a Postgraduate Diploma from the
University of Leicester. She has over 15 years of management experience in

travel and related industries.

Mr. Ng Chack Yan, aged 57, joined Rosedale Hotel Management Limited
in November 2002 and appointed as the Assistant General Manager since
April 2003. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration and
a master’s degree in accounting. He has over 20 years’ experience in the
hotel industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng held a number of executive
positions in various hotels of the renowned multinational hotel chains in the

PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore and Indonesia.
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Mr. Cheng Chun Chau, aged 43, participated in the foundation of Rosedale
on the Park (“Rosedale — Hong Kong”) in 2000. Mr. Cheng has over 23
years' extensive experience and knowledge in managing hotels and projects
in both Hong Kong and the PRC. He was appointed as the Assistant General
Manager of Rosedale Hotel & Suites ®m Guangzhou (“Rosedale — GZ") in
2003 in-charge of the Rooms Division and Sales and Marketing Department.
Mr. Cheng is currently the General Manager of Rosedale — Hong Kong.
Prior to joining the Group, he held a number of executive positions in various

hotels in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Wan Lok Tin, Ivan, aged 50, joined Rosedale Hotel & Suites m Beijing
as the General Manager in March 2005. Mr. Wan is rewarded as a Certified
Hotel Administrator by the American Hotel & Motel Association. Mr. Wan is
also a member of the Hotel & Catering International Management Association
and has over 30 years’ experience in the hotel industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Wan worked as the General Manager in various hotels in the

PRC and Macau.

Mr. Ng Hei Lam, Peter, aged 48, joined Rosedale — GZ as the General
Manager in November 2003. Mr. Ng has over 29 years’ experience in the
hotel industry. He is a member of Association of International Hoteliers
Shanghai and a member of IWW-International Who's Who of Professional
Organization since 1998. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng worked as the

General Manager in various hotels in the PRC.
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The Group is committed to achieve high standards of corporate governance
which is crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests
of the Company’s shareholders. To accomplish this, the Group has adopted
practices which meet the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). During the
year, the Company has complied with the Code except code provisions A.2.1,

A4.1and E.1.2.

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of the Company by
the directors. Having made specific enquiry on all directors, the Company
confirmed that all directors have complied with the required standard as set

out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2007.

The Board of Directors comprises the managing director, three executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors. The Board of
Directors is principally accountable to the shareholders and responsible for
the leadership and control of the Group including overseeing the Group'’s
businesses, strategic directions, financial performance, setting objectives and
business development plans, and monitoring the performance of the senior

management.
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The Board of Directors meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy, monitor business development as well as the financial
performance of the Group and has formal procedures on matters for
consideration and decision. The Board of Directors has delegated certain
authorities to the senior management for the day-to-day management of
the Group’s operation. The attendance of directors at the eleven full board

meetings held in 2007 is as follows:

Director Attendance

Executive Director

Mr. Yu Kam Kee, Lawrence B.B.S., M.B.E., J.P (Chairman) 10
(resigned on 1 December 2007)

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Managing Director) 9

Dr. Yap, Allan 11

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis 9

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard 11

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 11

Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph 9
(resigned on 31 October 2007)

Mr. Sin Chi Fai 0

(resigned on 27 March 2007 and
appointed on 28 January 2008)

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 11
(appointed on 27 March 2007)

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company does not at present have any officer with the title
of chief executive officer (“CEO") but instead the duties of a CEO are
performed by Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, the Managing Director of the Company,
in the same capacity as the CEO of the Company.
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Under the code provision E.1.2, the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting. The former Chairman of the Board, Mr. Yu
Kam Kee, Lawrence was unable to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 25 May 2007 as he had other important business
engagement. However, the other executive director, present at the annual
general meeting, took the chair of that meeting in accordance with Bye-

Law 68 of the Bye-Laws of the Company.

Mr. Yu Kam Kee, Lawrence resigned as an executive director and the chairman
of the Company with effect from 1 December 2007. The Company is in the

process of identifying suitable candidate to fill the casual vacancy of chairman.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive directors as required under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all independent non-

executive directors to be independent.

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference with reference to the recommendations set out in “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and such terms of reference are in line with the code

provisions set out in the Code.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year for reviewing the reporting
of annual and interim results and other information to the shareholders,
and the effectiveness and objectivity of the audit process. Additional meetings
may be held by the Audit Committee from time to time to discuss special
projects or other issues which the Audit Committee considers necessary.
The external auditor of the Company may request a meeting if they consider
that one is necessary. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within
the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the independence

and objectivity of the auditor.
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The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive directors.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management and
the Company’s auditor the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including the audited financial statements and unaudited interim

financial statements.

The members and attendance of the three meetings of the Audit Committee

in 2007 are as follows:

Director Attendance
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 3
Mr. Sin Chi Fai 0
(resigned on 27 March 2007 and
appointed on 28 January 2008)
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph 2
(resigned on 31 October 2007)
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 3

(appointed on 27 March 2007)

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert was appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company with effect from 31 October 2007.

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The current independent non-
executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term.
However, all directors (including executive and non-executive) of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting

in accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee of the Group was established in April 2005
with written terms of reference in line with the Code. The Remuneration
Committee will meet at least once a year to consider and recommend to the
Board the Group’s remuneration policy and structure and to review and
determine the remuneration packages of the executive directors and senior
management. The directors are remunerated with reference to their respective
duties and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s performance

and current market situation.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors and one executive director. The Remuneration Committee is chaired

by Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
the remuneration policy and review and approve the remuneration packages
of the executive directors and senior management of the Company. The

members and attendance of the meeting are as follows:

Director Attendance

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 1

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 1
(appointed on 27 March 2007)

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard 1

Mr. Sin Chi Fai 0

(resigned on 27 March 2007)

Details of emoluments of the directors from the Group for the year are as

disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

& REMAKRZHFMEZES YK
SR IR AR %E%%%l TINR B e BFR
PAR—RER NEBERAEFTEERAKE
ZHMBR RS AR REERTESER
BREEABZHMTE -ER2HMIIRER
BEANARRZBE ANRRIZFEER B2
TSI EERE ©

FHNEZBEmMEBBELIFNTES R —RNTE
EHEK-FMEE G 2 T FE AR L.

FRHFHERBESETT —REH W ART]
ZEMBOR - Winst RIDERARRRTEERS

REBABZHMNEFE ZEB2NEREFER
/(I N

= HERE
=T EAE 1
7 B L5 A 1

(RZZEZLF=A =+t HEZME)

BIKRAEE 1
/ﬁ/p\ﬁﬁ%i O

(RZBBLF=A-+LB#E)

REEAREBZEEWHE 2FBR
KSR 1P R

B %5 ¥



According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Board of Directors has the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board of Directors. The
nomination should be taken into consideration of the nominee’s qualification,
ability and potential contributions to the Company. During the year, two
meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company which were attended by
Dr. Yap, Allan and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard were held to appoint
independent non-executive director and members of the audit committee

and remuneration committee of the Company.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007,
the directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
The directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Group, for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other

irregularities.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities and Remuneration

During the year, the auditor of the Company received approximately

HK$4,692,000 for audit and audited related service.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting

responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 46.

Internal Control

During the year, the Company reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control procedures which include the policies, procedures, monitoring
and communication activities and standard of behaviour established for

safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the Company.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as

the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the business of providing package tours, travel and
other related services, hotel operation in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic

of China (the “PRC") and trading of securities.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 are set out

in the consolidated income statement on page 48.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend at the rate of
HKO.5 cent per share in cash with a scrip option payable on or around 27
June 2008 to all persons registered as holders of shares on 23 May 2008.
The Register of Members will be closed from 21 May 2008 to 23 May 2008,

both days inclusive.

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 181.

Particulars of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set

out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the convertible notes of the Company are set out in note 42 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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In addition to the accumulated profits, under The Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), contributed surplus is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium

account.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the Company which were
available for distribution to shareholders at 31 December 2007 were

HK$616,392,000 (2006: HK$700,599,000).

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment

of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the properties of the Group as at 31 December 2007 are set

out on pages 182 to 184 of the annual report.
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The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Kam Kee, Lawrence B.8.S., M.B.E., J.P (Chairman)
(resigned on 1 December 2007)

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Managing Director)

Dr. Yap, Allan

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Sin Chi Fai (resigned on 27 March 2007 and
appointed on 28 January 2008)
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph (resigned on 31 October 2007)
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (appointed on 27 March 2007)

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Dr. Yap, Allan,
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Bye-Law 102(B) of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Sin Chi
Fai who was appointed with effect from 28 January 2008, will retire and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

Independent non-executive directors have been appointed for a term subject

to retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s Bye-Laws.
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None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

During the year, the Group had transactions with certain directors of the
Company and certain companies in which directors of the Company have
interests, details of which are set out in note 56 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.
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As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of the directors
or chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which
are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:—

Interests in the shares

R-BRLE+ _A=+—H ARBEFHIT
BHEHR AR R REEREE (E& RE5 RS
EIEP ([EHRHEED]) BEXVER) Z 18
FAR D IR A ()R IBE S R IRGIH
XVEPET7 R 58 #f (BIERIEE S R B EDIE
FRIFSURE(FRA R TR 2R TORR) AHNE
ARABRERBBEZSHABR AT ([BHM]):
FUDIRIERE 7 & R 16 5 352 R R B AGX 51
Firte 2 B AL A S(ORIBE X FTRE 75 E AR A
(TEMRA) AZ EMBETAETLETESRR
SRR ([REFA]) AHEAR
Rz s FORRIAT : —

R 5z s

Approximate

Long position/ Nature Number of percentage of

Name of director Short position Capacity of interest shares held shareholding

Fi%E BREEZ R

BEEEB HE/ KA 54 EENE ROEE HED

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 150,000 0.01%

MR HE BHEAA (EVN: 323 150,000 0.01%
Interests in underlying shares under equity RBRATTETI AR EBARG 2

derivatives

The directors or chief executive of the Company have been granted options
under the share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”), details of

which are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme"” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Share Option Scheme

The Scheme which was approved and adopted by its shareholders on 3 May

2002 and amended on 27 May 2005, is valid and effective for a period of

10 years since the date of adoption until 2 May 2012.

Details of options granted and a summary of the movements of the

outstanding options under the Scheme during the year are as follows:

Eligible participant

AERAL

Director

Ez

Mr. Yu Kam Kee, Lawrence
(resigned on 1 December 2007)
(R=BZtE+-R—-AEf)

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit
FEMLE

Dr. Yap, Allan
Yap, Allanfé

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis
RAFLE

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard
BRREE

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
EIESyg

Mr. Sin Chi Fai
(resigned on 27 March 2007 and
appointed on 28 January 2008)
(R=ZTLE=R-TtREER
RZFENF-A=T/\REEH)

Employees
=

Eligible participants
RERAL

Outstanding
as at
1 January 2007

R-BSLE
-A-A

4,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

1,500,000

4,600,000

500,000

500,000

30,480,000

9,100,000

58,680,000

Granted
during
the year

REABRH

Number of share options
BREHA
Exercised Lapsed
during during
the year the year
RERTE RERXH
- 4,000,000
1,000,000 -
(Note 1)
(H321)
250,000 -
(Note 1)
(H321)
- 500,000
1,895,000 2,650,000
(Note 2)
(H322)
1,140,000 560,000
(Note 2)
(Mr3z2)
4,285,000 7,710,000

Cancelled
during
the year

REREH

BT

RZEEZ-_FRA=R AR ZBREEHER
Bzt al YR =TT hFRA -+ BED
B Zt B B R BB TERNERRERZE
B S 1 e =

BAE PG AR SRR B S B TR R AT 8 KO RARAR
2 ERHEEMT

Outstanding
asat  Exercise price
31 December 2007 per share Date of grant  Exercisable period
HKS
RZBRLE
+=B=+-H
WATE  BROKE  RAAH 8
AL
- 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
4,000,000 0728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
4,000,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
1,500,000 0728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
3,600,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
250,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
- 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
25,935,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
7,400,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
46,685,000



Notes:

1. The closing prices of the shares of the Company immediately before the
dates on which the share options were exercised by Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen,
Richard and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva during the year were HK$0.93.

2. The weighted average closing prices of the shares of the Company
immediately before the dates on which the share options were exercised
by employees and eligible participants during the year were HK$0.85 and
HK$0.93 respectively.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
employees, executives or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who will
contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Company or such

subsidiaries.

Subject to the condition that the total number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time, the total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject to any other schemes, is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the

date of approval and adoption of the Scheme.

As at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2005, an
ordinary resolution was passed to amend the Scheme so that the Scheme
sets out that when determining the “refreshed” 10% limit under the Scheme
as at the date of approval of the limit, options previously granted (i.e. before
the date of approval of the limit) under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with the schemes or exercised options) will not be

counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as “refreshed”.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme and other share option scheme(s) of the Company to any individual
in aggregate in any 12 month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s

shareholders.
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Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or any independent
non-executive director of the Company, or any of their respective associates
(as defined in Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules), would result in the number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted to such person in any 12 month period up to and including

the date of the grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue, and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares of

the Company on the date of grant in excess of HK$5 million,

such grant of options shall be subject to prior approval of the shareholders
of the Company who are not connected persons of the Company as defined

in the Listing Rules.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days of the date of offer. The
consideration payable for the options is HK$ 1. Options may be exercised at
any time from the date of acceptance of the share options to such date as
determined by the Board of Directors but in any event not exceeding 10
years. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the average closing price of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, (ii) the
closing price of the shares on the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value of

the shares of the Company.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 56,973,610 shares and represents 3.1% of the issued

share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year; and at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.
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Interests of the directors of the Company in competing businesses as at 31

December 2007 required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing

Rules were as follows:

Name of director

E=£H

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit

REGEE

Name of entity which
businesses are considered
to compete or likely to
compete with the
businesses of the Group

HERBARESRELZ
EBERFHR
THAREEZERER

ITC Properties Group
Limited (“ITC Properties”) and its
subsidiaries
ERuESBEERAR ([EEME])
REMRBAR

China Development Limited
hZBERERAT

Artnos Limited

HEBR AR

Co-Forward Development
Ltd.
BRERERAA

T

Description of businesses of
the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with the
businesses of the Group

HEEXBBARRTEEZ
EBARFHA
THARTEECERAR

Property investment in
Hong Kong

REBRREHERS

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REEREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REEREHERE

BB EMRAESI0FATHEARRNESZTN
BELF T AT - HRABRFMERB R

Nature of interest of
the director in the entity

ESRuER ERNE

Chairman of ITC Properties

BRHMEZTRE

Director and shareholder
BERRE
Director and shareholder
BEERRE
Director and shareholder

EERRR



Name of director

Exel

Name of entity which
businesses are considered
to compete or likely to
compete with the
businesses of the Group

HERBRAREEAKE L
EBERFMHR
THEARFE EREN

Orient Centre Limited
REERAF

Super Time Limited
BEERAR

Asia City Holdings Ltd
THEEBRARA
Supreme Best Ltd.

Supreme Best Ltd.

Orient Holdings Limited

RESEERAT

Description of businesses of

the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with the
businesses of the Group

HEBBARREEE L
BEHRF MU
THARF I ERAL

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REARFHERSE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REEREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Nature of interest of
the director in the entity

ESRuER ERNE

Shareholder

BR

Director and shareholder

BEERRR

Director and shareholder

BERRR

Shareholder

RR

Director and shareholder

BERBR



As at 31 December 2007, so far as was known to the directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than directors or
chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

(i) Interests in the shares

Name of Long position/
shareholder short position Capacity
BRREH B/ %R &t
(@  Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles  Long position Beneficial owner
(Note 2)
RE4EL e EnERA
(Ms22)
Long position Interest of controlled
corporations
2 FEsn AR
Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Long position Interest of spouse
(Note 2)
i) P #a AR
(F£2)
ITC Corporation Limited Long position Interest of controlled
(Note 2) corporations
ErrEREARAR 3 REHARNER
(H322)
ITC Investment Holdings Limited  Long position Interest of controlled
(Note 2) corporations
ITC Investment Holdings Limited & R NG

(H322)

=

\ZPTLFTASt—R RARTEFL
BRI A TAL (AR AEESTRER
K50 BRI RABRBRRD o B IR IR 5 R M

A

BOIZXVEE2 R E3D WENALTHE
e

() AR zES

Approximate

Nature Number of  percentage of
of interest shares held shareholding
\ B
BiME FsRH#E EIEp
Personal interest 4,529,800 0.25%
AR 4,529,800 0.25%
Corporate interest 399,692,481 21.95%
DS 399,692,481 21.95%
Spouse interest 404,222,281 22.20%
EEks 404,222,281 2220%
Corporate interest 399,692,481 21.95%
DAl 399,692,481 21.95%
Corporate interest 399,692,481 21.95%
INSIL 2 399,692,481 21.95%



Name of
shareholder

BRE®

Leaptop Investments Limited
(Note 2)

Leaptop Investments Limited
(W32)

Asia Will Limited
(Note 2)

FEARLT
(H322)

Mankar Assets Limited
(Note 2)

Mankar Assets Limited
(Wz2)

Famex Investment Limited
(Note 2)

HRERERRAA
(H322)

Hanny Holdings Limited
("Hanny Holdings")
(Note 2)

HAEEERAF
([hEEE])
(Rr3z2)

Long position/
short position

BR/ %R

Long position

2

Long position

He

Long position

e

Long position

H#e

Long position

Capacity
af

Interest of controlled
corporation
TEHARIES

Interest of controlled
corporation

SR INGIEL 5o

Interest of controlled
corporations
FEH AR ER

Interest of controlled
corporations
TEHARIES

Interest of controlled
corporations

EREL NG 5o

Nature
of interest

BENE

Corporate interest

B

AR

Beneficial owner

i}

TERAA

\

Corporate interest

AT

B

Corporate interest

B

A

Corporate interest

Number of
shares held

FrERH8E

166,181,000

166,181,000

166,181,000

166,181,000

233,511,481

233,511,481

233,511,481

233,511,481

233,511,481

233,511,481

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Rz
ER

9.13%

9.13%

9.13%

9.13%

12.82%

12.82%

12.82%

12.82%

12.82%

12.82%



Name of
shareholder

BRE%

Hanny Magnetics (B.V.1.)
Limited
("Hanny Magnetics")
(Note 2)

Hanny Magnetics (B.V.l.)
Limited
([Hanny Magnetics])
(3z2)

Cosmos Regent Ltd.
(Note 2)

Cosmos Regent Ltd.
(Fr322)

Powervote Technology
Limited ("Powervote")
(Note 2)

Powervote Technology
Limited ([Powervote])
(Wz22)

Well Orient Limited
("Well Orient")
(Note 2)

BmEBAR ([5R])
(W322)

Group Dragon Investments
Limited (“Group Dragon”)
(Note 2)

HEREERAR ([FE))
(H322)

Long position/
short position

BR/ %R

Long position

He

Long position

2

Long position

Long position

fFe

Long position

R

Capacity
af

Interest of controlled
corporations

ERL NG 5o

Beneficial owner

i}

FEREA

\

Interest of controlled
corporations

SN 5o

Interest of controlled
corporations

RENRAMES

Interest of controlled
corporations

RENARMES

Nature
of interest

BEME

Corporate interest

Corporate interest

A

B

Corporate interest

Corporate interest

DS

Corporate interest

Number of
shares held

FrERABE

233,511,481

233,511,481

172,772,000

172,772,000

22,339,481

22,339,481

22,339,481

22,339,481

22,339,481

22,339,481

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Rz #
NEAL

12.82%

12.82%

9.49%

9.49%

1.23%

1.23%

1.23%

1.23%

1.23%

1.23%



Name of
shareholder

BRE%

Group Dragon (B.V.I.)
Limited
("Group Dragon BVI")
(Note 2)

Group Dragon (B.V.I.)
Limited
([Group Dragon BVI))
(H322)

China Enterprises Limited
("CEL") (Note 2)

China Enterprises Limited
(TCEL)) (W3z2)

Long position/
short position

BR/ %R

Long position

Long position

e

Long position
HE

Capacity
af

Interest of controlled
corporations

KRN 5o

Interest of controlled
corporation
TEHARIES

Beneficial owner

sHEA

it

P

Nature
of interest

BENE

Corporate interest

Corporate interest

B

AR

Corporate interest
Nl S

Number of
shares held

FrERH8E

22,339,481

22,339,481

21,339,481

21,339,481

1,000,000
1,000,000

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Rz 8
NEAL

1.23%

1.23%

1.17%

1.17%

0.05%
0.05%



(i) Interests in underlying shares under equity (i) RRASTETIADEBRG 2/

derivatives
Number of
underlying  Approximate
shares (under percentage
unlisted equity  of the issued
Name of Long position/ Nature derivatives of share capital of
shareholder short position Capacity of interest the Company) the Company
KRG
(EARZ3k HARREE
ERAE BITRAZ
RER A HAEKE 54 ERE $TETR)®E BRBEI
(@) Mr. LiKa-shing (Note 1) Long position Founder of discretionary Corporate and other 253,164,556 13.90%

trusts and interest of interests
controlled corporations

EEHLE (W2l HAE 2REEEMHIA ARk AR 253,164,556 13.90%
e NG £

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Long position Trustee and beneficiary Other interest 253,164,556 13.90%
Corporation Limited (as of a trust
trustee of The Li Ka-Shing
Unity Discretionary Trust)
(Note 1)
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee e EEAREEXRA Hipgs 253,164,556 13.90%
Corporation Limited (fE&
The Li Ka-Shing Unity
Discretionary Trust
BIEFEA) (1)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Long position Trustee and beneficiary Other interest 253,164,556 13.90%
Trustcorp Limited of a trust
(as trustee of another
discretionary trust)
(Note 1)
Li Ka-Shing Unity e ERARETEZEA
Trustcorp Limited
(fERm—IARHE
ERMETA) (BE))

\

LA R 253,164,556 13.90%



Name of
shareholder

BRREE

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee
Company Limited (as

trustee of The Li Ka-Shing

Unity Trust) (Note 1)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee
Company Limited
(fEAThe Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trust

BIEFEA) (Baz1)

Cheung Kong (Holdings)
Limited ("CKH")
(Note 1)

RIEZR (5E) ERAA
(IRESE])
(H321)

Hutchison Whampoa
Limited ("HWL")
(Note 1)

MEBHERAF]
(TF&]) (K1)

Hutchison International
Limited (“HIL")
(Note 1)

Hutchison International
Limited ([HILI)
(221

Long position/
short position

R KR

Long position

Long position

Capacity

&1

Trustee

fRREA

Interest of controlled
corporations

XA A REER

Interest of a controlled
corporation

et NGl:L-d

Beneficial owner

EaEAA

Nature
of interest

EENEE

Other interest

it

Corporate interest

Corporate interest

NGl 5

Corporate interest

ARNER

Number of
underlying
shares (under
unlisted equity

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

derivatives of share capital of

the Company)
HERG

(€ N2
LA
PTETHR) A

253,164,556

253,164,556

253,164,556

253,164,556

253,164,556

253,164,556

253,164,556

253,164,556

the Company

EARDRE
BRITRAZ
BHABEDL

13.90%

13.90%

13.90%

13.90%

13.90%

13.90%

13.90%

13.90%



Name of
shareholder

RREE

(b)

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles (Note 2)
BREIEEL (Fax2)

Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy
(Note 2)
ML (e22)

ITC Corporation Limited
(Note 2)

BEREEREEERAA
(H3£2)

[TC Investment Holdings
Limited (Note 2)

ITC Investment Holdings
Limited (F#£2)

Mankar Assets Limited
(Note 2)

Mankar Assets Limited
(Tfz22)

Famex Investment Limited
(Note 2)

HEREBRAR
(Fz22)

Hanny Holdings (Note 2)

EEE (WE2)

Long position/
short position

R KA

Long position

Long position

)

Long position

3}

Long position

i)

Long position

e

Long position

3}

Capacity

14

Interest of controlled
corporation
RN RIER

Interest of spouse

Eifg s

Interest of controlled
corporation
R AR ER

Interest of controlled
corporation
X AR ER

Interest of controlled
corporation
RN RIER

Interest of controlled
corporation
R AR ER

Interest of controlled
corporations
R AR ER

Nature
of interest

EEME

Corporate interest

NGl 5

Spouse interest

Eff

Corporate interest

AL S

Corporate interest

Corporate interest

NGl 5

Corporate interest

Number of
underlying
shares (under
unlisted equity
derivatives of
the Company)
HER G
(ERARZ3*
EHRAE
TETA)®E
79,746,835
79,746,835
79,746,835
79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
share capital of
the Company

EARDRE
BRITRAZ
BOED

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%



Name of
shareholder

BRREE

Hanny Magnetics
(Note 2)

Hanny Magnetics
(H3£2)

Powervote (Note 2)
Powervote (ff#£2)
Well Orient (Note 2)

B (F322)

Group Dragon (Note 2)
BiEE (Wa22)

Group Dragon BVI
(Note 2)

Group Dragon BVI
(R322)

CEL (Note 2)
CEL (H322)

Gandhara Advisors Asia Ltd.

(beneficial owner is
Grandhara Master
Fund Ltd.)

Gandhara Advisors Asia Ltd.

(E%=%%E ABGandhara
Master Fund Ltd.)

Long position/
short position

R KR

Long position

i)

Long position

Long position

3}

Long position

i)

Long position

Capacity

&1

Interest of controlled
corporations
RN RIES

Interest of controlled
corporations
R AR ER

Interest of controlled
corporations
XA B M ER

Interest of controlled
corporations
X AR ER

Interest of controlled
corporations
XA R ER

Beneficial owner
EnEEA

Investment manager

REKE

Nature
of interest

EENEE

Corporate interest

AR

Corporate interest

AL S

Corporate interest

AL F

Corporate interest

Corporate interest
NEER

Corporate interest

NS

Number of
underlying
shares (under
unlisted equity

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

derivatives of share capital of

the Company)
HERG

(€ N2
LA
PTETHR) A

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

79,746,835

234,177,215

234,177,215

the Company

EARDRE
BRITRAZ
BHABEDL

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

4.38%

12.86%

12.86%



Notes:

M

Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited, of which each of Mr. Li Ka-Shing, Mr.
Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard is interested in one-third of
the entire issued share capital, owns the entire issued share capital of
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited. Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee
Company Limited as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust, together with
certain companies which Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited as
trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust is entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at their general

meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of CKH.

In addition, Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited also owns the entire issued
share capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1") as
trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust (“DT1") and Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2") as trustee of another discretionary
trust (“DT2"). Each of TDT1 and TDT2 holds units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trust. The discretionary beneficiaries of DT1 and DT2 are, inter alia, Mr. Li

Tzar Kuoi, Victor, his wife and children and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard.

Certain subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the exercise
of one-third or more of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL.
HWL holds the entire issued share capital of HIL.

By virtue of the SFO, HWL, CKH, Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited,
TDT1, TDT2 and Mr. Li Ka-Shing who is the settlor and may be regarded as
a founder of each of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the SFO, are all
deemed to be interested in 253,164,556 underlying Shares (in respect of
unlisted equity derivatives of the Company) held by HIL.

MyaE:

(M

TR E DRERERT BB TESBHAL
Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited 2 & B 31 TA& X
2=z —Hxm Mz ARABEAL Ka-Shing
Unity Trustee Company Limited 2 &f 2 #1TAG AR
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company LimitedAThe
Li Ka-Shing Unity TrustiSst A2 510 ERAE T
RAEHBFERBEEE=D 22— U EZBETR
K- fiLi Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited
IAThe Li Ka-Shing Unity TrustiZsEA 2 10 B #
EZERRZBRRAE HTRFEGITE=S2
—NEZRERE-

It 51> Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited 77 &
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited
([TDT1]) (#EAThe Li Ka-Shing Unity
Discretionary Trust ([DT1]) Z{55EA) BAKLi Ka-
Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited ([TDT2]) (fE&%
—IREREFE ([DT2)) ZE5EA) 22 HE BT
f&Z-TDT1 R TDT2%#5 A The Li Ka-Shing Unity
TrustZ {E57E8 A °DT1 RDT22 Al g A B (K
hEE) FRERE ERBR T UARFEE
et

RESEZETHBRARABRRTIEZRRAE
EFRREHIITE=52 — A L2 R
BERAHILZ 282 BT

REEFRPEGRD-FE REESE Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited ~ TDT1 *
TDT2RFFZMELE BWR AP ER T ARMES
KB E GG = - AT BERRAR ADT1 RDT2 2 3L
AN) R BRHILESA 2 253,164,556 A REAL
7 (BEARAFFLTRATETR) hEF#

25



Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 23 March 2006 and entered
into between HIL and the Company, HIL conditionally agreed to subscribe
at completion of the subscription agreement a 2% convertible exchangeable
note due 2011 (the “HIL Note”) issued by the Company with a principal
amount of HK$200,000,000. Completion of the subscription agreement
took place on 8 June 2006. According to the terms of the HIL Note, on
exercise in full of the conversion right attached thereto, a total of
253,164,556 new shares will be issued and allotted at an initial conversion

price of HK$0.79 per share (subject to adjustment).

21,339,481 shares are held by a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEL which
also held 1,000,000 shares and in turn is owned as to approximately 55.22 %
effective equity interest by Group Dragon BVI. Group Dragon BVI is
wholly-owned by Group Dragon which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Well Orient. Well Orient is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Powervote which
in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanny Magnetics. Cosmos Regent
Ltd. and Cyber Generation Limited held 172,772,000 shares and 38,400,000
shares respectively and are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Hanny Magnetics.
Hanny Magnetics is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanny Holdings which
in turn is owned as to approximately 49.93% by Famex Investment Limited
and 0.47% by Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (“Dr. Chan"). Famex
Investment Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mankar Assets Limited
which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment Holdings
Limited. ITC Investment Holdings Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
ITC Corporation Limited. Dr. Chan directly held approximately 4.75% of
the issued share capital of ITC Corporation Limited and indirectly held
approximately 29.82 % of the issued share capital of ITC Corporation Limited
through his indirect wholly-owned company, Galaxyway Investments

Limited. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy is the wife of Dr. Chan.

Asia Will Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leaptop Investments
Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment

Holdings Limited.

Dr. Yap, Allan and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, executive directors of the
Company, are also the executive directors of Hanny Holdings. Mr. Kwok
Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, independent non-executive
directors of the Company, are also the independent non-executive directors

of Hanny Holdings.

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, an executive director of the Company, is also an

executive director of ITC Corporation Limited.

@)

BEBEHILEAARFIZ BB AZTTRF=AC
T=H2ZREHZE HLE BG4 RERRE
FTEEREEARARRBITASER
200,000,000 TR = F——F 2|82 2% A4

MRAT IR IR (THILE K] ) - REE s
NERNANB TR IRIBHILEIR 2 G50 IRBE
TEZE BB 2 KGR BRI 5 HiaE
FAR0. 798 (A THAR) BARREES K
253,164,556 % 5%

SN _—EZ

—==

~L

N

#T

21,339,481 BRAR(H ACELZ 2 EMB A RIFEAE - M
CELJR#5%1,000,000% 8% - CELBIE Group
Dragon BVI# & #55.22 % BB IR A #Ez - Group
Dragon BVITIEEF SRR B A MBEEARMRZ
2 EAWEA R B R APowervote 2 2 EMBE A
@) PowervoteBl| AHanny Magnetics Z 2 & I8
A A]Cosmos Regent Ltd. )2 Cyber Generation
Limited 5 BI#H172,772,000 A% K&
38,400,000% 8% 17 - 15 & AHanny Magnetics,Z &
EH B AT -Hanny Magnetics 287 BEE - 24
MELR migEBREFREERATRERE
seiEL ([RRIEL]) S RIHEAK49.93% K0.47%
Wz H IR A AR A 7] AMankar Assets Limited
2 2 EWIBE AR fiMankar Assets Limited Il &
ITC Investment Holdings Limited 2 2 &K B A &)
ITC Investment Holdings Limited A&t (> ¥ & E
BERABZ2EWB AT -RIETEEFFEER
EEEERARZBEETRALL75% » WiE
BEME2EQRGalaxyway Investments
Limited EHERF AR EEBABR AR BT
IRAN%929.82% o (I Z L RAREL 2 EF-

BEBR AT JiLeaptop Investments Limited 2.
2EMBRAR MEERITC
Holdings LimitedZ 2 & M8 A 7

Investment
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, the directors or chief
executive of the Company were not notified of any other persons who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would be required to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31

December 2007.

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in

Bermuda.

The aggregate amount of purchases and turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and customers were less than 30% of the total value

of the Group’s purchases and turnover respectively.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing

Rules.

BEXEREEN R-_FTLF+—_A=+—81"
ARRERHITHARL BB EMA L
RARBHEETEEER (ERRESFLHE
EGIEXVER) 2Bt MR ESFHEFR
BE S KB GRAIEXVEAR AR R RER AT
WEZ SRR

RRARFEEMMEARNBE -—TZLF+ =
A=t+—RALFEARERE HEHXBERAL
AEf LRS-

HABREARELEHBTEEEINARSI HE
AR AR TR A BA% SR 2 153

REBAAREEEREP 2 5RE R EEEE D
DRI EIRIE S & BER 2 30% ©

RIBARAR A RFHES 2ERRIBESHRA RN
ARERH RNRARABLTRAREZRHA

BHEE-



During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to

HK$79,000.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company

to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHEUNG HON KIT
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Hong Kong, 25 April 2008
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WING ON TRAVEL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wing On Travel
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 180, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;

and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2007 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 April 2008
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Turnover
Direct operating costs

Gross profit

Investment income
Other income
Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Finance costs
Reversal of impairment loss in respect of
leasehold land and buildings
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
properties under construction
Share of results of associates
Share of result of a jointly
controlled entity
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
loan and interest receivables
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investments
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of goodwill
Loss on disposal of properties
under construction
Decrease in fair value of
investments held for trading
Increase in fair value of
derivative financial instruments
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries

Loss before taxation
Taxation credit

Profit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent
Minority interests

Dividends

Loss per share
— Basic and diluted
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2007
HK$'000
—BELF
FET

2,266,163
(1,849,528)

416,635

30,484

8,657
(51,835)
(337,744)
(139,123)

2,137

(44,891)

(650)

(14,534)

(6,440)

(11,214)

(19,600)

(7,143)

3,783

82,265
(274)

47,344

(42,143)
46,631

4,488

(16,199)
20,687

4,488
11,908
HK$
BT

(0.02)

2006
HK$'000
ZETRF

THET

1,992,354
(1,636,455)

355,899

31,789

5,663
(52,888)
(287,401)
(98,650)

894

(3,800)
(19)

(19,902)

(5,808)

(7,172)

100

(81,295)
1,891

(79,404)

(71,748)
(7,656)

(79,404)
9,188
HK$
BT

(0.13)



Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Interests in associates
Interest in a jointly controlled entity
Available-for-sale investments
Goodwiill
Other intangible assets
Investment deposits and other assets
Club debentures, at cost

Current assets
Property held for sale, at cost
Inventories

Amounts due from related companies

Amounts due from associates
Trade and other receivables
Loan receivables

Loans to related companies
Derivative financial instruments
Investments held for trading
Tax recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Trading cash balances

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Loans from related companies

Amounts due to associates

Tax liabilities

Amounts due to related companies

Obligations under finance leases
— amount due within one year

Borrowings
— amount due within one year

Promissory note

Consideration note

Amounts due to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Liabilities associated with assets classified
as held for sale
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15
16
17
18
19
20
22
23

24
25
26
27
28
30
31
29

32852

32
32

33

34
35
26
36
37
38
39
40

41

33

2007
HK$'000
—BELF
FET

2,300,940
174,938
66,144
6,329
249,992
12,705
466,286
279,864
713

3,557,911

9,283
64,583
239,145
481,574
94,349
30,000
5,972
27,531
11,916
273
198,774

1,163,400
92,314

1,255,714

426,936
277,045
12,749
2,105
54,544

45
88,753
106,455
21,545

98,761

1,088,938

21,019

1,109,957

2006
HK$'000
ZETRF

FET

1,698,374

74,034
72,732
44,213
165,500
713

2,055,566

98
7,429
59,465
28,763
431,635
372,480

7,126
21
11,436
295
555,229

1,473,977
305,339

1,779,316

308,984
106,324
13,350

193,282
31

59,269

681,240

170

681,410



Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases
— amount due after one year
Borrowings
— amount due after one year
Convertible notes

Deferred taxation

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Equity attributable to shareholders
of the parent

Minority interests

Total equity
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 180 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 April 2008 and are

signed on its behalf by:

CHEUNG HON KIT
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dr. YAP, ALLAN
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

2007 2006

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—BLE BL i
G FHT FHT
145,757 1,097,906
3,703,668 3,153,472
37 165 -
38 366,659 406,480
42 554,215 810,026
43 220,102 250,179
1,141,141 1,466,685
2,562,527 1,686,787
44 182,076 61,059
46 1,862,406 1,194,253
2,044,482 1,255,312
518,045 431,475
2,562,527 1,686,787

BN FISEEF180E 2GRV REREN =
ZN\EFENA-+RHAEESSIERRETZ
WHTHESREES:

TEH s
RIEH

HATEE
YAP, ALLANfE



At 1 January 2006

Exchange difference arising on
translation of financial statements
of operations outside Hong Kong
recognised directly in equity

Loss for the year

Total recognised income and expense
for the year

Reduction in share capital

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

Recognition of equity component
of convertible notes

Share repurchase

Share repurchase expense

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2006

Exchange difference arising on
translation of financial statements
of operations outside Hong Kong
recognised directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total recognised income and expense
for the year

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

Shares issued on exercise of
share options

Conversion into shares from
convertible notes

Disposal of subsidiaries

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Release of statutory reserves

Issue of shares on scrip dividend

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2007
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Share
capital
HK$'000

e
TAR

437,586

(393,827)
17,500

75,000

428

45,570

182,076

Share
premium
HK$'000

B &R
TER

103,250
(634)

(900)
(1)

101,705

405,000
(12,080)

3837

329,892

150

828,504

Attributable to shareholders of the parent

Spedial
reserve
HK$'000
(Note 46)

ST
Tir
(i)

258,463

393,827

652,290

652,290

BARRRER
Share Convertible
options notes Translation
reserve  reserve  reserve
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ik
BRERE RERR EXRS
i Thn Thn
- - 9,087
- - 2,122
- - 2,122
12,006 - -
- 205139 -
12,006 205,139 30,209
- - 4533
- - 453
2,924 - -
(1,146) - -
- (13.85) -
13,784 131,289 nm

Statutory  Retained
reserves profits
HK$'000  HK§'000
EERE  REEN

Tgn  TEn
150 273,690
- (71,748)

- (71,748)

= (9,188)
150 192,754
- (16,199

- (16,199
(150) 150
- (11,908)

- 164,797

Total
HK$'000

i

ThRL

978,976

21122
(71,748)

(50,626)
120,750
(634)
12,006
205,139
(1,100)

(1
(9,188)

1,255,312

41,533
(16,199)
25,334

480,000
(12,080)

2924

169
(11,908)

2,044,482

Minority
interests
HK$'000
SHBR
R
Fitn

435,068

10,068

(7,656)

2412

(6,005)

431475

18,827
20,687

39,514

(124,237)
177,299

(6,006)

Total
HK$'000

ol

ThL

1,414,044

31,190
(79,404)

(48,214)
120,750
(634)
12,006
205,139
(1,100)
(1)
(9,188)
(6,005)

1,686,787

60,360
4,488
64,848

480,000
(12,080)

2924
3,119
301,612
(124,237
177,299

169
(11,908)

(6,006)

518,045 2,562,527



Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:

Share of results of associates

Share of results of a jointly
controlled entity

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Interest income

Interest expenses

Finance lease charges

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of properties under

construction

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Allowance for inventories

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of loan and interest receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect

of goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of properties under construction
Reversal of impairment loss in respect

of leasehold land and buildings
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries

Effective interest expenses of
convertible notes

Decrease in fair value of investments

held for trading

Increase in fair value of derivative

financial instruments
Employee share option expenses
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

investments
Loss on disposal of properties
held for sale

Amortisation of other intangible assets

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital
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2007
HK$'000
Y
B

(42,143)
44,891
650
58,455

(30,484)
77,255
1
1,839
19,600
3,974
1,381
14,534

6,440

11,214

(2,137)
(47,344)

61,857
7,143
(3.783)
2,924
(82,265)
274

(564)

68
2,608

106,398

2006
HK$'000
ZETREF
F#T

(81,295)

19

52,912
(31,789)
56,971

16

2,944

737

19,902

5,808

3,800

(894)

41,663

7,172

12,006

89,972



Movements in working capital

Increase in investments held for trading

Increase in inventories
Increase in amounts due
from related companies

Increase in amounts due from associates

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease) increase in amounts due

to associates
Decrease in amounts due to

related companies

Cash generated from operations
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid
Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Earnest money paid

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Advances to associates

Cash outflow of loans advanced to
certain companies and individuals

Purchase of available-for-sale
investments

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Payment for investment deposits

(Advances to) repayment
from related companies

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Repayment of loans advanced to
certain companies

Repayment from (advances to)
other receivables

Disposal of subsidiaries

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Deposit received for the disposal of
assets classified as held for sale

Proceed from disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Proceeds from disposal of
properties held for sale

Proceeds from disposal of
investment properties

Net cash used in investing activities
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2007
HK$'000
—BELF
FET

(27,549)
(2,228)
(5.066)
(3,633)

(79,813)
89,840

(601)

(39,094)
(68,144)

38,254
(30)
21

38,245

(356,017)
(239,968)
(236,279)
(219,142)
(183,700)

(101,469)
(84,864)

(30,000)
(481)

476,194
323,112
226,200
30,484
21,897
3,500

570

30

(369,933)

2006
HK$'000
ZETRF

FET

(8,917)
(1,316)

(694)

(5,988)
31,616

2,504
(41,267)
(24,062)

65,910
(39)

65,871

(4,671)

(500,405)

(17,684)
6,406
(4,511)
276,867
(86,976)
(466)

31,789

999

4,019

(294,633)



Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of bank loans and other loans

(Repayment to) advance from
a related company

Interest paid

Share issue expenses

Dividends paid

Repayment of amounts due to
minority shareholders

Dividends paid to minority shareholders

of subsidiaries
Repayment of obligations under
finance leases
Finance lease charges paid
Proceeds from issue of new shares
for cash
New bank loans and other loans raised
Net cash inflow (outflow) from loans
from related companies

Proceeds from issue of convertible notes

Convertible notes issue expenses
Repayment of promissory note
Repurchase of shares

Net cash (used in) from financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

Represented by:
Bank balances and cash
Bank balances and cash included
in assets classified as held for sale
Trading cash balances
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2007
HK$'000
—BELF
FET

(666,968)

(171,260)
(93,313)
(12,080)
(11,739)

(8,612)

(6,006)

(42)
(11

483,119
365,930

94,470

(26,512)

(358,200)

555,524
2,086

199,410

198,774

363
273

199,410

2006
HK$'000
ZETRF

THET

(33,884)

171,260
(68,308)
(634)
(9,188)

(6,005)

(62)
(16)

120,750
190,000

(240,176)
1,000,000
(15,160)
(365,000)
(1,111)

742,466

513,704

43,387
(1,567)

555,524

555,229

295

555,524



The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in

the corporate information of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars which is the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the business of providing package tours,
travel and other related services, hotel operation and trading of

securities.
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In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the

following new standard, amendment and interpretations (“new

HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group’s financial

year beginning 1 January 2007.

Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS")
1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7

Hong Kong (International
Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee)
— Interpretations

("HK(IFRIC) = Int") 7

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9

HK(IFRIC) — Int 10

Capital Disclosures

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Applying the Restatement
Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in

Hyperinflationary Economies

Scope of HKFRS 2

Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the

results and financial position for the current or prior accounting periods

have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period

adjustment has been required.
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The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under HKAS 1
(Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain information
presented in prior year under the requirements of HKAS 32 has been
removed and the relevant comparative information based on the
requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has been presented

for the first time in the current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendment or interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements’

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs’

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements?

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations’

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share

Transactions’

HK(IFRIC) = Int 12 Service Concession Arranagements?
HK(IFRIC) = Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes®
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their

Interaction?
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L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1
July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control, which will be accounted for as equity
transactions. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new or revised standards, amendment or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the

financial position of the Group.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing

Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date

of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All inter-company transactions and balances within the Group are

eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests
in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity
are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an

additional investment to cover the losses.
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Business combinations

The acquisition of business is accounted for using the purchase method.
The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values at

the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If,
after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds
the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured
at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities

and contingent liabilities recognised.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations of
another entity for which the agreement date is before 1 January 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant

acquiree at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisition after 1 January
2001, the Group has discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005
onwards, and such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to which

the goodwill relates may be impaired (see the accounting policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for which the agreement
date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant business at
the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any

accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is presented

separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Goodwill (Continued)
Impairment testing on capitalised goodwill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is

not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the

determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Excess of an acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost
(“discount on acquisition”)

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a business for
which an agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the
excess of the net fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of the business combination.

Discount on acquisition is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence

and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments

on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the

investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the

relevant associate.
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Joint ventures
Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity

of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
net assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of

the investment.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s

interest in the jointly controlled entity.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales

related taxes.

Income from tour and travel services and other travel related services is
recognised when the services are rendered. Revenue from sale of air

tickets is recoginsed when the tickets are delivered.

Hotel revenue from rooms and other ancillary services are recognised

when the services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset's net carrying amount.

Income from disposal of investments is recognised when the risks and

rewards of the ownership of the investments have been transferred.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered

and title has been passed.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes other than properties under construction and construction
in progress are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than properties under construction and
construction in progress over their estimated useful lives, using the

straight line method.

Construction in progress includes plant and equipment in the course
of installation or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is
carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other plant and equipment, commences

when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated

useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

Properties under construction are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes all development expenditure and other
direct costs attributable to such projects. Properties under construction
are not depreciated until completion of construction. Cost on completed
properties is transferred to other categories of property, plant and

equipment.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The land and buildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are
considered separately for the purposes of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated

as a finance lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is

derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities

at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set out

below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near future; or

e itisa part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets held for trading are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any

dividend earn on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including amounts due from related companies, amounts
due from associates, trade and other receivables, loan receivables, loan
to related companies, pledged bank deposits, trading cash balance,
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses. (See

accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and

receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition.

(See accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the

estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, loan receivables and amounts due from related companies,
amounts due from associates and loans to related companies, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited

to profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s

financial liabilities are generally classified as other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life

of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both the liability
and conversion option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is

classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds of the issue of
the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the holder to
convert the notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible notes

reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible notes
is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component, represented by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible notes reserve until the conversion option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve will
be transferred to share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible notes
reserve will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the period of the convertible notes

using the effective interest method.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, loans from
related companies, amounts due to associates, amounts due to related
companies, borrowings, promissory note consideration note and
amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit

or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised

and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present

condition.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal groups’) previous carrying

amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is calculated at the actual or estimated selling

price less related costs of marketing and selling.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal

of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred

tax is also dealt with in equity.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight line basis over their estimated useful

lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated

income statement when the asset is derecognised.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight line basis.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
re-translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
re-translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange

differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations outside Hong Kong
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date, and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the translation reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including state-managed retirement benefit schemes and/or the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, are charged as an expense when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees of the
Group and other eligible participants

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase

in equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share

options reserve.
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Equity settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to directors, employees of the
Group and other eligible participants (Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in

share options reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve.

Other eligible participants represent individuals who rendered services
to the Group and the services rendered are similar to those rendered

by employees.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2007, an
impairment loss of HK$11,214,000 (2006: HK$5,808,000) was
recognised and the carrying amount of goodwill was written down to
HK$12,705,000. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are

disclosed in note 21.

Estimated impairment of other intangible assets

At 31 December 2007, the carrying amount of other intangible assets
was approximately HK$466,286,000 (2006: Nil). When there is
impairment indicator, the Group takes into consideration the estimation
of future cash flows to be generated from use of the intangible asset.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at a suitable discount rate. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment

loss may arise.

At 31 December 2007, the directors of the Company assessed that no

indication of impairment on the other intangible assets exist.
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Depreciation of hotel properties

The Group’s carrying amount of hotel properties as at 31 December
2007 was approximately HK$1,826,153,000. The Group depreciates
the hotel properties on a straight line basis over their remaining
unexpired terms of the leases. It reflects the directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive economic benefits from the
use of the Group’s hotel properties. During the year, the useful lives of
the hotel properties have been reviewed and these estimates are
considered to be appropriate. Included in the above amount is a hotel
property with a carrying amount of approximately HK$221,357,000
of which a subsidiary of the Company has been granted the right to
operate and manage the hotel in Guangzhou, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") for a period from January 1987 to January 2017,
and subject to certain conditions to be fulfilled by the subsidiary, the
operating period may be extended for a further period of 20 years.
Should the conditions not be fulfilled, the depreciation period of the
hotel properties would be adjusted and up to January 2017 only. During
the year, the estimated useful life of 40 years of this hotel property has

been reviewed, and these estimates are considered to be appropriate.

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable from outside
customers, less trade discounts and returns during the year. An analysis

of the Group’s turnover is as follows:

Iie & AR R AR TS (P 5E)
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Travel and related services (Note)

Hotel and leisure services

Note:Included in the turnover of travel and related services is turnover in
respect of sale of air tickets of HK$254,354,000 (2006:
HK$249,704,000)
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Business segments ES Sk

During the year, for management purposes, the Group was organised RERN BHEEERRE ANEBEEH AWM
into two operating divisions — travel and related services, and hotel EZEREBFT - 95 Bl A hkie I AR B AR 7% BB 5
and leisure services. These divisions are the basis on which the Group MBI RIS 2 EH I AERREELTE
reports its primary segment information. DERE R B
Segment information about these businesses is presented as follows: REXBZ OBEERMEINT:
Travel Hotel
and related and leisure
services services  Elimination Consolidated
3353 BIER
FEBARR 5 R B AR S ESE ] wEe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FExT FExT FExT
For the year ended BE-_ZZtHF
31 December 2007 +TZA=+—HLEE
Turnover EER
External sales HINEE 1,993,792 272,371 - 2,266,163
Inter-segment sales HrIEHEHE - 159 (159) =
Total a5t 1,993,792 272,530 (159) 2,266,163

Inter-segment sales are charged ZERIR$S & &EA T EBR-
at prevailing market price.

Results £
Amount excluding impairment £ (NEIEEE 2 E#R

loss recognised EEE)

in respect of goodwill 45,681 38,647 - 84,328
Impairment loss recognised ARz EWRAREEE

in respect of goodwill (11,214) - - (11,214)
Segment results Par 34,467 38,647 - 73,114
Interest income FLEWA 30,484
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B ARz K - 82,265 - 82,265
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries H&HB AR 2 &2 (274) - - (274)
Discount on acquisition of WM B AR 2 IR

subsidiaries - 47,344 - 47,344
Impairment loss recognised AHHEREZ

in respect of available-for-sale B FERBIEE 12

investments (6,440)
Decrease in fair value of REEEREZ

investments held for trading NHEERD (7,143)
Increase in fair value of EERIAEZ

derivative financial instruments 2 F{B{EE N 3,783
Loss on disposal of properties  HEERZYE Z B8

under construction (19,600)
Unallocated corporate expenses KD Fe %5 X (61,012)
Finance costs AR AR (139,123)
Share of results of associates ~ FE{EHE & A7) ELE (44,891) - - (44,891)
Share of result of a jointly JEE—RERIEHER XA

controlled entity (650) - - (650)
Loss before taxation BRESRIESIE (42,143)
Taxation credit THIERE DO 46,631

Profit for the year RN E A 4,488



Business segments (Continued)

At 31 December 2007

ASSETS
Segment assets

Interests in associates

Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Unallocated corporate assets
Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts
Allowance for inventories
Amortisation of
other intangible assets
Capital additions
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of goodwill
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of properties

held for sale

R-EBtE+ZA=+—8H

HKFEIEHIE S 2 s

NERE

AOEEEAERE

FEREE
Hip B A E 2 i

BN
M R RBREZITE

ARz ERERRERE

HEME HERMREZER

HEFENEZER

(¥ (E)
Travel and Hotel and
related leisure
services services
HK$°000 HK$'000
R BIER
1EBARR TS IR B AR S
FA&T FET
1,489,451 2,023,693
66,144 -
6,329 -
404,152 85,743
= 3,974
1,381 -
2,608 =
907,551 246,232
7,364 51,091
11,214 =
1,152 687

68

Consolidated
HK$'000

o
TR

3,513,144
66,144
6,329
1,228,008

4,813,625

489,895
1,761,203

2,251,098

3,974
1,381

2,608
1,153,783

58,455

11,214

1,839

68



Business segments (Continued)

For the year ended

31 December 2006

Turnover
External sales

Inter-segment sales
Total

Inter-segment sales are charged

at prevailing market price.

Results

Amount excluding impairment
loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Impairment loss recognised

in respect of goodwill
Segment results

Interest income
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of available-for-sale
investments
Decrease in fair value of
investments held for trading
Unallocated corporate expenses
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Loss before taxation

Taxation credit

Loss for the year
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Travel Hotel

and related and leisure
services services
i35 BIE R

TR A AR5 IR RS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
1,740,656 251,698
- 168
1,740,656 251,866
16,956 40,923
(5,808) -
11,148 40,923
4,771) 4,752

Elimination

HK$'000
TET

(168)

(168)

Consolidated

)
HK$'000
THET

1,992,354

1,992,354

57,879

(5,808)

52,071

31,789

(19,902)

(7.172)
(39,412)
(98,650)

(19)

(81,295)
1,891

(79,404)



Business segments (Continued) k%oE (&)

At 31 December 2006

ASSETS
Segment assets
Interest in associates

Unallocated corporate assets
Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts
Capital additions
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss in respect of
properties under construction
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of goodwill arising

from acquisition of subsidiaries

Travel and Hotel and
rela_ted Ieis_ure
HKSO00 P00
MR EER
BRI IR AR RS
FHT FHT
R=ZZBRF+=H=+—H
BE
DEEE 587,780 1,981,913
NN o 74,034 =
KOMBEEE
REBERE
afE
DEEE 252,814 58,947
RAOBBEERE
e aEeE
Hiegx
REZRERE
737 =
BRI 6,651 11,033
M BERREINE
6,843 46,069
HEME MBREREL
(Yezs) 518 (18) 2,962
TR 2 R ERE
= 3,800
WEMBRAREEmEY
BERAEEE
5,808 =

Consolidated
HK$'000

=8
FET

2,569,693
74,034
1,191,155

3,834,882

311,761
1,836,334

2,148,095

737
17,684

52,912

2,944

3,800

5,808
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Geographical segments

Approximately 90% of the Group’s revenues were derived from Hong
Kong. The following table provides an analysis of the Group's revenue
by geographic market based on location of customers, irrespective of

the origin of the services:

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

—BBtLEF —EEAE

FET FHT

The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) HE (TNEREERH) 184,279 163,606
Hong Kong BE 2,038,982 1,795,216
Others =) 42,902 33,532
2,266,163 1,992,354

DREERTERYE K NRE BE
REMBVEEZ NEREEMR 2R

by the geographical area in which the assets are located is as follows: AAITEAT :

The analysis of carrying amount of segment assets and additions to

property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets

Additions to
property, plant and

Carrying amount
of segment assets

equipment, goodwill and
other intangible assets

2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ME BERRE EER

AREEZREE HEMEEERE
—EBRLE  C—TTNF —BELE  —TTRAF
Fi# FiT Fi# FisT
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) F B (TN E1EEH) 2,148,051 1,009,589 1,071,814 8,656
Hong Kong B 1,349,547 1,181,256 12,333 8,997
South-east Asia REdn 12,810 354,160 68,917 10
Japan and Korea HARREE - 22,551 - =
Others Eh 2,736 2,137 719 21

3,513,144 2,569,693

1,153,783 17,684



Interest income on:
Bank deposits
Loan receivables

Loans to related companies

An analysis of the Group’s

other income is as follows:

Exchange gain

Gain on disposal of

available-for-sale investments

Sundry income

Interest on obligations under finance leases

Interest on borrowings wholly

repayable within five years

Effective interest on convertible notes

Interest on promissory note

and consideration note

Total finance costs

Less: amounts capitalised

RETHEEZMBHA:
RITFR
FEUE 5K

BTHELRIZER

REEH 2 BB ADHIAT

b 3 Ui

HERHEERE 2 s

FETRUIA

BB RRA 2 A2 F R

AREFRAEHEREEZHNE

ABRREZ BEHE
EHEBRRRERBEZME

ERERAR
B B EAMEFR

2007
HK$'000
—EELHF
FET

4,086
23,718
2,680

30,484

2007
HK$'000
—BBtHE
FER

58

564

8,035

8,657

2007
HK$'000
—BRLF
FTET

1

91,392

61,857

3,205

156,465
(17,342)

139,123

2006
HK$'000
ZEERF

TR

2,798
28,991

31,789

2006
HK$'000
ZETRF

THET

92

5,571

5,663

2006
HK$'000
—ETRF

FET

16

40,949
41,663

16,022

98,650

98,650



Loss before taxation

has been arrived at after charging:

Depreciation for property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of other intangible assets

(included in cost of sales)
Total depreciation and amortisation

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Allowance for inventories
Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of properties held for sale
Minimum lease payments paid in respect of
rented premises and equipment
Share of tax of associates (included
in share of results of associates)

Staff costs

and after crediting:

Gross rental income from hotel

properties less outgoings of

HK$694,000 (2006: HK$538,000)

BRI EIRE HIRR T 5 i :

M B RREZITE

Hp B8 E 2 i
(BEREEKAR)

FERBHER

REEFREA

FEREE

EREN B &
ERARIHEZHEERA
HEYF HEE MR ER

HEFEMEZER
ENHEMERREZ
RIEHEE R
eGSR 2N R THIR
(BREREGBERREEN)
REA

WEFA:

H}694,00058 7T 3% H

(=TT /N5 :538,000/7T) B2
TEEME LW ALEE

2007
HK$'000
—EELF
FET

58,455

2,608

61,063

3,974
1,381
4,692
32,590

1,839
68

25,831

1,070
169,901

17,258

2006
HK$'000
ZEERF

TET

52,912

52,912

737

4,175
26,794

2,944

23,711

M
149,964

14,180



Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the directors are

as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2007

Executive directors:

Mr. Yu Kam Kee, Lawrence
B.B.S., M.B.E., J.P.
(resigned on
1 December 2007)

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit
(Note 1)

Dr. Yap, Allan (Note 1)

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung,
Natalis
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard

Independent non-executive

directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
(appointed on
27 March 2007)

Mr. Sin Chi Fai
(resigned on
27 March 2007)

Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph
(resigned on
31 October 2007)

HTES:

RIS
B.B.S., M.B.E., J.P.
(R=TBLF
+=A—ARE)

FRAEE (D)

Yap, Allant& £
(1)
BRE#LE

BkREE

BUIFNTES:

Bl AVt
EEE S L
(R=ZT+tHF
“RB=t+tHEZRT)
R
(RZTTtHF
=R +tHEE)
BEERELAE
(R=ZZT+F
+A=+—H#1)

Fees
HK$'000

s
FET

38

42

93

Salaries
and other
benefits
HK$'000
HFER
HitngF
THER

152

84

236

Share-
based
payment
HK$’'000
Y3
XATE
TER

254

254

254

95
292

32

1,197

Retirement
benefit
scheme

contributions
HK$'000
BIRER
sHEIR
THER

AREXNTREEZHMEFEOT:

BE_ZERLHF+-A=+t—-HLEHFE

Total
emoluments
HK$’'000

BHE
TER

254

254

254

95
444

38

29

4

1,526



For the year ended 31 December 2006

Executive directors:

Mr. Yu Kam Kee, Lawrence
B.B.S., M.B.E., J.P.

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit
(Note 1)

Dr. Yap, Allan (Note 1)

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung,
Natalis

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen,
Richard (Note 2)

Ms. Luk Yee Lin, Ellen

Non-executive director:

Mr. Chan Yeuk Wai

Independent non-executive
directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Sin Chi Fai
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph

No directors waived any emoluments in the years ended 31 December

2006 and 2007.

Note 1: These directors are also directors of Hanny Holdings Limited or
ITC Properties Group Limited, which are related companies of the
Group. Their fees, salaries and other benefits are paid by the related

companies and no amount has been charged to the Group for

HITESE:
RBEFKE
BB.S., MBE. J.P.

FoEGEEE (i)

Yap, Allanf&+ (FzE1)
RE#EE

BRR LA (HEE2)
gL L
FHTES:
RERELE
BUIFNTES:
BELKE

HEEERE

ERmLL

Fees
HK$'000

ik
FET

51
50

101

the services that these directors render to the Group.

BZEZ-_ZZAF+-A=1+—HLEE

Salaries
and other
benefits
HK$'000
ek
HinEF
FTEx

251

600

31

882

Retirement

Share- benefit
based scheme Total
payment contributions  emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000

BARR 43 BIRER
XA sHEIR HHe
FTiEr FER FTEr
818 - 818
818 - 818
818 = 818
307 = 307
941 - 941
= 4 255
= 4 604
102 = 133
102 = 153
= = 50
3,906 8 4,897

BE_TTRFR-FTLHF+A=1
—HIEFE BREEMEEREEAMES-

BdaET

Al
A

HEEBETSFRBEKEFRAFK
RrEEEERAR (MEARHA
REBEZHERR) ZEE-REZH
& FeREMENEZEREARY
AR EEYERNEEENALE
Rtz RIGHBREM S



Note 2: This director is also a director of Hanny Holdings Limited, which is
a related company of the Group. In 2006, his fees, salaries and
other benefits were paid by the related company and no amount
has been charged to the Group for the services that this director

rendered to the Group.

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the five highest paid

MizE2: WERTSFRBESEERAF (BA
SEZBEERR) 2EF-R_TETX
FRZES HeREMENAZEA
BARX WAREL BN EERN

AEERE REMREAEE-

AEBXNTRUKSHMAL (TEEE

individuals, excluding directors are as follows: ) 2B FEEHN T
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—eTtE —=EiE
FET FAT
Salaries and other benefits e REAMEN 14,929 6,672
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  RREF|5TEIE 163 158
Share-based payment VARR 19 2 7V RRIE 335 1,381
15,427 8,211
2007 2006
—E2LF —EEX
Emoluments of the five highest LTARGERTMALZ
paid individuals were B 48 51 -
within the following bands:
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 721,500,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t 22,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 523,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$8,000,001 — HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 75 £8,500,0005% 7T 1 =



Current tax: BVEARIA -
Hong Kong BB
Hih AR

Other jurisdictions

Underprovision in other jurisdictions
in prior years BETE

Deferred tax (Note 43): RAETIA (FFE43) -
Current year REE
Attributable to a change

in the PRC enterprise income tax rate

Taxation credit HiIE O

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for the year ended 31 December 2007. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax had been made for the year ended 31 December 2006
as the Company or its subsidiaries either had no assessable profit for
that year or the estimated assessable profits were wholly absorbed by

tax losses brought forward.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions during the year ended 31
December 2007 is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant

jurisdictions.

On 16 March 2007, the People’s Republic of China promulgated the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“New Law") by Order No. 63 of the President of the People’s Republic
of China. On 6 December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New Law and
Implementation Regulations will change the tax rate from 33% to 25%
for certain subsidiaries from 1 January 2008. The deferred tax balance
has been adjusted to reflect the tax rates that are expected to apply to

the respective periods when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

RIBEFEEMRLEER

hEI RSN R R

2007 2006

HK$°000 HK$'000
—BBtLEF —EEAFE
FET FET
(821) =
(113) =
(934) =
(1) (55)
(2,707) 1,946
50,273 =
46,631 1,891

EENSHABRE_ZTZELF+ A=+
— B FE 2 bR R B s A iR B
17.5% B - AR AR R REH B A RNE

E_RENFT_A=T-BLFEYE
R RS A S AT RS FIE W2
HETATREIE AR M ENZFEEY
BRMNEH G-

HE_ZZ+HF+-A=T—HLEEE R
HihahEkmES 2 BIRR AR AR
BT R E -

R-ZTHE=F+ B hEARKNER
RIEPEAREFIBEAIES 635 BT

AR LMB (b EFAS %R/Z:(F%ﬁiﬂﬁlu)f’
R-ZEZALF+ - ARNE PEEBREL
AP 2 BHERTE - IRBIVEDI R BHER

T HIZENE-A-AR ETHELR
BlZ R EH3I3%AR25% < ERIETHIAL
MREFRR ARMRIAHIN SR EERFE
BEZRHMER 2K



Taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation

per the consolidated income statement as follows: Al R

Loss before taxation

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
17.5% (2006: 17.5%)
Tax effect of share of results of associates
Tax effect of share of results of
a jointly controlled entity
Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible in determining taxable profit
Tax effect of income that is not taxable
in determining taxable profit
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Tax effect of tax losses utilised
but not previously recognised
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions
Underprovision in prior years
Decrease in opening deferred tax liability
resulting from a decrease

in applicable rate

Taxation credit for the year

B B S 1R

BAH TSR E17.5%
(ZZETNE17.5%) 5182 FiE

FEIEB R RRRE W E

PRI —RAREHERRE
MR &

FATEE RE FERR A5 M) B T~ R H0RL
ZRAXZ BT E
TARETE FE SR N By S B AR A
ZWAZ R E

KRR BBEE I BEZE
EEAEZRIRERZ HBEE
BB E

REM RER R E 2 B AR
TR R &
BAFEZBETR
EARE T RAERFIRTHIE
=

REEZ 2 HIBEED

AN E 2 FRIE B 0] EA4R
ETTHERIIT

2007
HK$'000
—BBLE
TR

(42,143)

7,375
(7.856)

(114)

(54,019)

30,961
(4,629)

33,715

(9,074)

(1)

50,273

46,631

Eh el

2006
HK$'000
ZETRF

FET

(81,295)

(29,891)

14,155
(14,859)

10,489

1,891



Dividend recognised as distribution FAERF/DIRZIRE
during the year

Ordinary shares: AR

Final — dividend for 2006 of REARRE — —FEREFRE
HK1.5 cents per share BR1SBW (ZEETREF:
(2006: Final - dividend for 2005 of REBRE-——TTHF
HK1.5 cents per share) B B =R 1.5L)

A final dividend for the year of HKO0.5 cent (2006: HK1.5 cents) per
share has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by

the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

The Company proposed that a scrip dividend option will be offered to

all shareholders.

During the year, scrip dividend alternatives were offered in respect of
the 2006 final dividends. These scrip dividend alternatives were accepted

by the shareholders, as follows:

Dividends: A
Cash e
Share alternative AR& 7 51X

2007 2006

HK$°000 HK$'000
—FELE R i
FBT THRT
11,908 9,188

E=EBINAFREARBBE S0 5781l
(ZZTRE 58  ARAREALKRR
REERRAE Lt

AR FRBN 2 BRRRZ RN 88
MR

FR R _TTRNFERYRSREARKE
ZERIT A -BIREMAUF AR B 2ERK
TR

2006

Final dividend
HK$'000
ZETRF
REARR B
FAT

11,739
169

11,908



The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the following BREREEDNIZ TSRS

data:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—eTtE B
FERT FHET
Loss attributable to the equity holders of ~ FB{ERTEERERNEEZ
the parent for the purpose of AR AELEE
basic loss per share (16,199) (71,748)
Number of shares
RIDEE
Weighted average number of RETESREREE 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of B INE T 9 E
basic loss per share 1,075,590,318 556,934,054
The calculation of diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 Rt EBE_ZERFR_ZBZLF =
December 2006 and 2007 has not assumed the conversion of the A=Z+—HIFEz BREEEERI &
Company’s convertible notes and exercise of the share options as these BRER HARA A R ATRRR IR IR TE R AR -
potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive during both years. TR EEE S BRNZMEFEEA

kG zRHE-



cost

At 1 January 2006

Currency realignment

Disposal of subsidiaries

Additions

Disposals

Reclassified to assets classified as
held for sale

At 31 December 2006

Currency realignment

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Additions

Disposals

Reclassified to assets classified
as held for sale

At 31 December 2007

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2006
Currency realignment
Provided for the year
(Reversal of) impairment loss

in the income statement
Eliminated on disposals
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries
Reclassified to assets classified

as held for sale

At 31 December 2006
Currency realignment
Provided for the year
Reversal of impairment loss
in the income statement
Eliminated on disposals
Reclassified to assets classified
as held for sale

At 31 December 2007

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006

WZET E A=A
LERE

WEHBAR

e

ij 5
ENARARENEEE

R-BRLETZA=t-B

FERARE

R-22 F-A-H
HlERg

KEERR
RER (BE) RERE

HERHR
HEMBR AR
BRARARIELEEE

WZET E A=A
BERE

KFERE
WhsREERESE

R-BRLETZA=t-B

i)
H-22tE+-A=t-A

RZFErF+ZA=1-A

Leasehold
land and
buildings

HK$'000

il

1HEEF
T

38,025

(4,800)

33225

6,083

39,308

17,056

478

(894)

(2,300)

14,340

467

(2,137)

12,670

26,638

18,885

Hotel
properties
HK'000
Note (a)

BENE
Thn
Hika)

1,625,115
4,40

1,667,586
77,681
225,500

1,970,767

61,740
4223
31,690

97,653
9,631
37,330

144,614

1,826,153

1,569,933

Properties
under
construction
HK$'000

i 2
THR

46,728

34,600

Furniture
and  Leasehold
fixtures improvements
HK$'000 HK$'000
BA HE
REE MR8
Fin Fin
57544 37831
1,880 1,253
= (37
3993 9,753
(71100 (3,055
(36) -
56,271 45,745
2,944 2,486
608 =
3899 47,5%
(9364)  (1,093)
54,358 94,734
27,204 12,263
1,504 408
4852 8,817
(4218)  (2,887)
> (6)
2 =
29280 18,595
2,530 1,358
349 10341
(7,983)  (1,093)
21323 29,201
27035 65533
26,991 21,150

Motor
vehicles
HK$000

hE
THRL

7,057
m

1,846
(1,280)

7834
431
269

3319

(3453)

(303)

8,157

1,462

(404)

2910
37
1,555

5,307

4,924

Office
equipment
and
machinery
HK$000

#OE
RERHER
TR

27,183
3,001
(44
2,006
(1,743)

30,363
5,028
3,921
322

(788)

(251)

41,500

19,981
2,347
4,947

(1,676)
(6)

25,593
4217
4,742

7,701

4,770

Vessels
HK$000

-3

TR

17,69

86

11,258

5,995

666

6,661

524

(730)

6,455

4,803

112

Construction
in

progress
HK$'000

ERIR
TR

300,269
37,501

337,770

337,770

Total
HK$'000

£

THERL

1,857,139
18816
81)
17,684
(13,188)

(4,836)

1,905,534
88,570
530,567
101,694
(67,959)

(554)

2,557,852

154,279
8,622
52,912

2,906
(9,245)
(12)

(2,302)

207,160
18,073
58,455

(2,137)
(24,623)

(16)

256,912

2,300,940

1,698,374



The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on LA W03 B e B MR TE B TR B AR B E LA

a straight line basis at the following rates per annum: THFRFE:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of remaining et RiEF RHEAFIRF E
unexpired terms of the leases 2.5% (AR &
and 2.5% RIE)

Hotel properties Over the shorter of remaining BE % RHEAFIRF H
unexpired terms of the leases 2.5% (AR &
and 2.5% RIE)

Furniture and fixtures 10% - 20% BN EE 10%-20%

Leasehold improvements 10% — 20% or the term of the HEMEEE 10%-20% (k&K
lease or land use rights, if TR FH
shorter B & RLE)

Motor vehicles 8.33% - 20% RE 8.33%-20%

Office equipment and machinery 20% MAERMERME  20%

Vessels 5% Mg 5%

An analysis of the properties of the Group held at the balance sheet REEREEBMBEZYESTIT:

date is as follows:

Leasehold Hotel Properties
land and buildings properties under construction
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
HETHREF BRI EEYHE

—RRLE —TTRE ZBELF —TTRF ZETLEE —TTRHF
FET TR FET THT FET TET

Long leases in Hong Kong REBZKEHMAELY 14,700 13,865 603,548 609,202 - =
Medium term leases RBEB 2P HEALY
in Hong Kong 5,890 5,020 - - - -
Medium term leases R B R EAFE A
in the PRC (note b) (KT b) 6,048 - 1,222,605 960,731 - 34,600
26,638 18,885 1,826,153 1,569,933 - 34,600



Notes:

(@) Included in the hotel properties at the balance sheet date is a hotel
property with a carrying value of HK$149,056,000 (2006:
HK$144,025,000) situated in Luoyang, the PRC. The land use rights
of the hotel property is currently held by Luoyang Power Supply
Bureau, a minority shareholder of the subsidiary holding the hotel
property. Pursuant to a land use rights agreement entered into
between Luoyang Power Supply Bureau and the subsidiary on 15
April 1999 (before the Group acquired the said subsidiary in 2004),
Luoyang Power Supply Bureau agreed to permit the said subsidiary
to use the land upon which the hotel property is now situated for a

term commencing from April 1999 to April 2049 for hotel use.

(b) Included in the hotel properties held under medium term leases in
the PRC of HK$1,222,605,000 (2006: HK$960,731,000) is a hotel
property with a carrying value of approximately HK$221,357,000
(2006: HK$213,781,000) of which a subsidiary of the Company has
been granted the right to operate and manage the hotel in
Guangzhou, the PRC for a period from January 1987 to January 2017,
and subject to certain conditions to be fulfilled by the subsidiary, the

operating period may be extended for a further period of 20 years.

The carrying value of motor vehicles, and office equipment and
machinery of the Group held under finance leases as at 31 December

2007 was HK$230,000 (2006: HK$99,000).

Depreciation expense on hotel properties of HK$37,330,000 (2006:
HK$31,690,000) are included in administrative expenses during the

year.

(@) PEERZEEDEBENTBIEBTE
E{E1%149,056,000/8 70 (Z BT/ 4E:
144,025,000 7T) 2 BE W LB IEY)
T ERRRERSEREEYEL
MEARZ PERFERSTEERFE R
BRGMEERREZMBARR—AAN
FA+R BT 2 TifEAE R (R
REEE T TUFWEZNBARA
M EZEBREIE Ltk B A RER
REEY RN EE 2 i BER— L
NEMAZE—TMAFEMA  LMEBER
o

(b) PAFRBIAREIREAHEE 21,222,605,0007%
T (ZEZ N4 :960,731,000/8 70) JEIE Y
¥ e —MERmEY221,357,000/8 70 (=
TE N4 :213,781,000587T) 2 EEYE
AR 7 Z M8 A AR T & A R
BEMTH 2B E 2 48 R BB RE— NN
+E—ARZT—+F— A MmEETZH
BRRETERZGHRRT A& Hn
—$ER=FF-

R-ZETLHE+-A=1+—HB NEEg
BRABEZRE - WAERBRIEE R
HE{EA230,000/8 7L (ZZZ /X :99,000
W&IT) °

EIEE 2 P8R 37,330,000/ T (==
TN 131,690,000/ 70) EBFERFARNZ
TR



HK$'000

FHET
FAIR VALUE AFEE
At 1 January 2006 and 31 December 2006 R_ZEF—A—BMA-_ZEXF+_-_A=1+—H -
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary WHE—RH B A RIRATEA 174,938
At 31 December 2007 R-EBtE+ZA=+—8H 174,938
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December REBKENFENR _ZTLF+ A=+
2007 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on — B2 AFEETIRE RS E I S
that date by Norton Appraisals Limited, independent qualified BN A BEREEMEM SRR EE
professional valuers not connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals FRATINZ BEIT 2 MEEE S B EMRT
Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and HERABAESIEMESSE HEHE
have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation EER A MERHEER B EE
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived @Z%&_ﬁ%ﬁ"ﬁﬁ*’%ﬁ@fﬁ%&@%iﬁ@%%Z?&
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar SERT S REER
properties.
All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to REB AN S E AL EMRELE
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using MAEBE 2 FEYMEER HERATEE
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment R E WAREDMES B RARK.
properties.
The investment property of the Group was held under medium-term REBZEREYFERBERPE A HAEE
leasehold land in the PRC. TR
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
=X = N
FET FHET
Cost of investments in associates REEE R R ZIRE KA
Tradeable on the Pink Sheets AREBENAEEEE
in the United States of America 94,983 57,982
Other unlisted investments Hib3E EiicE 14,786 14,786
Share of post-acquisition losses eS8 B 1R (43,625) 1,266

66,144 74,034



Particulars of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2007 and 2006

are as follows:

Name of associate

BENTER

Advantmark Holdings Limited

Advantmark Holdings Limited

Ananda Travel Service
(Aust.) Pty. Limited
Ananda Travel Service
(Aust.) Pty. Limited

Champion Universal
Group Limited
Champion Universal
Group Limited
Hypermach Limited
Hypermach Limited
Sino Express Travel Limited
Sino Express Travel Limited
Travoo International Limited
Travoo International Limited
Wing On International
Travel Service Ltd.
Guangdong
B KRB IRITH AR A
Winner World Group
Limited

Winner World Group
Limited

Form of
business
structure

EBREBRR

Limited liability
company
BREMERA

Limited liability
company
BREMELRA

Limited liability
company
BREMELQTA

Limited liability
company
BREMEDRA

Limited liability
company
BREMERTA

Limited liability
company
BREMELQTA

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

IR ERT]

Limited liability
company
BREMERA

Place of
incorporation
and
operation

AR
Sk

British Virgin
Islands
EBERRHS

Australia

BN

British Virgin
Islands
EBERRHS

British Virgin
Islands
EBERRHS

Unites States of
America

e
British Virgin
Islands

RBERMRES

PRC

B

British Virgin
Islands
EBERRHS

Issued and
paid up

share capital/
registered
capital

‘000
ERTREHE
B2 EMEAR
T

Us$-
—XT
A$400

40087T

us$-

—X7T

us$s4

84%7T

US$6,120

6,120%7T

RMB5,000

5,000 AR ¥

Us$-

—X7T

REBZBERBRN_F
=t —RZFBEMT:

~FE+=A

Proportion of
issued/registered

capital held

by the Group
2007 2006
REBBEERT

AfEAL =
—EELF ZZTTRF
49% -
49% -
40% 40%
40% 40%
49% -
49% -
49% -
49% -
48% 42%
48% 42%
50% 50%
50% 50%
49% 49%
49% 49%
20% 20%
20% 20%

P LERES

Al
Al

Principal activities

FTEXY

Hotel management
services

B IEE IR RS
Travel and related
services
T35 B 48 B AR 75
Leisure club operations
RS KRB G
Hotel management
services
B IEE IR RS
Travel and related
services
T35 K% 4 B AR 75
Investment holding

BAER

Travel and related
services

T3 B AR RE AR TS

Investment holding

BAEER



On 31 August 2006, the Group disposed of its entire 100% interest in
Guangzhou Travel Information Systems Network Limited (“GZTI"), a
wholly foreign owned enterprise (“WOFE") established under the laws
of the PRC, and its shareholder’s loan amounting to HK$51,419,000
to Sino Express Travel Limited (“Sino”) at a consideration of
US$7,500,000 equivalent to approximately HK$58,519,000. The
consideration was settled by Sino Express Travel Limited (“Sino USA")
issuing to the Group a total of 32,608,696 common shares of common
stock in Sino USA. Sino USA is a company incorporated in the United
States of America with its shares traded on the Pink Sheets in the United
States of America. The consideration shares represented approximately
38.99% of the issued share capital of Sino USA. Before the completion,
the Group held 2,500,000 common share of Sino USA. After
completion, the Group held a total of 35,108,696 common shares of
Sino USA and Sino USA became an associate of the Group. At 31
December 2006, the Group was in the process of assessing the
identifiable intangible assets of Sino USA at date of completion; thus,
the allocation of the goodwill of HK$29,610,000 arising on acquisition
of associates and included in the cost of investment in associates as at
31 December 2006 was preliminary and subject to the revision once

the Group completes its valuation exercise.

REZBZAFNA=+—A AEE2HY
EH®Guangzhou Travel Information
Systems Network Limited ([GZTl) ) Z100%
s (GZTIA—FHIRER BUARK L 2 INE
BELE) RZARAZBREER
51,419,000/ L FSino Express Travel
Limited ([Sino]) - X {8%7,500,0003 T
(FA% R4 4958,519,0007%7T) - BREZ BT
LASino Express Travel Limited ( [Sino USA] )
MASERTEETBARRASE H
32,608,696/% & 3@AX fE1f < Sino USAZE —&]
REBEFMKR 2 AR EROREBRZH
AEE FEE-ERREZRMAESIn
USABE Z1TARAN38.99% © FERK AT A @
A Sino USA 2,500,0004% & @% - Sk 15 * A
F B A Sino USAR #£35,108,696 % & 18
A& fSino USARK A 2N 58 [ 2 Bl & A 8] o 10
ZETRFE+ZRA=1+—8 ~EEHEK
Z BSino USAZ RIEkRI T & EE TR Ak -
FEt - RS N RIFTE £ W — B TRF
TZRA=FT Bt ARBE R R ZIRERK
N2 529,610,000 7.2 5 FL AL B 1))
HUE  REE T A h & K RERME e



During the year, the Group has completed its valuation exercise and
the provisional goodwill of HK$29,610,000 recognised previously has
been impaired and included in share of loss of associates. As at 31
December 2007, included in the cost of investment in associates is
provisional goodwill of HK$17,484,000 (2006: HK$29,610,000) arising

on acquisition of additional interest in associates.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associates is set out below:

Total assets BERE

Total liabilities BERE

Net assets BEFE

Share of net assets M EEFE
Turnover EER

(Loss) profit for the year REE (B8) &5

Share of results of associates for the year R4 [ZE(GHE & A R %45

FR-AEEB TR LM E T2 pIE R
R W 229,610,000 L& B RIE I
STAEMH AR ABEN- NS5+
ZA=T A ARBE AR ZIRER A
W ES N R RESIME o TR AE 2 BRI
#17,484,0008 L (=TT EF:
29,610,000 7T) °

AEEBENR 2P HERBRIATIMT:

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EBLE It L Nia
FER FAT
619,596 273,268
(505,554) (168,037)
114,042 105,231
48,660 44,424
135,020 408,129
(28,698) 4,590
(44,891) (19)



As at 31 December 2007, the Group had interests in the following

jointly controlled entity:

Form of
Name of business
entity structure
BEREH FHBRBYR
Tanggula RaiHours Limited ~ Limited
liability
company
EHAFFIEERAR BREE
NS

Place and
date of
establishment

R ERAM

PRC
13 December 2006

[
oY =
<
>k
Ty

i
o
m
m

Registered capital
‘000

EMER
T

RMB102,040

102,040 AR %

RZZZLF+T_A=1+T—HB FT&EERT

P H BRI E 58

Proportion of

registered

capital held

by the Group

Paid up capital indirectly
‘000 %

s 4L

BERs

HMER

BRRRA i
i %
RMB59,540 49%

59,540 AR # 49%

i

Principal activity

TERE

Conducting a tour train
service related business
on the Qinghai - Tibet
railway and other railways
in the PRC

PR B i
RMFIEIRE RIS AR
£



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # % — KRR X+ =+ —8 LF

18. INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY (CONTINUED)

18. R—KXHAREZEHIER 2 #m

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$000
—eBtE B
FER FHET

Cost of unlisted investment R—RERESI TR
in a jointly controlled entity FE LR E KA 6,979 =
Share of post-acquisition loss FER R E1E (650) =
6,329 -

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's interest
in the jointly controlled entity which is accounted for using the equity

method is set out below:

AEBEREDETENAREHERZ

Rm M ERREERSII T

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

—2eLE B

TET FHET

Current assets MENEE 5,639 =
Non-current assets SEmENEE 949 =
Current liabilities mEaE 259 =
Non-current liabilities EREBEE - =
Income WA 7 -
Expenses XH 657 =

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. It HERE

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

S —2EiE

FExT FHT

Equity securities e

Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRG RAE 283,160 99,460
Less: Impairment losses recognised B ERERZ REEE (33,168) (26,728)
249,992 72,732

Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited
2007 Annual Report



Particulars of the Group’s major available-for-sale investments as at 31

December 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Name of entity

EREH

Guangxi Guijia Property
Management Company
Limited (“Guangxi
Guijia") (Note 1)

BERERNFEERERAR

([BAEEZR]) (M)

Smartshine Holdings Ltd.

Smartshine Holdings Ltd.

Newskill Investments Ltd.

Newskill Investments Ltd.

BMNBEFEREERAR

(Note 2)

BMNEFHEREERAR

(BfzE2)

More Cash Ltd.

More Cash Ltd.

Place of
incorporation
and operation

FMAELK
BEhE

PRC

British Virgin
Islands/PRC
ERERRES

Vil

British Virgin
Islands/PRC
ERERRES

Vil

PRC

HE

British Virgin
Islands/PRC
ERERRES

Vil

Ally Fortune Investments Ltd. British Virgin

Islands/PRC

Ally Fortune Investments Ltd. EB#F RS

/HE

Paid up
capital/

registered capital

‘000

BRRE/
HMER
Tr

US$8,021

8,021% 7T

US$8,000

8,000% T

Us$1

Proportion of

paid up/registered
capital held
by the subsidiaries
2007 2006
WEARRE
BERE/
HEMEX
2Bl

ZBBER —EIRF
26% 26%
26% 26%
19% =
19% =
3.5% =
3.5% =
25% =
25% =
3.5% =
3.5% =
3.5% =
3.5% =

AREE EZAHY
Interest
attributable
to the Group

2007 2006

rEE

i g
“ERtE ZEERE
18.2% 18.2%
18.2% 18.2%
19% =
19% =
3.5% =
3.5% =
25% =
25% =
3.5% =
3.5% =
3.5% =
3.5% =

EREZFHBANT:

Principal activities

TEEK
Property holding and

operation of leisure

Services

RAENEREENRRA
oy

Investment holding

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE



The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by private entities established in the PRC and the British
Virgin Islands. They are measured at cost less impairment at each
balance sheet date because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion

that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Notes:

1. Though a subsidiary of the Group holds a 26% interest in Guangxi
Guijia, the directors considered that the Group cannot exercise
significant influence on the financial and operating policies of Guangxi
Guijia and accordingly, it is classified as an available-for-sale
investment. At 31 December 2007, the directors of the Company
reviewed its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the investment and
considered that it is unlikely to recover the interest in Guangxi Guijia.
Accordingly an impairment loss of HK$6,440,000 (2006:
HK$19,902,000) was recognised in the consolidated income
statement to write down the carrying amount of the investment to

its recoverable amount.

2. Though a subsidiary of the Group holds a 25% beneficial interest in
BMRSEFRZEGR AR ([EMIRK]), the directors considered
that the Group cannot exercise significant influence on the financial
and operating policies of E/N#RZ and accordingly, it is classified as

an available-for-sale investment.

bt IE ETIRE R B K S M R R A
BRI ZFANEBEITZIE EMRAES
ZRE -ARZREFREZAEAHEEME
HBEEKX NRBEERATEEAI SEETE
BRATEE RRFRENSEEREK
RERUREFE -

MyaE:

1. BRAAEE - BMBARSEREEEE
26% 2w HEERAREETARYE
AR M REEREITEEATEN
MERER S B A B HEERE.
N-ZTtE+-A=+—H ADFES
BEMEEZ RAEREHEZEREHR
EAEZETARRESRERE WRAKE
B R 2 e TR Ht AR A
kPR —E/%6,440,0008 7T (ZF
T7N4F 119,902,000 7T) ZmAE K58 - A
WORIRE 2 REEZEH AT E & 58

2. HRAAREE B L RRAEMR S
ERZBERAR ([EIMRZ])25% 2 &
miEs EEFRAANEETEHEMRR
2GRS ERKATRERT R RN
REDVEDBRIAAIHHERE-



CcoST
At 1 January
Arising on acquisition of

a subsidiary (note 50 a & b)
Eliminated on disposal of

a subsidiary (note 49)
Reclassified to assets classified

as held for sale (note 33)
At 31 December

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January

Impairment loss recognised for the year
Eliminated on reclassified to assets

as held for sale (note 33)
At 31 December

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December

A E

w—A—H

U b — eI BT 8 2 A B A
(Mt3E50aKb)

o — R BT B A R e S 6
(Bt5%49)

B A ERRFEHEEE
(B&E33)

R+=—R=+—H

WA

w—A—8
AFEEFEEHERZBEREE
BENOBRARFELE
BEREE (5E33)
R+=ZA=+—H
BREE
R+-—A=+—H

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in

note 21.

2007
HK$'000
—EELHF
FET

50,021

52,628

(85,944)

16,705

(5.808)
(11,214)

13,022

(4,000)

12,705

2006
HK$'000
ZEERF

TR

50,862

(841)

50,021

(5,808)

(5,808)

44,213

BRRBRERNR 2 FBERME21 PR E-



As explained in note 6, the Group uses business segments as its primary
segment for reporting segment information. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill as set out in note 20 have been allocated
to the cash generating units (“CGU") of Sichuan Henxin Tour Co., Ltd.
(”Sichuan Henxin”) of HK$12,705,000 (2006: Nil) and the online
booking exchange platform business of International Travel Systems
Inc. (“ITS") of Nil (2006: HK$44,213,000). All of these companies are

engaged in travel and related service segment.

The recoverable amount of these CGUs has been determined on the
basis of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and expected changes to revenue and direct costs during the year.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past

practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The directors reviewed the business valuation, the anticipated
profitability and the anticipated future operating cash flow of Sichuan
Henxin and the online booking exchange business of ITS. With reference
to the financial results and the online booking exchange platform
business operated by ITS, the directors of the Company identified an
impairment loss in respect of goodwill of approximately HK$5,808,000
for the year ended 31 December 2006 and such an amount was dealt
with in the consolidated income statement for that year. The goodwill
impairment review was based on cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets for the next five years approved by
management using a discount rate of 15.7%. The cash flows beyond
the five year period had been extrapolated using a steady 5% per

annum growth rate.

M ETEPrAERE - REBMBEB S BRIER
{2HHFER 2 FENF-RERRT
B ERM 202 & $ 12,705,000/ 7T

—ETRFEE) EESREM) IEERN
BEREERT ([WIEF]) 2REEELS
U ([ReEFEM]) RTEBT(ZEEX
4 :44,213,000/%7T) IS AELE
Travel Systems Inc. ([1TS]) Z#8 EETHRI3T
SV RER -ZF AR ENRE KABHAR
&%

\

/‘\ il

International

FRSEL BN 2 AT B R TIRER
EBEETE TEEREEMEL TR REH
REEIR K B RFIA R FARAMBERKAR
2B B E) B EIRARPATLL R EFTR
W& Z R R R T IR I S B A R E A
FREEEEBENEFARRZ b REIA
ERERIBAREE - WA RBEEKAN 2 &
BRFEOIRETIEARRES 2 NLEEH
fli&te

B0 HMI)ERZEBHE BERRF
BN RBHBEEERERERTS 2 E
FTIIAE 5 R ARIRITS 2 I M S4B IR 48 2T
NS FREBEE RNARNESFNEBEZ
ETERNE+-_A=+—ALEFEEHF
#75,808,000/8 7T 2 BB RE K 1R - B 7Y
SHONZEEZGERERTREE -8
TIRIBE B IR EHE 2 RRAF R
B2 ReRETER RAIRE15.7%
EITRER -AFHE RS RE TN
5% 2 1BE FILREEITMET



In December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of such online booking exchange
platform business for a consideration of HK$37,000,000 and
accordingly, a goodwill impairment loss of approximately HK$7,214,000
was recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2007 and the net carrying amount of such goodwill of
approximately HK$36,988,000 is re-classified as assets reclassified as

held for sale as of 31 December 2007 (note 33).

The goodwill impairment review on Sichuan Henxin was based on cash
flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets for the
next five years approved by management using a discount rate of 16%.
The cash flows beyond the five year period have been extrapolated for
indefinite period using a steady 10% per annum growth rate. The
directors reviewed the business valuation, the anticipated profitability
and the anticipated future operating cash flow of Sichuan Henxin. With
reference to the financial results and business operated by Sichuan
Henxin, the directors of the Company identified an impairment loss in
respect of goodwill of approximately HK$4,000,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2007 and such an amount was dealt with in the
consolidated income statement for the year. As disclosed in note 50
(a), the Group is in the process of assessing the fair value of the identified
intangible assets of Sichuan Henxin at the date of acquisition; thus the
amount of goodwill disclosed herein is preliminary and subject to

revision once the Group completes its valuation exercise.

R-ZTLF+ A FAEER—ZBVE
=R — R HE 8 FETN R S
A ¥R EE37,000,000% T Bt 49
7,214,000 T2 FERESEEREZEC
ETHF+ A=+ BUEFEEGER
mRNHER - A B2 4936,988,000/8 7T
ZEEFEER =TT LF+A=1T—
HEFDBARFIEHESE (M:33) -

A

B B TRBEEEEIAZ K
RAEFHIMBEEME 2R RETEA
RO R 16% B TRER - AFHiR 2 1R
SRETIA10% 2 BEF L REEITHER
st -EEERAMIER 2 B
EBE-BEABANENRERBREERS R
BRBN)IMEE T MK EEREEE:
ARRBERBE_TTLF+-A=+
— B 1IEFE#75144,000,000/87T 2 2R
BEEE MABSEERAEE K6 et
R R o QP EES0(a) AT ER N EIRIE
HE HMIEEZE#AEREEL
DNFBEETIE B AFTHEZ
BLEARBISEE AEBE TR AE
fpEBNERR -



Hotel

Railway operating
intangibles agreements Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#g EIRRE
BILEE ik &t
FHAT FAT FAT
COST BAE
At 1 January 2006 and RIZTTREF
31 December 2006 —A—BkK
ZEERF
+=—B=+— = = =
Acquired on acquisition W B B /8 2 R W
of subsidiaries 352,302 116,592 468,894
At 31 December 2007 RZBELF
+=HA=+—H 352,302 116,592 468,894
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2006 and RIZTTRF
31 December 2006 —HA—BK
ZEEREF
+-B=+—8H - - -
Charge for the year REFEEXH - 2,608 2,608
At 31 December 2007 R-BELHF
+=A=+-—H - 2,608 2,608
CARRYING VALUE AREE
At 31 December 2007 R-ZZ2LHF
+=A=+—H 352,302 113,984 466,286
At 31 December 2006 ROTTREF
+=-B=+—8 = - -
The above classes of intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such A EEREERREBRAIEAFH %
intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the following SR EEDREREEA TSI F R
periods:
Railway intangibles 16 years BB EE 16%F

Hotel operating agreements 10 years to 15 years B JE A ik 10FE 154



Railway intangibles comprise exclusive rights, trademark and affiliation
agreement. The exclusive rights entitle the Group to conduct an
exclusive tour train service related business on the Qinghai-Tibet Railway
in the PRC, which include conducting tour related services, engaging
in food and beverage service and lodging business, for a contractual
period of 16 years from the date of commencement of the railway
operation. The trademark allows the Group to use the brand “Tangula”
and “Tangula Express” for railway operation while the affiliation
agreement is with an international hotel management chain which
provides hospitality services on the train and enables the Group to
enhance its brand attractiveness of the train operations and to capture
the potential customers base of the international hotel management
chain. As the railway operation is expected to be launched in the third-

quarter of 2008, the related amortisation has not yet commenced.

The hotel operating agreements entitle the Group to manage and
operate certain hotels operations exclusively in Macau and the PRC for

a period of 10 to 15 years.

HPK A E R EEREN iR R B
o BEIERME T AREERER R EEFLG
EEEARHZTAFANBAANEEHR
SRS FolR iR AR a1
IR IR IR AR - B BRI TE
PR R NS B P PR IS RE B Y [Tangula)
Tk & [Tangula Express| - B8 1735 T4 €2
—BHAERBEEE AR %AAT
ROIE FREBFRSG HE R B AR E
hns&3I| BB Mg 2 TRE| ) M A E
BBEE A R 2 BIER R AR R
EBTEBR_TTN\FE=FHL HHK
PRI TR R 8H -

BIEREHER TASEEN BREER
RPN B TR %75 REI0E15
o



2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$'000
—®TLE —TEAE
FHRT TET
Deposits for acquisition of 100% WHERBEARE T REY
interests in companies holding land ANAEIZ100% R 2] & (Fid5ta)
use rights in the PRC (note a) 150,000 150,000
Deposits for acquisition of 100% interest  WE—REFR KB —BEEWHEZEZ
in a company awarded the tender to AAZ100% =2 5] & (H3Eb)
acquire a property in Hong Kong (note b) 16,388 -
Prepaid management fee (note c) TBAEEE (o) 40,000 =
Deposits for acquisition of interest WHEPBR—EYEERER 2
in a property development project w25 ® (Fiskd)
in the PRC (note d) 37,200 -

Unamortised loan facilities fees R ERRMERA 31,276 -

Deposits for the acquisition of WE—RMB ARz & (fize)

a subsidiary (note e) - 15,500

Others A 5,000 -

279,864 165,500

Notes: LI

(@) The amount represents deposits paid for the acquisition of 100% (@ ZEFEEARBEREBRIANLTHERE L
equity interests in certain companies holding land use rights in the ETRTZ100%RAEEMEFZE]E
PRC for various development projects, with the objective of developing A9 R RIEE - 5 HE R E A IREES
hotels, shopping malls, recreational and other tourists related FieERERER - ZBERELAER
amenities respectively. The aggregate consideration for the purchase 180,000,000 T -RAREHIEEH %
amounted to HK$180,000,000. The transactions have not been EZ 5 MARTEK
completed as at the date of this report.

(b)  The amount represents deposit paid for the acquisition of 100% equity (b) ZEFEERME -—RERWE-BEE
interest in a company that has been awarded the tender to acquire a AARBYHEZ A2 100%RAEZ M
property at Tai Kwok Tsui Road, Hong Kong for a total consideration SR ZE R NEZENEENER AR
of HK$163,880,000, with an objective of re-developing it into a hotel. JE-R(B#%%163,880,000/8 T ;2 ER

The transaction was completed on 29 February 2008. SERZZZENEF_A-tTNHTK-



Notes: (Continued)

() The amount represents prepaid management fee made by the
Company to undertake the management of a property located in the
PRC.

(d) The amount represents deposit paid for the acquisition of certain
interest in a property development project in the PRC with the
objective of developing commercial buildings and car parks. The

transaction has not been completed as at the date of this report.

(e) The amount represented the deposits paid for the acquisition of a
51% interest in Sichuan Henxin. The transaction was completed on
31 May 2007 (note 50(a)).

The inventories were carried at cost and represent principally food,
beverages, general stores and carnival tickets which are to be utilised

in the ordinary course of operations.

The balances represent the aggregate amounts due from related parties.
Certain directors of the Company are also directors of and have
beneficial interests in these companies. The amounts are unsecured
and interest free. Included in the amounts due from related companies
as at 31 December 2007 were advances of HK$55,301,000 (2006:
HK$53,684,000) which are repayable upon written notice given from
the Company within one year and the remaining balances were

principally trading balances with credit period of 30 days.

ByaE: (88)

(O ZEFREAARDREAERR—RYEZ
EEREMBNZERE-

(d)  ZEFREASUEHE - ENEERIEAR
ZETRRMSNZF S NEREEAE
REES-RARETIHE B ZIBRR 5
RIFERK

(e) FEFEBERWENIMEE251% kM
SN2 & ZERHER_TTLFAA
=+—R5K (F1EE50(@a)) °

FEURATIIR TERAEEBBIEPE
Rzim Rm —RARREFEMR-

BRI EEA L SURERE AR RE

£
A ER s REREDEERARE
B-R-ETLE+-A=1+—8 EKE
N AIFRIAEHES5,301,00087T (Z2ER
£:53,684,000/87T) 2 B 50 5% ERIAERN
RARE—FRE D EEBAREE 45
FTEREHENES BRIREIA308-

TR



The aged analysis of the trading balances at the reporting dates is as

follows:

0 - 30 days 0Z30H
31 - 60 days 31260H
61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 838908

Included in the above trading balances with related companies is
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$9,004,000 (2006:
HK$5,527,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered

recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trading balances which are past due
but not impaired

31 - 60 days 31£60H
61 — 90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days #83B90H
Total HRET

)
Ny

! SRR EMN 2R A 2 BRI DITT :

il
s

\

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FFLE R i
FBT THR
278 254

557 375

560 368
7,887 4,784
9,282 5,781

A FREEAR B IR ERBITRR
E{E49,004,0008 T (Z BTN F:
5,527,000/70) -RERAE B BARE
B R R E RS RERAEER
REZEEATEUHEEERELSAEE),
WAl A e B AL BB ZEEH
RFAEMAERR-

EEMERREZE S RARER
ARiR

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—gBLE —2EAE
FRTL THT
557 375

560 368
7,887 4,784

9,004 5,527



The amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured and interest free.
Amounts due from associates are repayable upon written notice given
from the Company within one year and amounts due to associates are

repayable on demand.

Trade receivables B SRR

Less: allowance for doubtful debts B R

Other receivables (Notes a, b and ¢) H U ERK (FisEa ~ b&kc)
Total trade and other receivables B 5 hEMEBER AT

The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days to local customers

and 90 days to overseas customers.

The aged analysis of trade receivables (net of impairment) at the balance

sheet dates is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0£30H

31 - 60 days 31260H
- 90 days 61Z90H

Over 90 days #8390 H

e (FEAS) B
MBS
HE R

RIBAEE-

WEL\\ TK EEJ{RW&% S
AIFIEERA DR E—FRNE
iSHE VRN NN =N P
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
—BEHF —EERE
FiEm FET
27,338 26,685
(58) (58)
27,280 26,627
454,294 405,008
481,574 431,635

REBLTAMERE LEINEFE ZFHRKR
BREA Bl A608 K90 H °

Z SRR (FIBRRER) NEE R 2R
BTN

2007
HK$'000
—E2RLF
FET
12,145
4,767
2,469

7,899

27,280

2006
HK$'000
ZETRF
FAT
11,076
3,861
2,168

9,522

26,627



Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed the
potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit limits by customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year. 50% of the
trade receivables that are neither past due nor not impaired have the

best credit scoring system assessed by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$15,135,000 (2006:
HK$15,551,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered

recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Notes:

(@) Included in the balances are amounts paid to certain independent
third parties in total of HK$213,717,000 (2006: Nil) in relation to a
proposed acquisition of certain interests in a company which has a
property project in the PRC. These balances are secured by equity

interests of the target company.

(b) Included in the balances are sums of money of HK$142,300,000
(2006: Nil) placed in relation to proposed investments in certain
clubhouse projects in the PRC. The sums of money are secured by
equity interests in the parent of the target company which own the

clubhouse projects in the PRC.

() Included in the balances at 31 December 2006 was HK$19,194,000
(2007: Nil) which was secured by a 16.26% equity interest in Triumph
Up Investments Limited (“Triumph Up”) and the remaining balances
were unsecured. Included in the balances at 31 December 2006 were
advances made to land operators of HK$182,000,000 (2007: Nil),

and such amounts were fully settled in 2007.

AEBEEMEAFHELH CRHHERP
ZEEER IEEREFPZERERBE-F
FERRESFFRN —R-REAEKE
Z AR IR WARBE AR B REZ50%E
SHRMIRR AR RIEEETR-

AEE B S RWER S ITREEE
#15,135,000B L (=2 F:
15,551,000%70) 2 B SRR 25 &
SEBERNZHRAC B BAREET
FRULIEL R EE RS RE R AN E @R A
FEESRNER TG EEERELS
REE) - W AT B A B 6 58 o AN S M AR
HEERTE EAER D

fi 5

(@) ZEEHOERERRE-—FKBEETE—
EMEER 2 ARZE TS TE
FBIZE=TF 2 KIE#213,717,0008 T
(ZTTRF8) ZEFMEEZELF
IR ARE B VR

(b) HEEHREEREBRRENTRETEMR
18 B 7,2 518 142,300,000 T (=&
TRNFEE) DABBTEEMAR 2R
EYNCIPASYNCIWAL e 5y (= il

(@ RIZETRFT-_A=+—80 256688
519,194,000/ T (ZFFLEF ) - THA
Triumph Up Investments Limited
([Triumph Upl) Z216.26% MR ANz 1K
1 ERERNARER - R_ZETRF+
ZA=T+—H ZEESRRBN I EER
Z3IE182,000,00087T (Z T T4
%) ERSECR TS FREEE-



Aging of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

31 - 60 days 31£60H
61— 90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days #83B90H
Total HRET

The Group performed assessment on individual trade receivables and

recognised allowance on specific balance.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

RENRFERZ FESR

Balance at beginning of the year and

at end of the year

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$58,000 (2006:
HK$58,000). The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, direct write off of irrecoverable

trade debts amounted to HK$3,974,000 (2006: HK$737,000).

EEMERREZE S ERERR
ARiR

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—eRLE N
TR FHT
4,767 3,861
2,469 2,168
7,899 9,522
15,135 15,551

AEE L ERE 2 RKARR WHASFE
AETER R

R B2 E
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—¥RLE e i
TR FHR
58 58

RIRBMB B R4S 42%E58,000/8 T (- TF
7NEF 158,000/87T) 2 ERIEREE SRR
BRFCANEEW B LS EIE B TR

o
an°

HE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HItFEE &
BT AT W [0 & S5 1ETE A3,974,00078 7T
(ZZEZEXE:737,000/7T) °



Variable-rate loan to certain companies

and individuals third parties

BYETE=ARFAR

(notes a and b)

Notes:

(@
(i)
(iii)
(iv)

Included in the balances were loans of HK$6,518,000 (2006:
HK$22,590,000) which are secured by equity interests in an
enterprise established in the PRC.

Included in the balances was a loan of Nil (2006:
HK$22,887,000) which is secured by a 50% equity interest in
Feng Ze Investment Limited which holds 5.75% attributable

interest in the Kingsway Hotel.

Included in the balances were loans of HK$5,000,000 (2006:
HK$45,318,000) which are secured by the right in a property
project in Macau of approximately HK$40,000,000.

Included in the balances was a loan of Nil (2006:
HK$22,689,000) which is secured by certain equity securities
listed in Hong Kong.

The above mentioned amounts carry interest at market rates and

repayable upon written notice given from the Company.

Save for the loans mentioned in note 28(a)(i) to (iv), the amounts are

unsecured, carrying interest at market rates and repayable upon

written notice given from the Company.

AL ZZRER (Miztakb)

(0}

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
—FELE R i
FBT THRT
94,349 372,480

ZE R B1E6,518,0005 T (=2
T4 122,590,000/ 7T) 2 B TY
MA—RIA R BIRK L 2 1 % 2 IR A4
T EHR R

ZEEBPETAT(ZETRF:
22,887,000 7T) 2 B JIAE2
REBRAR (HFHS.75% 1B
JE 2 FEAL RS ) 22 50% AR AN RS VR
o

ZE R E1E5,000,00058 70 (ZF
T4 :45,318,000%7T0) 2B T
LA—JE4940,000,0005% 7T 2 JRFI 4
278 A RN R R

ZERBBRESTBEL(ZTTRE:
22,689,000%7T) 2 BRC T AR &
Wz B TRAZESERE

S EIETIB RS WERAR A%
HEERAREE

P P EE28(@)() Z () AT B ARG - 2255 3R0R
AEER ETSET B RARA DA
FH 25 TR 3 A (R



The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as loan
receivables were due from various counter parties. The carrying amount
of loan receivables as at 31 December 2007 is net of accumulated

impairment loss of HK$9,078,000 (2006: Nil).

The range of effective interest rates (which also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group’s variable-rate loan receivables are Hong
Kong Dollar Prime Rate to Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate plus 3% per

annum for both years. Effective interest rate is 8.83% (2006: 8.94%)

per annum.
Listed securities EmEH
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong RER LM 2 BRAFEH

The loans to related companies are unsecured, interest bearing at prime
rate to prime rate plus 2% and repayable upon written notice from

the Company within one year. Effective rate is 9% per annum in 2007.

Derivatives financial instruments classified DA EEBR 214 T A

as held for trade

Foreign currency options SIS R

HRERER SR EEFH HAREEW
BEAEPEERB-R_TT+F+=
A=+—R BRERZEAERIR RS
TR EETIE9,078,00078 T (ZTT/RF &)

REZMEEE AEEZSREERZ IR

& (BEREHOFE) 2HEN T HE TR
x T B B B F = pnF ) %

FE5H8.83% (ZTET/N

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
—FFLE B i
FBI THT
27,531 7,126

48 TRIE R R 2 BTN iR @ E A
REBMEMN2%EHR - WHERARR
E—FABRHEMBARSER —TTLF

ZERFENERZI% °

R=E2
= EHX

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—BLE BE L i
FRTL TR
5,972 -



During the year, the Group acquired a subsidiary which had 5 foreign

currency options outstanding with a bank. Major terms of the significant

outstanding foreign currency contracts are as follows:

Notional amount

‘000

EHSE

T

Buy RMB122,978
BAARE122,9787T
Buy RMB121,681
BEAARM121,6817T
Buy RMB36,455
BAARE36,4557C
Buy RMB36,326
BAAR36,3267T
Buy RMB45,698
BEAARXA45,6987C

Maturity

WA

31 January 2008
—ZEENF-HA=+—H
31 March 2008
—EENF=A=+—H
8 August 2008
—ZEZTNFNANB

28 August 2008
—ZEENENAZTNH
12 September 2008
“EENFAATH

The fair values of the outstanding foreign currency contracts as at the

acquisition date of the subsidiary and as at 31 December 2007 are

determined based on a valuation technique using an option pricing

model, namely the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

FRAKBEYE KB —FRITAI LA
RATRESNEE B 2 BB 12 ] BARATRESN
BEMZEEERWT:

Exchange rates

E=

USD/RMB7.2917
1ETHARET.29177T
USD/RMB7.2148
1ETTHARET7.21487T
USD/RMB7.0499
1ETTHARE7.04997T
USD/RMB7.0250
1ETTHARE7.02507T
USD/RMB7.0050
1ZETH AR7.00507T

RITEINER DN EHBARER K=
ERLFET A=+ HZAFHEETH
R EBERN (BN AN —&F@HT 8
REBEN) 2 HETAEE-



Pledged bank deposits/bank balances

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 1.2%
to 3.53% (2006: 2.35% to 2.63%) per annum. The pledged bank
deposits carry fixed interest rate of 3% (2006: 2.85%). The pledged
bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of relevant bank

borrowings.

Trading cash balances

The amounts represent foreign currencies held for money exchange

purposes.

(@ On 12 December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, in relation to the disposal of 100% interest in a subsidiary,
BN K R ik AR 75 55 752 B at a consideration of HK$37,000,000.
The net proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the net
carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and
accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised. The

transaction was completed in February 2008.

BEBBITER BITHER

RITHEBRIRTISFNENT1.2%E3.53%
(ZZETRF:2.35% £2.63%) ;T8 ER
RERTFERZEENERI% (ZTTREF:
2.85%) -FREEBHABRITEER BHEPR
FTIER G T #RBR -

g% }E%n\ﬂ
BRASBIERERSRRA® 2N -

(@ MN_ETLF+_HA+_H FKEH

BN EBER RS EMRIZ
3758 = B LA {E 37,000,000 T
HE—KMTB R EMN KX EE KRS

BRARZ100%EaR] 3 — D -
HEFRZ SR F ARSI
BEEREE REHE QIR
RBEER-ZAXZER_ZFTN
FATKe



On 18 December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement

with an independent third party incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands, in relation to the disposal of the

online booking exchange

platform of ITS for a consideration of HK$37,000,000. The net

proceeds of disposal are expected to be

less than the net carrying

amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and accordingly,

impairment loss of HK$7,214,000 has been provided (note 21).

The transaction was completed in April 2008.

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the disposal

group classified as held for sale are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Trade and other receivables

Bank balances and cash
Total assets classified as held for sale

Trade and other payables,
and liabilities associated

with assets classified as held for sale

YERY Y
Gk

B 5 K E M RURK
RITEBRRAS

DERFHEHEZEERE

EHNEMRNERR DS
FEMEZEEZHRARE

RZZT+F+_A+/\B £5E
H-ZRRBER RS MK
B % = 7 s AR {E37,000,000% 7T
HETSZB LTS FEaEI—
- L ERIE 2 TS RIS FRETEH
BEREEEERABZRE@FAE K
EEHRER 1R ##7,214,000/8 7T
(f5E21) - ZEXSGER =TT N\F
7O A FEk e

DERFHEHEZERHE
BEENMBEERAT:

SEzx

31.12.2007
HK$000
—BBLE
t=A=t-—-A
TER

538

72,922
18,491

363

92,314

21,019



(b)

On 13 June 2006, the Group entered into an agreement with
China Star Entertainment Limited, a company incorporated in
Bermuda with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange, in relation
to the disposal of approximately 56.91% interest in a subsidiary,
Triumph Up at a consideration of approximately HK$252,789,000.
Triumph Up indirectly holds approximately 55.75% interest in
Kingsway Hotel Limited (“Kingsway") which is classified as an
associate as the directors of the Company considered that the
Group could not exercise control to govern its financial and
operating policies. Accordingly, the Group’s approximately
31.73% effective interest in Kingsway would be entirely disposed
of. The transaction was completed in May 2007 resulting in a

gain on disposal of approximately HK$82,265,000 (Note 49(a)).

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the disposal

group classified as held for sale are as follows:

ER S B
Interest in associates N YN £
B 5 R E fth R K
FE Wit 51X R R I8

Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from associates

Total assets classified as held for sale

Amounts due to associates and NN
liabilities associated

with assets classified as held for sale

DERFHEHECEERE

FIRIBE NS E A
REREZEEZHHABE

(b)

RZTERERNA+T=A ~EEH
TREESEARLA (—RARBERE
T 2 AR H AR BB AT FT
) BELA%9252,789,0008 L2 A EH
E—RBWBARTriumph Up&
56.91%#z55] 32 — 1A #iE o Triumph
UpREEUBIEAR AR ([£15]) M
BB 4I55.75% i AR AN AR E
ERBREB TN REIER
RITEZHE e o BR—H
BN R R I AEER S ATIEL
31.73% B R iR B & o 5218
REERZZEZLFERATN EE
&R E#82,265,0008 7T (FIsE
49(a)) °

DERFEREZARLE
REERBERRIINT:

SEzx

31.12.2006
HK$'000
T RF
+=-—A=+—8
FHET
2,534
204,351

97

98,357

305,339

170



Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of approximately
HK$174,687,000 (2006: HK$162,111,000) and the aged analysis of

the trade payables at the reporting dates is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0Z30H

31 - 60 days 31&£60H
—90 days 61£290H

Over 90 days B0 H

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all

payables within the credit time frame.

Certain directors of the Company are also directors of and have
beneficial interests in those companies. Loans are variable-rate loans
which bear interest ranged from Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate to Hong
Kong Dollar Prime Rate plus 2% per annum. The average effective
borrowing rate is 7.3% (2006: 7.4%) per annum. All the loans are

unsecured and repayable within one year.

Included in the balances is a loan of approximately HK$208,157,000
(2006: Nil) that is denominated in United States dollars.

FIANE 5 REAMEMERZ ZIERIEARK
#)174,687,0008 T2 B SENER (ZF
TN :162,111,000587T) M SE S E
FMEEFRE®RA Z RIS :

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—gBLE BL L i
FRTL THIT
90,915 97,177
39,281 32,351
21,91 17,144
22,580 15,439
174,687 162,111

BE 2 FIHORIRIA60 R - ASEEHETH
TR BRI - ARER P B BRI TS
BIRERIR

ARBETUNEENERZEARZES
U YNT oh s at A

EERET
BER BNTELKEENEEETHE
BAMEMFENE2% 2 FEGFR - FIHER

EEFMERT 3% (ZFTRF:74%) °

I ERREERRAN—FRER

ZEEHRBIE—E5549208,157,000/8 7T
(ZBTRE8E) UETHEZER



The balances represent principally loan interest payable, which are

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

RERERORN ZFR:

Amounts payable

under finance leases:

Within one year —FR
Between one to two years —FEMFA
Between two to five years MEERFA

B R E

Less: Future finance charges

H#FE 2 HE

Present value of

lease obligations

B SRBRELZ
—FREHRIEA

Less: Amount due
within one year shown

under current liabilities

Amount due after one year —F BB EAFIE

The Group entered into finance leases to acquire certain of its property,
plant and equipment. The terms of the finance leases ranged from 2
to 4 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 6.8% (2006:
6.8%) per annum. Interest rate was fixed at the contract date. The
leases were on a fixed repayment basis. The Group’s obligations under
the finance leases were secured by the lessors’ charge over the leased

assets.

BRGHRIERENENRNE ZERET)
B 2B RAERBHMER-
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
REHESMR BEHENRZRE
—BELF ZTEREF —BELF —TTRF
FET FET FET FHET
53 35 45 31
53 = 45 _
139 = 120 =
245 35 210 31
(35) 4) = -
210 31 210 31
(45) (31)
165 =
REBEEFTRVE ALY AU LB T 92 - #

BRBRB - ZEHMERNRIELIF T
B EEFEMNEA6.8% (ZTTAF:
6.8%)  FIETIRETH 2 BEE -2 FHL
YA B E B RUAELE - AN B 2 g A T 4%
ELURBARR HEEEEAER.



Borrowings comprise:

Floating-rate borrowings:

Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") plus 0.8%
secured HKD bank loan™

HIBOR plus 0.5% secured
HKD bank loan®@

Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate
plus 2% unsecured
HKD loan®

Secured HKD overdraft
at Hong Kong Dollar Prime
Rate plus 3%®

Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate
plus 1.5% secured

HKD bank loan®

Total borrowings
Less: Amount due within one year

shown under current liabilities
Amount due after one year
Borrowings are repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand

Between one to two years

Between two to five years

fEEEE:

Effective
interest rate

EiHRIE
REBE:
BEERITRIZERS
(IEARITRIZEREL)
hn0.8% B A TTRITERD 5.1%
BEBRITRIZER SN0.5%
BEETIRITER? 4.8%
ABITREENEN2%
EIEIEITERO
9.3%
BB THREBMNEMI%ETEZ
BEBSTEL@
10.3%
BITRAEEFEMN.5% B EFAET
RITERO
9.5%
BEBTE

S BRBREZ —F AR HFR

—FRBIEFRIA
tEEAR T HREE:
—FARLEH

—FEMER
WEERFAN

Carrying amount

2007

HK$°000
SRE(E

S

FH

410,480

28,000

10,000

6,932

455,412

(88,753)

366,659

88,753
366,659

455,412

2006
HK$'000

T RF

TET

451,120

10,000

4,441

188

465,749

(59,269)

406,480

59,269
44,640
361,840

465,749



(1) Repayable by instalments and in full on 17 April 2009. The borrowings

are secured by certain hotel properties of the Group.

(2)  Repayable in full on 16 July 2008.

(3) Repayable in full on 4 July 2008.

(4) Repayable on demand.

(5) Repayable by instalments and repaid in full on 27 August 2007. The

borrowing was secured by a property located in Hong Kong.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has the following undrawn

borrowing facilities:

Floating rate — expiring beyond one year S E)F|& — A —F 42|

The promissory note was issued as partial consideration for the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of and shareholder’s loan
to Shenyang Limited through a 69.7% owned subsidiary of the Group
(note 50(c)). Shenyang Limited holds indirectly 87% interest in Time
Plaza (Shenyang) Limited (“Time Plaza”). The promissory note is interest
bearing at HIBOR plus 2% per annum and secured by the entire issued
share capital of Shenyang Limited and shareholders’ loan to Shenyang
Limited and Shenyang Limited's 95% equity interest in Shenyang Hotel
Holdings Limited which holds the 92% equity interest in Time Plaza.
The principal amount of approximately HK$16,455,000 was repaid on
29 February 2008 and the repayment of the remainder of approximately
HK$90,000,000 has been extended to 29 August 2008.

(1) PEERIN-_ZTAFHA+LHBE.
ZEEETIURNEE 2 ETBENEER

(2) ERZZENFLA+BBE-

() AR-ZEENFLAMABME-

(4) EIBHEER-

(5) PHERIER-_ZELFNA-+LH

BB ZEEETIAINEE Z W RIE
o

Tjf

REER ARB 2 ARBREERENT:
2007 2006

HK$°000 HK$'000

—FFLE B i

FBI THT

741,238 -

RRFBTER BT ERERAEERE
69.7% = 2 HIB AR EShenyang
Limited 2 #BE BITIRA L H B R &5
2 EBHARME (HFFE50(c)) °Shenyang Limited
FEBEERAES (85) BRAR ([HR
&35 1) 2 87 %t nh ik H RIBIR BB IRIT
[B 47 SN F R ERT 2 - I LAShenyang
Limited 2B 2 B1TARAR - RN IRRE &

H 7 Shenyang Hotel Holdings LimitedZ
95% IR Az {EE # - Shenyang Hotel
Holdings Limited #5748 R (X E3592 % iR A 18
E AR E 416,455,000 TER T NF
ZAZTAREE MERFR#I90,000,000%8
TEEEZE_ETN\FE/\AZ+ I BEER-



The consideration note was issued as partial consideration for the
acquisition of entire issued share capital of and shareholder’s loan to
Shenyang Limited, through a 69.7% owned subsidiary of the Group
(note 50(c)). The consideration note was interest bearing at HIBOR

plus 1% per annum, and was fully repaid on 14 February 2008.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
except for a balance of HK$27,300,000 (2006: nil) carry interest at a

fixed rate of 7% per annum.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible notes for

the year is set out below:

Carrying amount at beginning of REY 2 EREE
the year

Issued during the year REREETT

Interest charge (Note 9) FMERXZ (FF3E 9)

Interest paid EAFE

Issue expenses BITHIX

Conversion into shares R R

Carrying amount at end of the year RERZREE

RARETRERE (EREBNEEER
69.7% Em 2B ARIYWEShenyang
Limited 2 2B E B1TAR AN R H BN IRR E K
Z P RAE (HIEES0(0)) ~RERELREE
RITREFRSMFFE—EHE WR_F
TNF_ATOBEEEER-

B — SR EFE E K7 %52 27,300,000
Bt (CTTNFE E) IV ZERATY

BEEM 2 RARBAEER-

MR EEAESONAEE 2 2B H
FEnR:

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
—mEtE —EExE
TR FHT
810,026 _
- 791,539

61,857 41663

- (10,718)
(301,612) ~
554,215 810,026



During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company issued
convertible notes of nominal value amounting to HK$1,000,000,000
(the “Notes”). The Notes carried interest at 2% per annum and are
repayable on 7 June 2011 (the “Maturity Date”). China Enterprises
Limited, a then substantial shareholder of the Company, subscribed

for the notes of nominal value amounting to HK$300,000,000 by cash.

The initial conversion price of the Notes is HK$0.79 per share and subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments. The notes are issued on the date after the
share subdivision as mentioned in note 44. Unless converted or lapsed
or redeemed by the Company, the Company will redeem the Notes on
the Maturity Date at the redemption amount which is 110% of the

principal amount of the Notes outstanding.

Each of the noteholders shall have the right to convert, on any business
day commencing from the 7th day after the date of issue of the Notes
up to and including the date which is 7 days prior to the Maturity
Date, the whole or any part (in an amount or integral multiple of
HK$1,000,000) of the principal amount of the Notes into the shares of

the Company at the then prevailing conversion price.

TERF+ZA=+—HLEFE &
1TE{A3E1,000,000,0007& 7T 2 A #2
[ZERE]) ZERBRFFE2
WARZZE——FNAtA (4R
EE-ARNAIERZEZERFEChina
Enterprises Limited ABR&RBEEE
300,000,000 T2 5% ER1K-

A DL
wa«

ES

EF@WW@
St

- ¥
i
I

Bl H

RERBR N A BERSERMD0.79%
TER AR R EEE A B - 5% S RIBN FERK Y
7N

RER BIRBR SRR BIZERBEREER
TEEZ110%) BOZERE R
B R MR R E L HRBRIN

ERBEREARERNZEEERETES
REELEREHMERLH (BFE%R)
AR 2 AE ] 5 B AR R B i 2 AT R AR
18- 152 B E(AE 5 (JA1,000,0007% 7034
HEEBHREM) r ZEEBAe .
RWBARRR 2R



Subject to certain restrictions which are intended to facilitate compliance
of relevant rules and regulations, each noteholder shall have the right
to exchange from time to time all or part (in the amount of
HK$10,000,000 or integral multiples thereof) of 50% of the initial
principal amount of its Notes for shares in the share capital of any
company which is an affiliated company as defined in Rule 13.11(2)(a)
of the Listing Rules or subsidiary of the Company that is to be listed on
the Stock Exchange through an initial public offering at the price (the
“Spin-off Shares”), subject to anti-dilutive adjustments, at which the
Spin-off Shares are actually issued to the public at the time of the
listing on that stock exchange. The decision on whether to list any of
its affiliated company or subsidiary in the future is at the sole discretion

of the directors of the Company.

During the year, Notes with nominal value amounting to
HK$360,000,000 were converted into 455,696,195 shares in the
Company of HK$0.10 each at a conversion price of HK$0.79 per share.

The convertible notes were split between the liability and equity
elements. The equity element is presented in equity heading
“convertible notes reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability

component is 9.35%.
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The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and

movement thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1 January 2006
Currency realignment B
Credit to the consolidated income ST AEREWEmE (MsE 12)

statement (note 12)

At 31 December 2006 R-FERE+-_A=1t—8H

Currency realignment R

Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR

Effect of change in the PRC Bl SRS R E)
enterprise income tax rate -7 -

Charge to the consolidated income PR E W R 0B (5 12)

statement (note 12)

At 31 December 2007

As at 31 December 2007, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$963,423,000 (2006: HK$896,381,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$129,147,000 (2006:
HK$72,003,000) can be carried for a period of five years. The losses
arising from overseas subsidiaries are insignificant, which will expire
after a specific period of time. Other unrecognised tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

The deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the respective periods when the asset is realised

or the liability is settled.

R-BELE+=-A=+—H

NTARAEERBEFECHAZIR
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Accelerated

tax depreciation
on hotel properties
HK$'000

BIEMEZ
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244,680

7,445

(1,946)

250,179
11,989
5,500

(50,273)

2,707

220,102
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Number of shares Amount

HK$'000
BB x|
FET
Authorised SEE
Shares of HK$1 each RZEERF—H—H
at 1 January 2006 BREEVSITZ B’ 1,500,000,000 1,500,000
Subdivision of shares {15 59 13,500,000,000 =
Shares of HK$0.10 each RZZEERNER T LF
at 31 December 2006 and 2007 T-A=T—HEREE
0.10%& T 2 B&fn 15,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid ERITRHZ
Shares of HK$1 each R-IBEERF—HA—H
at 1 January 2006 BREBEVSTZ KD 437,586,108 437,586
Reduction in share capital HIRAR AR - (393,827)
437,586,108 43,759
Issue of shares BITRRD 175,000,000 17,500
Share repurchase Bl BEA% 1D (2,000,000) (200)
Shares of HK$0.10 each RIEERF+_A=1t—"HK
at 31 December 2006 and T +F— [ —H8REE
1 January 2007 0.108 T2 & tn 610,586,108 61,059
Issue of shares BT 750,000,000 75,000
Exercise of share options 1T A 4,285,000 428
Conversion into shares from Notes (note 42)  ZE5Z#E XA (M 42) 455,696,195 45,570
Issue of shares on scrip dividend AR B ZEITR G 191,217 19
Shares of HK$0.10 each R=_ZEZ+F+=-_A=+—H

at 31 December 2007 FRCEEO. 1078 7T 2 B&fn 1,820,758,520 182,076



On 1 March 2006, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Success Securities Limited (“Success Securities”) pursuant to which
Success Securities conditionally agreed to place up to 175 million shares
(the “Placing Shares”) in the Company at a price of HK$0.69 per share
to independent investors (the “Placing”). In order to facilitate the issue
of the Placing Shares, the Company conducted the capital
reorganisation which involved (i) the reduction of the issued share capital
of the Company by HK$0.90 per existing share by cancelling an
equivalent amount of paid-up capital per existing share so that the
nominal value of each existing share in issue will be reduced from HK$1
to HK$0.10; and (ii) the subdivision of every unissued existing share

into 10 adjusted shares.

The Placing was completed on 25 April 2006. The new shares issued
rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares. The net
proceeds of approximately HK$120 million from the Placing have been

used as general working capital of the Group.

On 27 September 2006, the Company repurchased its own shares

through the Stock Exchange as follows:

No. of
ordinary shares

Month of repurchase at HK$0.10 each

'000

SRMEE0.10E T

BERGZ A5 ZEBRHE
F A&

September 2006 2,000
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Price per share Aggregate

Highest Lowest consideration paid

HK$ HK$ HK$'000
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0.55 0.55 1,100



The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and accordingly,
the issued capital of the Company was diminished by the nominal value
thereof. The premium payable on repurchase was charged against the
share premium account of the Company as set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. None of the Company’s subsidiaries
repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares

during 2007.

In May and June 2007, the Company entered into placing agreements
with Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingston Securities”) pursuant to
which Kingston Securities conditionally agreed to place up to
450,000,000 shares (the “Placing Shares”) in the Company at a price
of HK$0.80 per share to independent investors. The placing of the
first tranche of 120,000,000 shares was completed on 31 May 2007
and the remainder of 330,000,000 shares was completed on 6 August
2007.

In November 2007, the Company entered into another placing
agreement with Kingston Securities pursuant to which Kingston
Securities conditionally agreed to place up to 300,000,000 shares in
the Company at a price of HK$0.40 per share to independent investors.

The placing was completed on 12 December 2007.

The new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then
existing shares. The net proceeds from the above shares placements
amounted to approximately HK$465.8 million. The proceeds have been
used for the expansion of its existing travel business, hotel business,

branch network, and as general working capital of the Group.
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The Group has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”), which was
approved and adopted by shareholders of the Company on 3 May
2002, enabling the directors to grant options to employees, executives
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries)
and any suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who will contribute
or have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Company or such
subsidiaries. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme, when aggregated with any shares
subject to any other schemes, shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company on the date of approval and adoption of the
Scheme (the “General Limit"”). The Company proposed to refresh the
General Limit so that the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company would be increased to 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of approval of the General Limit as
“refreshed”. The refreshment of the General Limit was approved by
the shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting held
on 27 May 2005. The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10

years after the date of adoption.
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In the general meeting held on 19 May 2006, the shareholders of the
Company has approved that the existing scheme General Limit in
respect of the granting of options to subscribe for shares in the
Company (“Shares”) under the Scheme be refreshed and renewed
provided that the total number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (excluding options
previously granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised under
the Scheme) must not exceed 10% of the ordinary shares in issue as at
the date of approval of such refreshment of the General Limit (subject
to adjustment for consolidation and sub-division of share subsequent
to that date) and that any director be authorised to do all such acts

and execute such document to effect the refreshed General Limit.

At 31 December 2007, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme was
46,685,000 (2006: 58,680,000), representing 2.6% (2006: 9.6%) of
the Shares in issue at that date. Option granted must be taken up
within 30 days of the date of offer. The consideration payable for the
option is HK$1. Options may be exercised at any time from the date of
acceptance of the share option to such date as determined by the
board of directors but in any event not exceeding 10 years. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, (i) the
closing price of the shares on the date of grant or (iii) the nominal

value of the shares of the Company.
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Details of options granted and a summary of the movements of the ZETEINARE RAFER T 2 B R =R
outstanding options under the Scheme during the current and prior TEBRESBRE 2 FBHT:

years are as follows:

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding
asat
Outstanding 31 December Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed  2006and  Exercised Lapsed as at Exercise
1 January during during  1January during during 31 December price
Eligible participant 2006 the year the year 2007 the year the year 2007  pershare Dateof grant  Exercisable period
HKS  (Note 1) (Note 2)
RZB2XE
t=A
=t-H R-BELE
REBRAE R-2%FtE +=A
-A-8 RER RER  -A-H RER RER  =t-8 R
RERSEAL HATE R XM HRAR it 3 S P Sy fiffE RHUEH e
B (M) (fitz£2)
Director
2
Mr. Yu Kam Kee, - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
Lawrence
(resigned on
1 December 2007)
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 = - 4,000,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
REREL
Dr. Yap, Allan - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
Yap, AllanfE £
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 = - 1,500,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
Natalis
RE#LE
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, - 4,600,000 - 4,600,000 (1,000,000) - 3,600,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
Richard (Note 5)
BkSEE (B zE5)
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, - 500,000 - 500,000 (250,000) - 250,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
Alva (Note 5)
PEULE (Bf3E5)
Mr. Sin Chi Fai - 500,000 - 500,000 - (500,000) - 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
(resigned on
27 March 2007 and
appointed on
28 January 2008)
EERAE
(R-FFLE
ZACHEHEBER
RZZZ/\E
—A=tN\BEZH)
Employees - 30,680,000 (200,000) 30,480,000  (1,895,000)  (2,650,000) 25,935,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
(Note 5)
&8 (Fitzt5)
Other eligible - 9,100,000 - 9,100,000 (1,140,0000  (560,000) 7,400,000 0.728 22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
participants (Note 5)
(Note 4) (Fitzt5)
RfbEERSEAL
(Fzta)

- 58,880,000 (200,000) 58,680,000  (4,285,000)  (7,710,000) 46,685,000



Notes:

On 22 June 2006, a total of 58,880,000 share options were granted.
The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before
the date of grant (as of 21 June 2006) was HK$0.72.

The options are to vest as follows:

Up to a maximum of 50% of the options are exercisable during the
first year of the option period commencing from 22 June 2006 to 21
June 2007. The balance of the 50% of the options not yet exercised
in the first year and the other 50% could be exercised in the second
year commencing from 22 June 2007 to 21 June 2008. The total
numbers of share options that are outstanding at 31 December 2007
was 46,685,000 (2006: 58,680,000).

The estimated fair value of the 58,880,000 share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2006 is HK$ 15,706,696, which
was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model (the
“Model”) as at the date of the grant of the share options. The

following are the inputs to the Model:

Share price: HK$0.71
Exercise price: HK$0.728
Expected volatility: 65.28%
Expected dividend yield: 0%

Risk free interest rate: 4.599%
Expected life of the share options: 2 years

Expected volatility was determined by using the annualised historical
volatility of the closing price of the shares of the Company as at 22
June 2006.

The Group recognised a total expense of approximately HK$2,924,000
for the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: HK$12,006,000) in

relation to share options granted by the Company.
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The Model has been used to estimate the fair value of the options.
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value
of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective

assumptions.

4. Other eligible participants represent individuals who render personal
services to the subsidiaries and the services rendered are similar to

those rendered by employees.

5.  The weighted average closing prices of the shares of the Company
immediately before and on the dates on which the share options
were exercised during the year were ranged from HK$0.85 to
HK$0.93.

The special reserve represents (i) the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the shares of the Company issued for the acquisition under the
group reorganisation in September 1997; and (i) a reduction of share

capital took place during the year ended 31 December 2006.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
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The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in Notes 35, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41 and 42, (net
of cash and cash equivalents) and equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained

profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a quarterly
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. The Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or

the redemption of existing debt.

48a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SREE
FVTPL BRREATENE
— Investments held for trading —FHEEEZIRE
— Derivative financial instruments —PTEeHIA
Loans and receivables (including cash B 7k & FEURBR X
and cash equivalents) (BEReRReEEIER)
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost BEHA AR

AEEZBARERFAETE (REEE
(RPFE35 37 3839 40 41K%42
FTEE) MBRRe KRS SEER) RAD
AR FE (A s (BB BITRAN B R
REBHF) o

ARABREEEEFTRHERARB BT 2 —
MO REEEBEARARREZRE AR
R ARE S RBIKE R BITH
Bty BEp L BT ERMERREGE
BELN HEREARBIEL TE-

48a. €@ T A 35|

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
—¥RLE e i
TR Tt
27,531 7,126
5,972 -
815,036 324,234
249,992 72,732

1,832,577 1,779,671



48b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amounts due from
related companies, amounts due from/to associates, trade and
other receivables, loan receivables, loans to/from related
companies, investments held for trading, pledged bank deposits,
trading cash balances, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, borrowings, promissory note, consideration note,
amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries, and
convertible notes. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures

the risk.
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48b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the

reporting date are as follows:

Assets BE
United States dollars ETT
Renminbi AREE
Liabilities afE
United States dollars ETT
Australia dollars BT
Euro BT
Renminbi AR

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure by closely monitoring the movement of
foreign currency rate and will enter into foreign currency

options or forward contract, when and where appropriate.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group’s major
foreign currency transaction is mainly in the United States
dollars. The Group’s sensitivity to the change in the foreign
exchange rate is low as the functional currency of the
relevant group entities is Hong Kong dollars which is pegged

with United States dollars.
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48b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate loan from related companies,
borrowings, promissory note and consideration note (see
notes 35, 37, 38, 39 and 40 for details of these borrowings).
It is the Group's policy to keep its borrowings at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate

risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar

denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date. For variable-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.
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48b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit
for the year ended 31 December 2007 would decrease/
increase by HK$4,303,000 (2006: decrease/increase by
HK$2,860,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank

borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased during
the current year mainly due to the increase in variable rate

debt instruments.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in equity securities and derivative financial
instruments. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.
The Group's price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange. In addition, the
Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the

need arise.
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48b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based

on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date

for the held-for-trading investments and currency options.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
5% higher/lower, profit for the year ended 31 December
2007 will be increased/decreased by HK$1,675,000 (2006:
increased/decreased by HK$356,000) as a result of the

changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

The Group's sensitivity to held-for-trading investments has

not changed significantly from the prior year.

48b. M AR EE B B R BUR
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48b. Financial risk management objectives and 48b. B AR EE B R R BUR
policies (Continued) (%)

T R (8)
(i) EmERRR (8)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2007 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company

consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed
is considered minimal as such amounts are placed with banks

with good credit ratings.

The Group does not have other significant concentration of

credit risk.
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48b. M AR EE B B R BUR

48b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued) (%)

Market risk (Continued) g R (8)

(iii) Other price risk (Continued) (i) EMERRRE (8)
Liquidity risk mENE &R
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors HEBRDESRARME 5%
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed FERR#FRERREEE
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s HEREBERAREHEZKTE:

operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
and other borrowings and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2007, the
Group has available unutilised overdraft, undrawn credit
facilities from banks, and undrawn credit facilities from
related companies of approximately HK$3,000,000 (2006:
HK$3,000,000), HK$741,238,000 (2006: Nil) and
HK$420,000,000 (2006: Nil) respectively. Details of which

are set out in note 38.
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48b. M AR EE B ERBER
(%)

g Ak (B8)
(i) EmBERER (B)

48b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual

maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. For non-

derivative financial liabilities which has been drawn up based

on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based

on the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to

pay. The table includes both undiscounted cash flows and

principal cash flows.

nBERER (&)

TREAAREEFTESRE
B2 FIERE F B -FLIEDT
EERBENS GENKTIR
BRAKE R ERERMNRZ
RFAHZeRMBERKERR
ERERE- TIFARRBRR
ERENTIERERE-

Weighted Total Carrying
average undiscounted  amount at
effective Less than 1-2 2-5 cash balance
interest rate 1 year years years flows  sheet date
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KT
T -%Z BEE  RERE WEEAZ
BRAE —FR WE k3 ag REE
% T FiEn T TR T
2007 “BRLE
Trade and other payables BHREMERER - 251,641 = - 251,641 251,641
Loans from related companies ~ BERFEH 73 297,269 = - 297,269 277,045
Amounts due to associates B EARFE - 12,749 = - 12,749 12,749
Amounts due FEREEARE
to related companies - 54,544 - - 54,544 54,544
Obligations under finance leases  BYE 4] 2 &IE 6.80 53 53 139 245 210
Borrowings E 6.00 94,078 411,978 - 506,056 455,412
Promissory note ERRE 6.80 113,694 = - 113,694 106,455
Consideration note RERE 580 22,795 - - 22795 21,545
Amounts due to minority ENMBARDEREFE
shareholders of subsidiaries - 98,761 - - 98,761 98,761
Convertible notes AAREE 200 12,800 12,800 722,341 747,941 554,215
958,384 424,831 722,480 2,105,695 1,832,577
2006 ZETRE
Trade and other payables BHREMERER - 190,909 - - 190,909 190,909
Loans from related companies BB A& 800 114,830 - - 114830 106,324
Amounts due to associates FEfTE 20 R H0E - 13,350 - - 13350 13,350
Amounts due FEREERRFE
to related companies - 193,282 - - 193282 193,282
Obligations under finance leases &b &4y 2 & 6.80 35 = = 35 31
Borrowings E1 510 62,292 49309 420,073 531,674 465749
Convertible notes Qe ES 200 20,000 20,000 1,148,658 1,188,658 810,026
594,698 69,309 1,568,731 2,232,738 1,779,671



48c¢. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are

determined with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices or rates from observable current market transactions

as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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(a)

As described in note 33, the Group disposed of its approximately
56.91% interest in Triumph Up at a consideration of approximately
HK$252,789,000 in May 2007. The net assets of Triumph Up at

the date of disposal were as follows:

Interest in associates R & N R) 2 s
Trade and other receivables 5 R E M ERERR

FE Wikgt 28 X R 5RIR

JEAEE 2 X R FRIA

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due to associates

Net assets disposed of Rz EEFE
Minority interests DER R
Gain on disposal B2 e
Total consideration BRE
Satisfied by: YA
Cash Re
Other receivable HAb FEUAR K
Deposit received [=Eeisn

Net cash inflow arising on disposal ~ HE&EMELEZRESRAFE

The impact of Triumph Up on the Group’s result and cash flow in
the current and prior period was insignificant. A profit of
approximately HK$82 million was earned on the disposal of

Triumph Up.

(@) MOPTEE33FTIM REER T TLF
T ALAKI252,789,000% 72 R IEH
ETriumph Up#)56.91% -
Triumph UpPAHE&EE B2 EEFEN
T

31.5.2007
HK$'000
—giE
HA=+-A
FAT
204,351
6,161
84,419
(170)

294,761
(124,237)
82,265

252,789

226,100
895
25,794

252,789

226,100

FAZR HARS R A (R B3RS - Triumph Up ¥
REEZRERREREZFELT
B Kot & Triumph UpBER 25 F149
/82,000,000 7T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # % — XX tf+ A =+ —HI1LFJE

49. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

The Group disposed of its 100% interest in Wing On Air Services
Ltd at a consideration of HK$100,000 in October 2007. The net

assets of Wing On Air Services Ltd at the date of disposal were as

follows:

49. HEWB AR (48)

(o) AEER-ZTZTLF+ALA100,000
T2 R B HEWing On Air Services
Ltd 100%#Ezs°Wing On Air Services
LR EER BB FENT:

22.10.2007
HK$'000
—BELF
+A=+=H
FAxT
Net assets disposed of: P& EESE:
Trade and other receivables Z 5 R E M EUERR 387
Trade and other payables Z 5 REMERRR (13)
374
Loss on disposal Rek=d ot} (274)
Total consideration BRE 100
Satisfied by: FANYIEW
Cash Re 100
Net cash inflow arising on disposal ~ H&EFTELZHSRAFE 100

KZHRE (ER) BRAF

2007 F 3k



(o)

As described in note 17, the Group disposed of its entire 100%
interest in GZTI and its shareholder’s loan of HK$51,419,000 to
Sino at a consideration of HK$58,500,000 or US$7,500,000 in

August 2006. The consideration was settled by Sino USA issuing

to the Group a total of 32,608,696 common shares of common

stock in Sino USA. After completion, Sino USA became an

associate of the Group. The net assets of GZTI at the date of

disposal were as follows:

Net assets disposal of:

Property, plant and equipment
Investment deposits

Loan receivables

Bank balances and cash

Shareholder’s loan

Attributable goodwill
Total consideration

Satisfied by:

Interest in an associate

Assumption of shareholder’s loan

to GZTI

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:

Bank balances and cash disposed of

&z BEFE:

YERY Y
BREF
FEUE TR
RITEBRRAS

PG R &
HBARE

R

R—RE L ARz
EZEFGITIZ REER

HEMEL 2R SMHIFR:

P& RITHESBRREA S

The impact of GZTI on the Group’s results and cash flow in the

current and prior period was insignificant.

© WMIE1 7R REER Z T REN
A LA {E58,500,0007% 7.3 7,500,000
ETHEGZTIZH100% #Eam Kk
51,419,000/ T2 BRER B FSino X
{BASino USARANEEETAH
32,608,696/%Sino USAE AR =\ 18
1B o5k % > Sino USARK AN 2 8 2 B4
NRGITNHEE A 2 EEFELNT:

30.8.2006

HK$'000

—BEAE

NB=+H
THET

69
51,419
1,484
466
(51,419)

2,019
841

2,860

54,279

(51,419)

2,860

(466)

GZTIEAEENARE R HE 2 FE R
RERBZPEWTEKX.



Business acquisition:

(a)

On 31 May 2007, the Group, through a wholly owned subsidiary,
acquired 51% interest in Sichuan Henxin for a consideration of
approximately HK$17,500,000. Sichuan Henxin is engaged in
travel agency business and this acquisition has been accounted
for using the purchase method. The preliminary amount of
goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was approximately

HK$16,705,000.

The net assets acquired in these transactions, and the preliminary

goodwill arising, are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment ER e
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A YR
Bank balances and cash IRITAER R E
Trade and other payables 2 5 R H A R BRER
Net assets acquired i A B EFE
Minority interests DB R A
Goodwill arising on acquisition W PR EE 4 2 P8
Satisfied by: YA

Cash R

Investment deposits (note 23(e)) AR (KizE23(e)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: UgBEFrEE 4 2 IR &7 H B 58 -
Cash paid BERE
Bank balances and cash acquired Frig A Z RITHEBR RIS

ESL £

(@ R-ZEZTLFRA=+—H £&%£H
FER—M2EWBATWED)IER
51% 1% B4 417,500,000% 7T °
P9 IME{S 1 AR T AL 227 - i It T U
BERABEREEAR -BREE
S B2V 2 A R16,705,000

HBITe

ZER ST AWIE 2 EEFEREWR
BMELZNZEHEBMT:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount before
combination and
provisional fair value
on acquisition
HK$'000
SOAIRKBARZ
SREE R W2
MR FEE
FHET

762

337

708

(245)

1,562
(767)
16,705

17,500

2,000
15,500

17,500

2,000
(708)

1,292



Business acquisition: (Continued)

(b)

Goodwill arose in the business combination because the
consideration paid effectively included amounts in relation to the
benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth and future market

development.

The Group is in the process of assessing the fair value of the
identified intangible assets of Sichuan Henxin at the date of
acquisition; thus, the amount of goodwill disclosed herein is
preliminary and subject to revision once the Group completes its

valuation exercise and upon the receipt of professional valuations.

On 30 June 2007, the Group, through a wholly owned subsidiary,
acquired 100% interest in BN XEERRBER A A for a
consideration of approximately HK$35,000,000 and incurred
transaction costs of HK$2,675,000. &/ XK iRARIS B R A A
is engaged in travel agency business and this acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method. The preliminary
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was

approximately HK$35,923,000.

B ()

ERERX 2 RERRARESRR
R WEEREARRMISERZ
Mas 2 R HREBAHTELER
2o

AEE LA IMEE 2 B BAIEF
BENKEBER 2 ATEE BHAX
B BESREBTLZHE &
S E ARG SRR EH R A (ER FRE
Blgk-

R-ZEZT+FA=1+A AEEE
B2 A MR AU BN R
IRARIS AR A T100% RS RIBAA
35,000,000 70 WEERHK
782,675,000/ 7T ° BN R 5K o8 ik AR 7%
BIRD B ERITA 2R b IE UK
BERABEREEZAR -BWEE
H 2 B2 & %A 535,923,000
BITe



Business acquisition: (Continued)

The net assets acquired in these transactions, and the preliminary

goodwill arising, are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Trade and other payables

Net assets acquired

Goodwill arising on acquisition
Cash paid

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash paid
Expenses incurred for the acquisition

Bank balances and cash acquired

YER B

B 5 K E Mt RUSRK
RITREBR RIS

85 ME MR

B ABEF#E
WEPTEL 2 M2

ENRE

W i P E A 2 3R < e HE R -
EfHRE
MUBEBPTE £ 2 FX
FREBEAZSRITHRB RS

The Group is in the process of assessing the fair value of the
identified intangible assets of BEEM KR IkARTE AR A F] at the

date of acquisition; thus the amount of goodwill disclosed herein

is preliminary and subject to revision once the Group completes

its valuation exercise and upon the receipt of professional

valuations.

On 12 December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement in
relation to the disposal of its 100% interest in /&M X5 ik AR 75
AR AT for a consideration of HK$37,000,000, details of which

are disclosed in note 33.

EBUWE: (B

ZERX ST EEFERAR
BmELZNZEENT:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount before
combination and
provisional fair value
on acquisition
HK$'000
AORIHBBARZ
IREER KUBRZ
R AEEE
FHET

195

1,013

1,412

(868)

1,752
35,923

37,675

35,000
2,675
(1,412)

36,263

REEEFEEMRRERREER
ARIZEBHEVEERNBEER
RFEE BANARECHESHE
BT EE  NEBE TR R IE
EEEMERBREA SN

R-BT+E+ A+ -H KEE
FIRA(E37,000,0005 T HE BN K
REHRARIS B IR A 7)100% 57T 3L
— 1P BRI 33 B



Business acquisition: (Continued)

(0

On 15 August 2007, the Group, through its 67.9% subsidiary,
acquired 100% of issued share capital of Shenyang Limited for a
consideration of HK$178,000,000 and incurred transaction costs
of HK$633,000. Shenyang Limited is engaged in hotel operation
business in the PRC and this acquisition has been accounted for
using the purchase method. The amount of discount arising as a
result of the acquisition was approximately HK$47,344,000. The
net assets acquired in the transaction and the discount on

acquisition are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment )3 - #28 & % 1
Inventories FE

Trade and other receivables B 5 & E i IR BR X
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR RIS
Trade and other payables H 5 REAMEMNRK

e —fL D B R FIR

Amount due to
a minority shareholder

B ()

© RZZEZ+LFNATHB REEE
BEEH67.9% a2 B A RWE
Shenyang Limited 100% & 217 B& 7N -
R 1B73178,000,0008 T WEER 5
FX 633,000 7T °Shenyang Limited
FABI A1 08 i 4 8 S 75 - T U TE UK
BERABERBEAR - RWEE
EZPTEE TR RAT, 344,000 7T
ZIAR 5 T « B EFERWE

Deferred tax RIER IR
Net assets acquired FriE N& EFE
Minority interest DY R
Discount on acquisition of BB B AR 2 T8
subsidiaries
Satisfied by: TRER:
Cash e
Expenses incurred SR ATEA 2 A
for the acquisition
Consideration note REZE
Promissory note ESTEST

Net cash outflow arising
on acquisition:

WHERE S 2 e FHE:

Cash paid BENRE
Bank balances and Fr i AN RTTASER
cash acquired ERE

ZHRIT
Acquiree’s
carrying Fair value
amount before Fair value on
combination adjustment acquisition
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& BtAT

BBBAEZ W R
BREE AVEEAE NFEE
FHET FHET FHET
199,811 27,367 227,178
956 = 956

5,210 = 5,210
17,536 = 17,536
(9,700) = (9,700)
(7,646) = (7,646)
- (5,500) (5,500)

206,167 21,867 228,034
(2,057)

(47,344)

178,633

50,000

633

21,545

106,455

178,633

50,633

(17,536)

33,097



Shenyang Limited’s property, plant and equipment include a hotel
property. At the time of preparing a circular to the shareholders
containing information on the acquisition, the Group has
appointed Norton Appraisals Limited, independent professional
valuers not connected with the Group to perform a valuation of
the hotel property as of 30 April 2007, and the valuation was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties. Details of the valuation are disclosed in the
circular issued by the Company dated 23 July 2007. Upon
completion of the acquisition on 15 August 2007, the Group has
appointed another valuer, Greater China Appraisal Limited,
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group to assess the valuation of the property at 15 August 2007,
which was arrived at by reference to both market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties and income approach.
Both Norton Appraisals Limited and Greater China Appraisal
Limited are members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors,
and have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. Both of

them had come up with a similar valuation of this hotel property.

Shenyang Limited is making loss in past years and the directors
of the Company believed that that the Group has more bargaining
power to negotiate for a better consideration and resulting in a

discount on acquisition of the subsidiaries after reassessment.

The subsidiaries acquired mentioned in note 50(a) to (c) above
contributed approximately HK$62,614,000 to the Group’s revenue and
contributed a loss of approximately HK$5,241,000 to the Group’s profit
before tax for the period between the date of acquisition and the

balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2007, total Group’s
revenue for the year would have been HK$2,286,212,000, and the
profit for the year would have been HK$2,651,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposed only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1

January 2007, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

Shenyang Limited 2 #13 - #28 K 2548
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Assets acquisition:

(d)

On 28 August 2007, the Group, through a wholly owned
subsidiary, acquired the entire issued share capital of Asia Times
Limited for a consideration of HK$70,000,000 and incurred
transaction costs of HK$6,706,000. This acquisition has been
accounted for as acquisition of assets and liabilities as the

subsidiary acquired is not a business.

The net assets acquired in this transaction are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment I ER TN

Intangible assets EBRAE

Inventories "E

Amounts due from associates JE M ES i N R FRIA
Amounts due from related companies Uk #83E N 55K E
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A AR
Bank balances and cash RITHEMR RS
Trade and other payables B 5 REAM RN
Tax liabilities HIEBE

Net assets acquired and

cash paid
Net cash outflow arising WHEFTEA RSN
on acquisition: SRR
Cash paid EfRE
Expenses incurred MUEFTEE 2
for the acquisition Fx

Bank balances and cash acquired

FBEABEFEMENRS

B AZRITRSBRIA S

BENE:

(d

RZZEZELENAZFTNR KEE
BR-—HEEMBRRWEAsa
BEFITRE RES
70,000,000 7T WEER HREA
6,706,000/ 7T ° B3 pA UL RE 2 BT 8 &
BN IE—IEE UL TEREE AR
N REERABWE.

Times Limited&®

ZBRX PR 2 EEFENT:

Amount

HK$'000

=8

FET

980

78,250

51

472

52

939

1,408
(4,249)
(1,197)

76,706

70,000

6,706
(1,408)

75,298



Assets acquisition: (Continued)

(e)

On 13 September 2007, the Group through its 52.5% owned
subsidiary, Enjoy Media Holdings Limited, completed the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Square Inn Hotel
Management Limited for a consideration of HK$30,000,000 and
incurred transaction costs of HK$5,263,000. This acquisition has
been accounted for as acquisition of assets and liabilities as the

subsidiary acquired is not a business.

The net assets acquired in this transaction are as follows:

Intangible assets BIEE

Other payables H b FETER R

Net assets acquired and g A NEEFER
cash consideration ReNRE

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: UgB&FrEE 4 2 IR &7t H B 58 -

Cash paid BERE
Expense incurred for the acquisition — BhURBEFTE 4 2 F X

BEENE: (B

(e)

R-ZZBTZLFAA+=H KEEE
BEBER52.5% M s 2 fiT 8 2 FEnjoy
Media Holdings Limited 2Rk U5
Square Inn Hotel Management
Limited2HEEITREA RER
30,000,000 7T WEER KA
5,263,000 7T > B PTHLIE 2 P B 22
AP FE—IAZERS UL TR E AR
JIREENBBWE-

FZERSHIW R BEFEMT

Amount
HK$'000
&8
FHET

38,342
(3,079)

35,263

30,000

5,263

35,263



Assets acquisition: (Continued)

®

On 15 November 2007, the Company, through its wholly owned

subsidiary, Fortune Up International Limited, completed the share

subscription representing a 72% of the enlarged share capital of

Tangula Group Limited for a consideration of approximately

HK$412,011,000 and incurred transaction costs of

HK$36,649,000. This acquisition has been accounted for as

acquisition of assets and liabilities as the subsidiary acquired is

not a business.

The net assets acquired in this transaction are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Derivative financial instruments
Investment in a jointly controlled entity
Trade and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Amounts due to minority shareholders
Other borrowings

Other payables

Net assets acquired
Share subscription proceeds
from the Group

Minority interests

Net cash outflow arising acquisition:
Expenses incurred
for the acquisition

Bank balances and cash acquired

YERY Y

BIVAE
ITEERTA

R—RAFEHERZRE
85 MM REURK
RITREBR LIRS

FE S DB R FROR
HibfEE

H B R

B ABER#E

REE 2 B An R
FRISRIE

DERIR R 2s

Wi P E A 2 3R < e HE R -

SUBBFTES 2
Fx
B ARTHESBERS

BEWE: ()

H RZZEZLF+—-AT+HRB F&EHE
FHiR— 2 &M B 2R BFortune Up
International Limited5EA R IR 7
(#E H Tangula Group Limited & & A
BRART72%) - HEHI 412,011,000
7T WE A R 5K 836,649,000/ TT o
HRBE L WEBARWIF—I8E
B EIEREE AR AEERA
B

ZER PR 2 BEFENT

Amount
HK$'000
]
TET
301,259
352,302
2,185
6,979
247
4,657
(99,484)
(290,702)
(66,319)

211,124
412,011
(174,475)

448,660

36,649
(4,657)

31,992



Assets acquisition: (Continued)

(9)

On 31 December, 2007, the Group, through a wholly owned
subsidiary, acquired 100% interest in Dinna Capital Limited for a
consideration of HK$36,000,000 and incurred transaction costs
of HK$4,000,000. This acquisition has been accounted for as
acquisition of assets and liabilities as the subsidiary acquired has

not commenced business at 31 December 2007.

The net assets acquired in this transaction are as follows:

Investment property KEME

Property, plant and equipment I ER TN
Bank balances and cash IRITAER R E
Trade and other payables 2 5 R H A R BRER

Amounts due to related companies  FE{FBEE A R FIE

Net assets acquired and cash paid I ANEEFERENES

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: UWEEFTELE 2R &7 H F5:

Cash paid BERE
Expenses incurred for the acquisition ~ FLUBBFFEE 2 X
Bank balances and cash acquired FREEARITRSBR RIS

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2007 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that date by Norton Appraisals Limited, independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group. Norton
Appraisals Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market

evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

BEENE: (B

(9 RZTET+F+A=+—8B K&
EFEBA—HE2ENBAFTKEDINNa
Capital Limited 100%#z5 KRB A
36,000,000 7L WEER HREA
4,000,000 7T > PP 2 P8 &
ARZEE+F+_A=+—HHER
P BUEREDARINAEER
BBk

HZER ST EZ BEFENT

Amount
HK$'000
&8
FHET
174,938
193
13,237
(500)

(147,868)

40,000

36,000
4,000
(13,237)

26,763

AEBREMEN_FTELF+_A=1
—HZRFEETIREENEE L EEHE
2B R BRBERMGENMEHERFEE
BRARINZ BT 2 (AEREE - & AR
BERARRBEANEMSEEER HAE
BEWR sOMAR AR RELYEE
Bz&R - BRGENRZERUMEZR
HERTIZREER



During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group acquired
30,000,000 common stock of Sino USA. The consideration was satisfied
by amount due from an associate of HK$30,000,000 and loan
receivables of HK$7,000,000, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group disposed of a
subsidiary and related shareholder’s loan to Sino at a consideration of
US$7,500,000. The consideration was satisfied by Sino USA issuing to
the Group a total of 32,608,696 common shares of Sino USA.

Save as otherwise disclosed, at 31 December 2007, the Group’s credit

facilities were secured by the Group’s assets as follows:

Hotel property BRI
Leasehold land and building HEMEREF
Bank balances IRITHEE R

In addition, the Group has also effected a pledge of fixed charge over
all the revenue and a floating charge over all the assets of Rosedale
Park Limited for bank borrowings. Rosedale Park Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group, is engaging in hotel operation in Hong Kong which has
revenue of approximately HK$92,305,000 for 2007 (2006:
HK$87,420,000) and total assets of approximately HK$14,571,000
(2006: HK$11,863,000) at 31 December 2007.

HE-_TTHF+-_A=-+—BLEE X
S EUESIno USA 30,000,0000% & A% - X
BRI AW —RE & QA RHE
30,000,000/ 7T K FEHL E' 5 7,000,000/8 7T

Eig-

HE_TZRFTA=T—HILFE &

EELARE7,500,000F T ASinoH & —H
b8 A R R AR R B R B A Sino USA
MALEEITA $£32,608,6968%Sino USA
EmR A E

BRBITHRENN R_BELF+ - A=+—
B AEEZEERENREETIIEEE
-

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
S L BL L i
FRTL THTE
603,548 609,202
13,557 17,849
11,916 11,436
629,021 638,487

BN REBE TR ARosedale Park Limited 2 Fff
B REREREEMREAMEEEERT
M IR TfE B ~Rosedale Park Limited 7
EENBHEES AAEE B AR
HR T+ F 2 W#41/92,305,000%
TL (=TT N4F 87,420,000/ 7T) ' i =
ZETHF+T A=+ —HZEAELAERD
A14,571,0008B L (=TT F:
11,863,000/ 7T) °



Further, the equity interests in subsidiaries of the Group, namely
Shenyang Limited, Shenyang Hotel Holdings Limited and Time Plaza
are pledged in relation to the issue of promissory note (note 39). Time
Plaza holds directly 92% interest of a hotel property, with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$228,725,000 in Shenyang, the PRC at
31 December 2007.

As lessee

At 31 December 2007, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

fall due as follows:

Land and buildings T RAEF

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years inclusive E-FEZERF (PREEREMF)
Equipment B4

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years inclusive FFEERF (BRERMF)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office properties, shops and employees’ quarters as well

as equipment. Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years.

BN - RASEEME A A (Shenyang
Limited * Shenyang Hotel Holdings Limited
REERES) 2 RAERERBTERILER
(MEE3NEHER-R-_TTLF+ R
=t+—HB BRESEERE RULNT
BEEHET2BEEDE(REELNAR
228,725,00087T) 292 % Mz -

EREEA
RZZZ+F+_A=1+—H AEERE
FERTARELEHRO 2 RRRERSN
FAEH ARt FAE Z BIHIAMT

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
i FHT
20,054 19.029
8,938 15,501
28,992 34,530
358 358
179 i
537 o

REBHNNFEAEBREETHAE
X i REBEERREMEN 2ES A
HNEEFERBME-



As lessor EAHEA

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$17,952,000 FRUWERZ MER LKA E17,952,0007
(2006: HK$15,202,000). 7T (ZZZ X4 :15,202,00087T) °
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for REER RNEBBEBEPIIZE4 ARE
the following future minimum lease payments for its investment E’ET’iU&ﬁW%&@E%%WZ%%Z%
property and premises within the hotel properties: REARH SR
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$000
—gEtE =
FHET FHET
Within one year —FR 17,952 15,108
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERF (BRERMF) 41,764 50,671
After five years hEZIE 3,698 8,476

63,414 74,255



Contracted for but not provided
FEVBmRER

in the consolidated financial

statements in respect of

WA RANAEHE
prepaid lease payment /NG

Acquisition of companies holding

Investment in a jointly controlled entity

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  §5 & 3 #4232 3% 18

The Group has retirement schemes covering a substantial portion of
its employees in Hong Kong. The principal schemes are defined
contribution schemes. The assets of these schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of independent

trustees.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group joined a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all its new employees in
Hong Kong employed therefrom or existing employees wishing to join
the MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group in respect
of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the MPF

Scheme.

B TIEERTOERR

R—RAREHERZRE

2007 2006

HK$°000 HK$'000
—FELE “EEAF
FBT FHT
177,492 30,000
45,476 -
397,858 7,741
620,826 37,741

REBA/RHFN BB RERERAERNKREETE
TR ERERMKG R EH B2 EE
SAEBZEENH UWEEHTAFE L
2 AVAEEE PN

B-ZETF+-_A AR AKEEAE
FIERZBRREZFTEBEEINBHE
swhltE A TS 8l ([BEeE]) 2BE
EELHE—(ERESiTE- 2B EITR
BB R E ST ENRAI R EATE S
TEEEREMoaEes 8l s BERASE
BrBESH UESHFAEE WH—I
B SFEAZRGRBRBESTERA B
FREESERBAETE LIImARESE
EFR R A EEERE ST EER
BBt ZET EEL TR R



The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified

contributions.

The amounts charged to the consolidated income statement represent
contributions paid or payable to schemes by the Group of approximately
HK$8,385,000 (2006: HK$7,461,000) less forfeiture of HK$105,000
(2006: HK$127,000) arising from employees leaving the Group prior

to completion of the qualifying service period, if any.

At the balance sheet date, the total amount of forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefit schemes
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable in future

years was HK$43,000 (2006: HK$543,000).

REEF B R E 2 & EH A+ EBUT
B BERKENGEIKE ZEME A

RIAREBHME T B D LR BRI
EIER RENRHE S - AEBB AR
B EIE—ER 2B EHIREEIED
RE 2 e

WFEREER I 2RI RAEEE R
SE T a8l 2 50 478,385,000% 7T (=
TENF 7,461,000 7T) R AR EEE
BTERTERNA BIE RIS AR ()
S 2 £ 3105,000870 (Z T TR F:
127,000/ 7T) °

REE R BEESRHRKEF G EIMELL
U 7 BT SRR R 2R F PR AN A SR 2 (SR 4R
%/543,0008 70 (ZFZ/5F 543,000

o) ®



Save as disclosed in elsewhere of this consolidated financial () BALGEVEHREREMBOFTERES

statements, during the year, the Group had transactions with SVER REEEBEATEIT IR
related parties as follows: ST
Nature of transactions Name of company 2007 2006
HK$"000 HK$'000
REME DRAER —ETtHE —ZETRE
FET FET
Property rental expenses paid Cycle Company Limited and
and payable by the Group Gunnell Properties Limited - 2,404
rEEEMRENZ EEBERAE R
MERESFREZ Gunnell Properties Limited
Mass Success International Limited - 190
Paul Y. Building Management Limited - 10

REYEEEER AT

- 2,604
Air ticketing and travel Hanny Holdings Limited and
service income received and its subsidiaries 732 1,210
receivable by the Group REEBEBRATRENB AR
REBEDKEEK 2 Paul Y. — ITC Management Limited 1,020 667
TSR T2 e e AR TS UL PYI Corporation Limited and
its subsidiaries 2,049 1,796
REEEERARREMBEAR
See Corporation Limited 575 827
EEHEEEFRAR
China Strategic Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries 31 -
HEREBEBR AR LEKE QA
China Enterprises Limited 4 =
ITC Corporation Limited and
its subsidiaries 411 438
BEHCEEEFRARREMB AR
ITC Properties Group Limited 1,323 -
EHMESERR AR
PSC Corporation Limited 123 -

6,268 4,938



Nature of transactions

REUE

Tour costs paid and payable
by the Group
FEEDN RERM 2 BFRE

Interest paid and payable
on convertible notes

AMEREZEN REMFE

Loan interest paid and
payable by the Group
REBE BN RERNZERFIE

Loan interest received and
receivable by the Group

AEEE KW 2 EFF S

Staff secondment fee paid and
payable by the Group

REERNREMNZ
BT{ERER

Name of company 2007
HK$°000

REERH —BELHF
FHERT

Ananda Travel Services (Aust.) Pty Ltd. 35,538

Wing On Int’l Travel Service Ltd.
Guangdong 5,553
BRI EEIRITHER DR

41,091
China Enterprises Limited 3,489
Nation Cheer Investment Limited 2,766
HERERRAT]
Million Good Limited -
Hanny Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries 1,036
REEBARARREMNBAR
ITC Management Limited 10,594
ITC Properties Group Limited
and its subsidiaries 4,892
EFMESREERARRAMBE AR
TZG Holding Limited 167
19,455
China Strategic Holdings Limited 1,593
FREBERARREWB AR
See Corporation 1,087
EEEEEFRAR
2,680
Mass Success International Limited 3,000

2006
HK$'000
ZEERF
FAT
35,967
1,328

37,295

3,403

2,040

3,056

2,451

8,714

2,996

19,257

2,458



Nature of transactions

REUE

Property rental and management

received and receivable

by the Group
rEFRCWREKZ

MEHERERE

Website maintenance services
received and receivable
from the Group

REBED WM ER 2
AL 4 1E IR TS

Property rental and management

paid and payable by the Group

AEEENRENZ
MERERERE

Website maintenance services

paid and payable by the Group

AEFESNREMNZ
ARk M BRTS

Certain directors of the Company or its subsidiaries are also

Name of company

DRER

Hanny Holdings Limited and

its subsidiaries

wEEEBRATREMERR

Hanny Holdings Limited and

its subsidiaries

HEEEERDRRENBAR

Travoo Asia Limited

Travoo Asia Limited

Sino Express Travel Limited

directors of or have beneficial interests in those companies.

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
—FELE “EEAF
FBT T

447 =

1,193 =

1,231 =

816 =

1,299 =



(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

During the year, the Group advanced and received loans from
related companies. Details of their relationships and the terms of

the loans are set out in notes 30 and 35, respectively.

The Group maintained current accounts with related companies
and associates. Their balances as at 31 December 2007 are set

out in notes 25, 26 and 36.

Certain directors of the Company are also directors of and have

beneficial interests in those companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company issued
convertible notes of nominal value amounting to HK$300,000,000
(2007: Nil) to China Enterprises Limited, a then substantial
shareholder of the Company who can exercise significant influence
in the Company. Details of the convertible notes are set out in

note 42.

During the year, a director of the Company has given personal
guarantees of HK$300 million to a financial institution in respect
of loan facilities utilised by the Group. All outstanding loans under
such facilities were settled as at 31 December 2007 and the loan

facilities were expired accordingly.

FRAEECERT RIWEBER
AZER BEERFTZBERER
R 2 FHIE D BB FE30 K35

i)

BRREIE A B S B R A A 2k A

REZE-_ZTEF+T_A=+—HIt
FE - AN RIFETTEIE300,000,0007%
T(ZETAF | 2ABRERT
ERARARTITREERZE N ZR
NARIEZMEChina Enterprises
Limited o BRI HAARTEIR 2 FHBEER
Mizta2-

FRN ARR—REERAEEEY
AZEXBmE N — M @R
300,000,000/ 7T 2 fE A #&1R < 5 B &b
BZBAREEERER-_TTLF
To-A=1+—BREEE MERR
BIRE B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # % — XX tf+ A =+ —HI1LFJE
56. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 56. BEALTRS (&)
(f)  Compensation of key management personnel ) FTEEEABZHNM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key BEERHEMTFEETEABRFERNZH
management during the year was as follows: BfZAT :
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
S = N
FET FHET
Short-term benefits 52 EAE A 329 983
Share-based payments LARR A7 32 A-H R IE 1,197 3,906
Post-employment benefits BB E 1A = 8
1,526 4,897
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined EENFETHRABZHMEHFNEESS
by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance SEFEALTZRERTSHNBEME
of individuals and market trends. iE°

KRZHRE (KR) BRAH
2007 F i



Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 INTEBRZZEZLFR_TTF+=A

and 2006 are as follows: =T —AARAFRZEEMBARFE:
Place of Issued and paid up
incorporation/ share capital/ Proportion ownership Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital interest held by Company place of operation
Directly Indirectly
2007 2006 2007 2006
% % % %
HEMREL ERITRARE
ARER BRHH BRE,FHEX RARBEREEER 2 LA TEERREEHY
HE B3
SBEEF —TTNF BBt _ITNF
% % % %
Allied Glory Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 - = 55.7 55.7  Investment holding
("Allied Glory") in the PRC
ARRBERLA ([G4&]) £ 28T - - 55.7 55.7 HEREER
Apex Quality Group Limited British Virgin US$5,548,172 - - 67.9 67.9 Investment holding
Islands
Apex Quality Group Limited RBHBRRES 5548,172%T - - 67.9 67.9 HEAER
Asia Times Limited British Virgin Us$100 - - 100 - Investment holding
Islands
Asia Times Limited EBERRES 100%70 - - 100 - RAEK
Benchmark Pacific Limited British Virgin US$1 - = 100 100  Investment holding
Islands in Hong Kong
Benchmark Pacific Limited REHRRHE 17T - - 100 100 BEREER
Clever Basin Holdings Limited British Virgin Us$1 - - 67.9 67.9 Investment holding
Islands in Hong Kong
Clever Basin Holdings Limited RBHRRES 17T - - 67.9 67.9 BAEKREER
Cyber Business Network Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 - - 100 100  Provision of internet
(Hong Kong) Limited related services
in Hong Kong
YIERE (FE) BRAF Bt 14,000,00078 7T - - 100 100 REBRHEERES
HEERE
DS Eastin Limited Hong Kong HK$20 - - 67.9 67.9 Investment holding
in the PRC

BBERAREERAA 3 20E7T - - 67.9 67.9 HEHREER



Name of company

AEER

Hey Wealth Limited

Hey Wealth Limited

HKWOT (BVI) Limited

HKWOT (BVI) Limited

HMH China Investments Limited
HMH China Investments Limited

Hong Kong Wing On Travel
Service Limited

BRKRIKEERAF

International Travel Systems Inc.

International Travel Systems Inc.

Kingsgrove International
Limited

Kingsgrove International
Limited

Lucky Million Investments
Limited

Lucky Million Investments
Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration

EMRL
ERhy
Hong Kong
Bt
British Virgin
Islands

REERARES

Bermuda
BRE

Hong Kong

BE

British Virgin
Islands

KRHEBRAES

Hong Kong

BE

British Virgin

Islands

KRHERRAES

Issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

ORTRAR

BRA/EREX

HK$2

28T

Us$1

1%7T

CAD$1,152,913
1,152,913n#

Ordinary —

HK$180,000,100

Deferred -
HK$20,000,000

EER -

180,000, 1007 7T

SRR —
20,000,000 7T

US$1

(EH

HK$2

28T

US$1

(EH

*

*

2007

100

100

Proportion ownership
interest held by Company

Directly Indirectly
2006 2007 2006
% % % %
ENGESZ SR oL 1 e )
E# Gk
ZEBEE —TTNF CBBEF CTTNF
% % % %
= = 67.9 67.9
- - 67.9 67.9
100 - =
100 = =
= = 55.7 55.7
= = 55.7 55.7
- - 100 100
= = 100 100
- - 100 100
= = 100 100
= = 100 100
- - 100 100
- - 67.9 67.9
= = 67.9 67.9

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXBREFHE

Property holding
in Hong Kong
HEEEDE
Investment holding
in Hong Kong

BRERERK

Investment holding
RERK

Outbound travel and

related services

shs R AR R

Investment holding

REER

Property investment
in Hong Kong
BENERE

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
EEREER



Name of company

AEER

Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel
Co., Ltd.
ACEEN

BEERAE

Makerston Limited

Makerston Limited

Many Good Money Exchange
Limited

BNEHBERRAF

Millennium Target Holdings
Limited

Millennium Target Holdings
Limited

RailPartners, Inc.

RailPartners, Inc.

Rosedale Group Management
Limited

HEEEEEER AR

Rosedale Hotel Beijing Co., Ltd.

IERABEEEREERR

Rosedale Hotel Group Limited

Rosedale Hotel Group Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

HEMA&YL CDRITRER
B BA/EMER
PRC # RMB 145,000,000
FRE 145,000,000 A R #
British Virgin Us$1
Islands
RBHERARHS (E
Hong Kong HK$100,000
N 100,000/ 7T
British Virgin Us$1
Islands
RBHRRES (E
British Virgin Us$si12
Islands
RERRRES 812%7T
Hong Kong HK$2
B 28T
PRC # US$17,200,000
FE 17,200,000% T
British Virgin Us$1
Islands
RBHERRES 1E7T

Proportion ownership
interest held by Company

Directly Indirectly
2007 2006 2007 2006
% % % %
ENGESZ SR o 1 e ]
E# Gk
TEEEF —TTNF CBBEF CZINF
% % % %
= = 40.8 40.8
- = 40.8 40.8
= = 67.9 67.9
= = 67.9 67.9
- - 100 100
- = 100 100
= = 100 100
- - 100 100
- - 72 -
- - 72 -4
= = 67.9 67.9
- - 67.9 67.9
= = 64.5 64.5
= = 64.5 64.5
- - 67.9 67.9
= = 67.9 67.9

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXBREKHE

Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
RS RS SRS

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
EEREEKR

Money exchange services
in Hong Kong
BEEEHHRRT

Trading of securities
in Hong Kong
BEBEREE

Investment holding

REER

Provision of management
services in Hong Kong

REBRHEE RS

Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
RS REEEE

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
EEREER



Name of company

AEER

Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou Co.,
Ltd. ("Rosedale Guangzhou")

BNAEEEER AR
([EM3E])

Rosedale Park Limited

Rosedale Park Limited

Shenyang Limited

Shenyang Limited

Shropshire Property Limited

RENFERAF

Square Inn Hotel Management
Limited

Square Inn Hotel Management
Limited

Square Inn Budget Hotels
Management, Inc.

Square Inn Budget Hotels
Management, Inc.

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

HEMR&YL CRTRER

Bt BA/EMER

PRC #* US$11,500,000

g 11,500,000% ¢

Hong Kong HK$2

O 2587

British Virgin Us$1
Islands

REHRRHE 17T

British Virgin Ordinary -

Islands us$10

Preference -

US$1,000

REHRRHE Lk —

10%7T

BER-

1,000% 7T

Macau MOP100,000

P 100,000%) ¥

United States of
America

ESE

US$1,420,474

1,420,474 T

Proportion ownership

interest held by Company

Directly Indirectly
2007 2006 2007 2006
% % % %
ENGESZ SR oL 1 e )
E# Gk

“ERLE _TTNF CBELE _TTRF

%

%

%

55

55

67.9

67.9

67.9

67.9

67.9

67.9

52.5

52.5

52.5

52.5

%

55

55

67.9

67.9

67.9

67.9

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXBREFHE

Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
RPBER REEBE

Hotel operation
in Hong Kong
REBEEBIE

Investment holding
in Hong Kong

ERRERR

Investment holding

in Hong Kong

FHRALR

Budget hotel operation
in Macau

TORFIE S G ERE R

Investment holding

REZMKR



Name of company

AEER

Success Billion Limited

Success Billion Limited

Super Grade Investment Limited

Super Grade Investment Limited

Tangula Group Limited

Tangula Group Limited

Time Plaza (Shenyang) Limited

BRES (B%) BRAAF

Watertours of Hong Kong
Limited

BLEEHEEBRAR

WHS Marine Services Limited

ERBEEARAF

T

Wing On Holidays (Macau)
Limited
KB CRM) BRAA

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

HEMRIL/ CDRITRER
B BA/ERER
British Virgin us$1
Islands
HBHERAREHS (E
British Virgin Us$1
Islands
RBHRRES 1E7T
British Virgin US$1,000
Islands
RERBRES 1,000 7T
PRC* RMB 168,000,000
g 168,000,000 A R #&
Hong Kong Ordinary -
HK$1,500,000
“B" — HK$100 *
e L@ —
1,500,000/ 7T
BRZ—100/&*
Hong Kong HK$1,000,000
5 1,000,000 7T
Macau MOP1,300,000
AP 1,300,000%

2007

Proportion ownership
interest held by Company

Directly Indirectly
2006 2007 2006
% % % %
ENGESZ SR o 1 e ]

%

—eBtF —TTAF

%

%

100

100

100

100

72

72

59.1

59.1

100

100

100

100

100

100

—2BtE —TTSF

%

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXBREKHE

Trading of securities
in Hong Kong

Property investment
in Hong Kong
EENERE

Investment holding

REZK

Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
RS REEEE

Watertour services
in Hong Kong

BRE LR R

Ship Building,
repair and holdings of
leisure boats
in Hong Kong
REBEM #EMER
HEER

Travel and related services
in Macau

RFIfRiE & AR ARG



Name of company

AEER

Wing on Travel Finance Limited
KEIRBEI BB AR
Wing On Travel International
Limited
Wing On Travel International
Limited
Wing On Travel (BVI) Limited
Wing On Travel (BVI) Limited
Wing On Travel (U.K.) Limited
Wing On Travel (U.K.) Limited
WOT Holidays (Canada) Limited
WOT Holidays (Canada) Limited
The Rosedale Luxury
Hotel & Suites Ltd.
HEEX (LE) BERAT

Sichuan Henxin Tour Co., Ltd.

mJIEEKREEREERT

Place of
incorporation/
registration

SRR
B

Hong Kong
3
British Virgin

Islands
HBERAHE

British Virgin
Islands

AERARRES

United Kingdom

+t

HE

=

PRC #i#

l:F‘ i

PRC i

EP #HH#

Issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

ORTRAR

BRA/EREX

HK$2

28T

Us$1

1%7T

Us$10,000

10,0003 7T

£2

28 8E

€$15,000

15,0000

US$19,350,000

19,350,000% ¢

RMB2,000,000

2,000,000 A R &

Proportion ownership
interest held by Company

Directly Indirectly
2007 2006 2007 2006
% % % %
ENGESZ SR oL 1 e )
E# Gk
ZEBEE —TTNF CBBEF CTTNF
% % % %
= = 100 100
- - 100 100
100 100 - -
100 100 = =
= = 100 100
- - 100 100
= = 100 100
= = 100 100
- - 100 100
= = 100 100
- = 100 =
- - 100 =
- - 51 -
- - 51 _

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXBREFHE

Money lending
in Hong Kong
REBUSEEED

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Travel and related services
in the United Kingdom

S it AR R AR TS

Travel and related services

in Canada

NIEPNi GGy

Property investment
in the PRC
REYERE

Travel and related service

in the PRC
Fh B B 8% % A B AR 7S



##

#Hi#

Hit##

The deferred shares and “B” shares are owned by the Group,
practically carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to
attend or vote at any general meeting of the respective companies or

to participate in any distribution in winding up.

The subsidiaries are PRC Sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

This subsidiary is a PRC Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture. Allied
Glory is entitled to recoup its total investment (including capital and
interest) from the after-tax earnings of Rosedale Guangzhou before
any amounts are distributed. Thereafter, the after-tax earnings of
Rosedale Guangzhou are to be distributed at 80% and 20% to Allied

Glory and other joint venture partner respectively.

The subsidiary is a PRC WOFE

The subsidiary is a PRC domestic company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion

of the directors, principally affected the results or assets and liabilities

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

No debt securities have been issued by any of the subsidiaries during

the year.

* REROM RBREAKEEEE  BIR EE
WEE B A ) 2 B B S Wz A BRI
RREBESHERRAGINEG LR
LA BB RS TR EVS A 2D ke

# ZEME AR TR BEBIMNEAS ERF]

" ZMBARA-HKPEBIEEEERT
BEINIARE 2 R Bi1& B A A IE S IRERIFOR

Bl A AP E 2 BIRE (BIEE

RHEB) 2% BNAEZGREEET
ZALAB0% F:20% 2 LL I 53 Rl 53k T & 88
HEthaEBft

" EHBARRENEBALE

it ZMBRR IR BEREA AT

EER/LRMIAKEZHMBERRIEA
KSEZXEIEERAREEANE-ES
R EMHBARZFEETRIER
RITR - B T o

FABEETAHBARETEESE



Turnover ]
(Loss) profit before taxation — BR&EAT (E548)
St )
Taxation credit HiIER O]
Profit (loss) for the year REZHF
(E518)
Attributable to: A
Shareholders of the parent &R FIARE
Minority interests DYAR R
Dividends A% B
Total assets BEME
Total liabilities B EHEsE
Equity attributable to ISNGILE
shareholders of the parent  fE{h#Ezs
Minority interests DB R

2007
HK$’000

e
FE

2,266,163

(42,143)
46,631

4,488

(16,199)
20,687

4,488

11,908

2007
HK$'000

=t
FET

4,813,625
2,251,098

2,562,527

2,044,482
518,045

2,562,527

Year ended 31 December

2006 2005 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
BZE+-_A=+—HLEE
ZEEREF —EERF —ETEF —EE=F
FHAET FAT FAT FHET
(&51)
1,992,354 1,815,718 1,722,177 1,416,235
(81,295) 30,126 (2,852) (373,047)
1,891 2,108 23 2,075
(79,404) 32,234 (2,829) (370,972)
(71,748) 31,109 8,556 (370,972)
(7,656) 1,125 (11,385) =
(79,404) 32,234 (2,829) (370,972)
9,188 8,752 = =
As at 31 December
2006 2005 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
R+=A=+—8
ZEERE —EERF —ETHF —EE=F
FET FAT FET FHET
(&:271))
3,834,882 3,031,623 2,572,322 1,107,351
2,148,095 1,617,579 1,643,878 784,252
1,686,787 1,414,044 928,444 323,099
1,255,312 978,976 630,142 293,321
431,475 435,068 298,302 29,778
1,686,787 1,414,044 928,444 323,099

Note: The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that are effective

for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. Financial

information for 2004 has been restated for these new and revised policies in

accordance with the transitional provisions. Financial information for earlier

period has not been adjusted to take into account of the effect on the adoption

of these new and revised HKFRSs as the directors considered that it is not

practicable to do so.

i BEEMAGCEMSEARN _TTRF—A—
Hekz @Bn e st B AR #5] RASERT BB
RS R —TTNE 2 PHEHE RIS
e RASERTBUR MARRER IG X ED LA
F2UEEM BRI ST RGBT EE
MBERELANZZEMELAR RASEER
RULRERR EYAAAT



Existing Site Gross %

Company Address Use Area Area Interest

AT otk HREAE 1t R T HEE EREIH

Kingsgrove International Workshops A and B on Warehouse 1,645.86 1,645.86 100%
Limited 1/F., Sunking Factory Sg.m. Sg.m.

Building, 1-7 Shing Chuen
Road, Taiwai, Shatin,

New Territories

Kingsgrove International R =¥ 1,645.86 1,645.86 100%
Limited WHKRE 7K IR
PREER1-T5%
Bz TERE
HEAKBT S
Super Grade Investment Units 1222 and 1223 on Office 151.90 151.90 100%
Limited 12/F., Nan Fung Centre, Sg.m. sg.m.
264-298 Castle Peak Road and
64-98 Sai Lau Kok Road,
Tsuen Wan,
New Territories
Super Grade Investment b WAE 151.90 151.90 100%
Limited xéE TR FIAK

S 1L3E264-2985 &
FIiE AL 64-985%
EEFRL128
12228 K% 12235



Company
AT

Hey Wealth Limited

Hey Wealth Limited

Rosedale Hotel

Beijing Co., Ltd.

EFGAREERREEAR

Rosedale Hotel

Guangzhou Co., Ltd.

ENEBEERRAR

Address

Hohk

Rosedale on the Park
No. 8 Shelter Street,
Causeway Bay,

Hong Kong

IR
BB

E12E85%

Rosedale Hotel & Suites m
Beijing
No. 8 Jiang Tai West Road,
Chao Yang District,
Beijing, the PRC

LA
PEIdER
#5 R
1 & PaRE 85k

Rosedale Hotel & Suites m
Guangzhou
No. 348
Jiangnanda Road,
Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, the PRC

BENAREIEE
AR
pisEo N
TL R KIE3485%

Existing
Use
REEAR

Hotel operation

SNV S

Hotel operation

SN S

Hotel operation

SN S

Site
Area

AR

6,640.5
sq.ft.

6,640.5
FAR

18,699.6

sg.m.

18,699.6
Fhok

10,838.9

sg.m.

10,838.9
FHK

Gross
Area

HMEE

102,173
sq.ft.

102,173
FHR

37,173.20

sg.m.

37,173.20
Fhk

46,865

sg.m.

46,865
FHK

%
Interest
EZESL

67.9%

67.9%

64.5%

64.5%

55%

55%



Company
AT

Luoyang Golden Golf
Hotel Co., Ltd.

BEEKERNBEERAR

Time Plaza (Shenyang) Limited

RHRES (B%) ARAT]

Company
L]

The Rosedale Luxury

Hotel & Suites Ltd.

HBEX (L8) ARAF]

Existing

Address Use

5714 REAR
Golden Golf Hotel

No. 319 Zhongzhou

Zhong Road

Hotel operation

Xigong District
Luoyang City

Henan Province, the PRC

SIRERAE
FREDA A
S M LR
AN B3 195%

SN S

No. 99 North Station Road, Hotel operation
Shenhe District,
Shenyang City,

Liaoning Province,

the PRC
FEEES BB E T
VB 55 T 0] [
b4 E8 995
Address Existing Use
3k REAR
No. 1900 Tianshan Road, Vacant
Changning District,
Shanghai, the PRC
R =g

bemRER
KL 19005

Site
Area

AR

9,025.51

sq.m.

9,025.51
Tk

5,535

sq.m.

5,535

Lease Term

Gk

Gross
Area

HMEE

21,269.18

sq.m.

21,269.18
Tk

43,000

sq.m.

43,000
Fhk

%
Interest
EZESL

40.8%

40.8%

59.4%

59.4%

Leasehold with a term expiring

on 15th October, 2023

HEEE AN -—_T-_=F+7
+HBE®



Shop B27, Basement,

Bank of America Tower,

12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong
FAPRERE12REBRITH O EB275R A
TEL E3E 2520 2628 FAX & 2520 2229

Room 1707, Crawford House,

70 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
BEBE2ENEBEFRIORFHAEI1707E

TEL &35 2189 7689 FAX {#H 2189 7686

Room 601, Hang Lung Centre,

2-20 Paterson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
RIS B ENE2-2058 EE P 0601E

TEL ®35& 2577 5655 FAX {## 3162 8470

Shop 13, G/F., Site 2, Aberdeen Centre, Hong Kong
BEBEEFRLO2H T 1358
TEL #35% 3523 1118 FAX {#& 3523 1113

Shop 062, G/F., Cityplaza 2,

18 Taikoo Shing Road, Hong Kong

BN EPE 18T AT A 02 T 062574
TEL & 3% 2886 3183 FAX & 2568 3081

Shop 143, L1, New Jade Shopping Arcade,
Chai Wan, Hong Kong
BBLE RS 112143558

TEL 5% 3157 1668 FAX {#E 3157 1666

Room 802, 8/F., Carnarvon Plaza,

20 Carnarvon Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
NBERDPBEINESE205 NESE5SIES02E

TEL #7% 2926 3838 FAX {#& 2317 0280

Rooms 313&315, 3/F., Bank Centre,

636 Nathan Road, Mongkok, Kowloon
NEERT AR PBUE6365RRITH 31E313R315F
TEL E3% 2928 6666 FAX {#E 2782 1655

Shops G110-111, G/F., Plaza Hollywood,
Diamond Hill, Kowloon
NEEEA IR BEESI T G110-1115%4

TEL =% 2927 6600 FAX {#E 2955 5536

Shop 606, Level 6, Telford Plaza Il
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

MBS BRI B35 2 Hi61E 60655 &

TEL E:E 2927 2228 FAX {8& 2997 3530

Shop M17, Kwun Tong Plaza,

68 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
REERERRE68SR BB BISM1 75R

TEL 55 2389 1111 FAX & 2763 5288

Shop 210, Level 2, East Point City,

Tseung Kwan O, Kowloon

NRE S E R E 7 521221057 4

TEL E5% 2927 2266 FAX & 2628 6122

Unit 721, 7/F., Citylink Plaza, Shatin, N.T.
MRS BEN RIS TET21E
TEL 3% 2929 4282 FAX {& 2601 2854

Rooms 1222-1223, 12/F., Nan Fung Centre,
264-298 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T.
REEE LE264-2985F8 L0 12181222-1223 %
TEL 55 2411 1339 FAX {EH 2411 1382

Shop 145B, Level 1, Metroplaza,

Kwai Fong, N.T.
ARG E5 1181458554

TEL 5% 2421 2283 FAX {£#E 2421 2166

Rooms 602-603, Yuen Long Trade Centre,
99-109 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, N.T.
R ITBAE LI ARE99-1095% SLRAE 5 0:602-603 =
TEL E5% 2476 0933 FAX {#E 2476 0839

Shop 2127, 2/F., Tuen Mun Town Plaza, Phase |,
1 Tuen Shing Street, Tuen Mun, N.T.

R P R PI T S S B21821 2754

TEL E5% 2450 8333 FAX f£& 2450 9090

Shop 507, Level 5, Landmark North,
Sheung Shui, N.T.

SR Bk EoK S 51E507 5k 48

TEL &% 2668 6830 FAX & 2668 6211

Shop 135, Level 1, Zone B,

Tai Po Mega Mall, Tai Po, N.T.

R AR AR ABE 11135554

TEL E:E 2929 0288 FAX {£E 2662 3281

Avenida da Praia Grande,

No.730-804 Edificio China Plaza,

r/c, Loja “L"e"M", Macau

SEPIRIE A B8R 730-8045% AR ZE B IS &8 L R MEE

TEL #5% (853) 28 370522 FAX {#£ (853) 28 370523

Room 303, 3/F., Min Zheng Tower,

99 Xi Hu Road, Guangzhou, PRC

A BN T AR5 995% R BUR B 312303 =

TEL &% 8620 83368388 FAX {55 8620 83369288



Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited

7th Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

RRIRE(ER)FRLF
EBNEBEBEES 1 FRECEF LT

www.woth.com.hk
www.wingontravel.com
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